#22-004

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center — New Cancer Hospital

Street Address: 5654 South Drexel Avenue

City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60637

County: Cook Health Service Area: 6 Health Planning Area: A-03

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220})]

Exact Legal Name:  The University of Chicago Medical Center

Street Address: 5841 8. Maryland Avenue
City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637
Name of Registered Agent: John Satalic

Registered Agent Street Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Thomas Jackiewicz

CEOQ Street Address: 5841 §. Maryland Avenue

CEO City and Zip Code: Chicago 60637

CEO Telephone Number: (773) 702-6240

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation I Partnership

| For-profit Corporation O Governmental

O Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Joe Qurth

Title: Partner

Company Name: Saul Ewing Arnstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 161 N. Clark Street, Site 4200, Chicago, IL 60601
Telephone Number: (312) 876-7815

E-mail Address: joe.ourth@saul.com

Fax Number: (312) 8766215

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name:

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:
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#22-004

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Phillip L. Kaufman, CPA

Title: Vice President — Finance Shared Services
Company Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center
Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637
Telephone Number: {773) 702-8184

E-mail Address: phillipkaufman@uchospitals.edu

Fax Number: (773) 702-8184

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: The University of Chicago Medical Center

Address of Site Owner. 5841 S. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center

Address: 5841 S. Maryland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60637

X Non-profit Corporation O Partnership

| For-profit Corporation | Governmental

O Limited Liability Company M Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial
contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Flood Plain Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinocisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesiing that the project complies with the

requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov). NOTE: A
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION
FORM has been added at the conclusion of this Application for Permit that must be
completed to deem a project complete.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ;i 5

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act. i

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT &, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE l
APPLICATION FORM. |

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification :

| Substantive

4| Non-substantive

394836094
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2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification
as substantive or non-substantive.

The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) seeks authority from the Board for
approval of a Master Design Permit to expend funds in excess of the capital cost review
threshold for architectural services that are required to develop a free-standing, dedicated cancer
hospital for the future on UCMC’s Hyde Park Campus on the South Side of Chicago. In addition
to architectural fees, this application is requesting permission to complete underground utility
system improvements needed to ensure that the UCM Adult Level 1 Trauma ED can operate
without interruption as part of the site preparation.

Since 2014, UCMC has been engaged in a strategic planning process to enhance the delivery of
cancer-related services to the communities it serves, where the incidence and mortality from
cancer is high and the availability of resources is disproportionately low. The purpose of the
dedicated cancer hospital would be to consolidate inpatient, outpatient and clinical trials research
services that are currently dispersed throughout campus in a single tower, to expand access to
high-quality cancer services to underserved residents on the South Side of Chicago, and to
facilitate the coordinated delivery of the entire spectrum of cancer care.

The Master Design Project includes the following key components:

e Development of a 128-bed inpatient hospital with all private rooms.

e Development of space for a comprehensive program of ambulatory cancer care services
including exam rooms, an infusion center, radiation oncology, imaging, lab,
interventional radiology and rehabilitation therapy services.

» Development of dedicated space for clinical trials research and care.

e Construction of underground utility system improvements and site preparation.

The total GSF of the proposed inpatient and outpatient tower would be approximately 544,000
GSF and the cost will be approximately $633,300,000. It is estimated the building will be seven
(7) floors, and planning will review various options to connect the new building by tunnels
and/or bridges to existing structures on the UCMC campus. The design costs, including initial
A&E and related expenses, along with site preparation and off-site utility work, is estimated to
be $37,569,000, which exceeds the current capital expenditure threshold.

UCMC has engaged Cannon Design for architecture and engineering services, and Turner
Construction for logistics and budgeting services. Contracts for both services will include a
contingency with respect to CON approval.

UCMC anticipates the completion date of the Master Design Permit to be December 31, 2023. It
is anticipated that the dedicated cancer hospital would open in 2026, contingent upon receipt of a
CON permit, and any other required regulatory approvals for same.

Pursuant to 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1120.20(b), the Project is classified as “Non-Substantive” because
it is for a Master Design Permit and will not establish a new facility on a new site, establish or
discontinue a category of service, effectuate a change in bed capacity.

39483609.4
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

#22-004

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS REVIEWABLE NONREVIEWABLE TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $2,400,000 $2,400,000
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $215,000 $215,000
Site Preparation $500,000 $500,000
Off Site Work $10,500,000 $10,500,000
New Construction Contracts
Modemization Contracts
Contingencies $1,800,000 $1,800,000
Architectural/Engineering Fees $7.,300,000 $7,200,000 $14,500,000
Consulting and Other Fees 2,800,000 $1,870,000 $4,670,000
Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) $1,800,000 $1,800,000
Net Interest Expense During Construction {project
related}
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to Be Capitalized 2,450,000 $2,534,000
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land}
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $12,550,000 $26,819,000 $37,569,000

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securilies $12,550,000 $26,819,000 $37,569,000
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)
Mortgages
Leases {fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $12,550,000 $26,819,000 $37,569,000

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

39483609.4
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes ] No
Purchase Price: $ N/A
Fair Market Value: $ N/A

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

[J Yes > No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ N/A

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
X None or not applicable ] Preliminary
[] Schematics [l Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): December 31, 2023

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to
Part 1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

4 Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable?
X Cancer Registry
APORS
B4 All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted
All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
permit being deemed incomplete.

39483609.4
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e. non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff or employees of a health
care facilily and not directly refated to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care
facility. "Non-clinical service areas” include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops, newsslands; computer systems; lunnels,
walkways, and elevators, telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities, student housing;
patient, employes, staff, and visitor dining areas, administration and voluntesr offices; modernization of structural components {such
as roof replacement and masonry work), boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities;
mechanical systems for healing, ventilation, and air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacement of carpeting, tife, wall
coverings, window coverings or treatments, or furnifure. Solely for the purpose of this definifion, "non-clinical service araa” does not
include health and fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3]

[ [ ‘ Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet
‘ Gross Square Feet That Is:

Vacated
Space

New

Const. Modernized | Asls

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical

Intensive Care
Diagnostic

Radiology | _
MRI

Total Clinical

" NON-
REVIEWABLE
Administrative
| Parking
Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical .
TOTAL I

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: The University of Chicago Medical | CITY: Chicago

Center
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 1/1/2021 to: 12/31/2021
Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds* Changes Beds
Medical/Surgical 481 19,313 151,118 - 481
Obstetrics 46 2,942 5,852 - 46
Pediatrics 60 3,156 16,320 - 60
intensive Care e 6,431 40,169 - 142
Comprehensive Physical - = = - -
Rehabilitation
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness ) B - - -
Neonatal Intensive Care 53 845 15,902 S 53
General Long-Term Care ) B - - S
Specialized Long-Term Care ) B - - &
Long Term Acute Care B - - = -
Other {(identify) ) ; - - 5
TOTALS: 782 32,687 229,361 - 782

* Authorized bed information based on Alteration of Project #16-008 The University of Chicago Medical Center,
approved on September 16, 2021

39483609.4
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CERTIFICATE

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

' o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general pariners (or the sole general partner, when two or
mofe ganeral partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist), and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of The University :
in accordance with the requirements and pmcedm of me llllnoh Hoalth l-'acllitles Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to executs and file this Application on
bsehalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned furthor cortifios that the data and information
provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief. The undersigned aiso certifies that the fee required for this application is
sont herewith or will be paid upon request.

dennifer Hill__
PRINTED E PRINTED NAME
President Secrefary
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Sub gnd swomn to befors me a2 and sworn to before me

OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of lllinols
My Commission Expires Oct 30, 2023

OFFICIAL SEAL
Notery Public - State of lllinols
My Oommlssion Explres Octso 2023

39483609.4
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SECTION Hi. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, Including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, pariners and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A heaith care facility is
considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A cerlified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A cerlified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
govemmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
cerlification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

39483609.4
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
'PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:

Altemative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in
both the shorl-term {within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
| PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
I

39483609.4
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility's Medical Director.

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

¢. The project involves the conversion of exisling space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

[ PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion Is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 WIl. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
| DEPT. HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC. _
YEAR 1 |
YEAR 2 1 | |

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 185, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.
|

39483609.4
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved,

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the projact if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's {the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

+ Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
+ Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria
s Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VI. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

$37,569,000 | a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.q., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant’s submission
through project completion;

b} Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts;

d) Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and
the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount
of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvemenits to the property and provision of capital
equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all
terms and conditions.

39483609.4
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e) Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental
unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in
terms of the amount and time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other
funds that will be used for the project.

$37,569.000 | toTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 33, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION V. - MASTER DESIGN AND RELATED PROJECTS

This Section is applicable only to proposed master design and related projects.
Criterion 1110.235(a) - System Impact of Master Design

Read the criterion and provide documentation that addresses the following:

1. The availability of alternative health care facilities within the planning area and the
impact that the proposed project and subsequent related projects will have on the
utilization of such facilities.

2. How the services proposed in future projects will improve access to planning area
residents.

3. What the potential impact upon planning area residents would be if the proposed
services were not replaced or developed.

4. The anticipated role of the facility in the delivery system including anticipated
patterns of patient referral, any contractual or referral agreements between the
applicant and other providers that will result in the transfer of patients to the
applicant's facility.

Criterion 1110.235(b)-Master Plan or Related Future Projects

Read the criterion and provide documentation regarding the need for all beds and
services to be developed and document the improvement in access for each service
proposed. Provide thefollowing:

1. The anticipated completion date(s) for the future construction or modernization
projects; and

2. Evidence that the proposed number of beds and services is consistent with the
need assessment provisions of Part 1100; or documentation that the need for the
proposed number of beds and services is justified due to such factors, but not
limited to:

a. limitation on government funded or charity patients that are expected to
continue.

b. restrictive admission policies of existing planning area health care facilities that
areexpected to continue.

c. the planning area population is projected to exhibit indicators of
medical care problems such as average family income below poverty
levels or projected high infant mortality.

39483609.4
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3. Evidence that the proposed beds and services will meet or exceed the
utilization targets established in Part 1100 within two years after
completion of the future construction of modernization project(s), based
upon:

a.
b.

c.

historical service/beds utilization levels.

projected trends in utilization (include the rationale and projection assumptions
used in such projections).

anticipated market factors such as referral patterns or changes in population
characteristics (age, density, wellness) that would support utilization
projections; and anticipated changes in delivery of the service due to changes in
technology, care delivery techniques or p hysician availability that would support
the projected utilization levels.

Criterion 1110.235(c) - Relationship to Previously Approved Master Design Projects

READ THE CRITERION which requires that projects submitted pursuant to a master
design permit are consistent with the approved master design project. Provide the
following documentation:

1.

Schematic architectural plans for all construction or modification approved in the

master design permit.

The estimated project cost for the proposed projects and also for the
totalconstruction/modification projects approved in the master design permit.

An item-by-item comparison of the construction elements (i.e., site, number of
buildings, numberof floors, etc.) in the proposed project to the approved master design
project.

A comparison of proposed beds and services to those approved under the master design
permit.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,

39483609.4
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SECTION VIl. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY - NOT APPLICABLE

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A" Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA {(Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4

The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Prbjected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.

39483609.4
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SECTION VII1.1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by

submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to

one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0
times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or
B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.
B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall

document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized

statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing wil! not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term {years), financing
costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

39483609.4
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.” | Mod. Cire.* (AxC) (B x E) {G+H)

Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no
more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IX. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes atl the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4):

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in @ manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Qutpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safaty Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient

39483609.4
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Qutpatient

Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

L= - =
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

. Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c})].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consoiidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table In the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year " Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)
{ Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EQ 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is located in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood
Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a
development is planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including
compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant: University of Chicago Medical Center, 5841 S. Maryland Avenue

{Name) {Address)
Chicago IL 60637
(City) {State) {ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location: _5654 South Drexel Ave Chicago, IL 60637
(Address) (City) (State)
Cook
{County) {Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go To NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can printa

copy of the floodplain map by selecting the icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes No _X_

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN? No

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428

39483609.4
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Floodplain Map Example

The image below is an example of the floodplain mapping required as part of the IDPH swimming facility
construction permit showing that the swimming pool, to undergo a major alteration, is outside the mapped
floodplain.
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant identification including Cerlificate of Good Standing 27-28
2 | Site Ownership 29-34
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 35
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 36-37
Good Standing Ete.
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 38-40
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 41-47
7 | Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 48-49
8 | Financial Commitment Document if required
9 | Cost Space Requirements 50
10 | Discontinuation
11 | Background of the Applicant 51-54
12 | Purpose of the Project 55-86
13 | Alternatives to the Project 87-92
14 | Size of the Project 93-94
15 | Project Service Utilization 95

16 | Unfinished or Shell Space
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space

Service Specific:

18 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, [CU

19 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

20 | Acute Mental iliness

21 | Open Heart Surgery

22 | Cardiac Catheterization

23 | In-Center Hemodialysis

24 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

25 | Selected Organ Transplantation

26 | Kidney Transplantation

27 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

28 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
29 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

30 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 115
31 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services
32 | Birth Center

18 | Master Design 96-114
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
33 | Availability of Funds 116
34 | Financial Waiver 117-132
35 | Financial Viability 133-185
36 | Economic Feasibility 186
37 | Safety Net Impact Statement 187
38 | Charity Care Information 188

39 | Flood Plain Information
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Section I, Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
Attachment 1

The University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation. A
copy of UCMC’s Good Standing Certificate is attached.

ATTACHMENT 1
27
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File Number 5439-757-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of lllinois, do hereby

certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of
Business Services. I certify that

THE UNIVERSITY QF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 01, 1986, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, 1S IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 25TH

dayof OCTOBER A.D. 2021 .

7 il g
N Y = ‘ Y
o -
Ayihenicstion B, 7120803010 versblo vl 1NZSS2022 M
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o

SCOAETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
28

G521 1566



#22-004

Section I, Site Ownership
Attachment 2

Attached is a signed letter of intent for a lease in which The University of Chicago will lease the
property to The University of Chicago Medical Center.

ATTACHMENT 2
29
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Cancer Center Lease Letter of Intent (LOI)
The University of Chicago
and
The University of Chicago Medical Center

Lessor: The University of Chicago
Lessee: The University of Chicago Medical Center

Premises: Premises shall mean the real property set forth in the legal description contained in
EXHIBIT A-1 and depicted as the Leased Premises in EXHIBIT A-2. together with all buildings,
appurtenances and fixtures located thereon.

Effective Date of Lease: The Lease shall commence upon mutual execution of the Lease by
both parties.

Lease Term: The term of this Lease (the “Lease Term™) shall commence on the Effective Date.
The Lease Term shall end upon the earliest of the following events: (a) the termination of the
Affiliation Agreement entered into by Lessor and Lessee as of October 1,1986, or any extensions
thereof, (b) the expiration of the Affiliation Agreement as a result of an exercise of the election
not to renew for additional 10 year terms; (c) termination of the Lease otherwise in accordance
with its terms.

Conveyance of Premises to Tenant: On the date of payment in full of all amounts of Rent due
under the Ground Lease, Landlord shall convey Premises to Tenant by special warranty deed
transferring absolute title to the Tenant. Lessee agrees that it shall reimburse Lessor for Lessor’s
cost of acquiring the Premises.

Lease of Premises: Upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth and in consideration of
the payment of the rent hereinafter set forth and of the performance by Lessor and Lessee of each
and every one of the covenants and agreements hereinafter contained to be kept and performed
by each of them, Lessor will lease, let and demise unto Lessee, and Lessee does hereby lease of
and from Lessor the Premises.

Condition of Premises: Premises are demised and let in their condition as in effect at the
commencement of the lease term relating thereto, “as is,” and without any representation or
warranty by Lessor of any kind as to any matter whatsoever express or implied (including,
without limitation, the physical condition thereof).

Use of Premises: Lessee shall manage and operate the facilities on the Premises in a manner
consistent with the Affiliation Agreement. The Premises, and every part thereof, shall be used
and occupied only for the purposes of building and operating a not-for-profit hospital and related
outpatient clinics, each of which is supportive of the Lessor’s academic, educational and research
mission. Lessee may operate certain facilities incidental to, or supportive of, the operation of
ordinary course of Lessee’s business but at no time may such incidental use materially affect
Lessor or Lessee, be a nuisance, against public policy or otherwise be used for unlawful activity.

ATTACHMENT 2
30
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Possession: At any time during the Lease Term, Lessee shall have the right (subject to the terms
and conditions of the Lease) to enter upon, occupy, possess and peaceably and quietly have, hold
and enjoy the Premises, provided that Lessor shall retain the right to enter upon the Premises
with reasonable notice in order to make inspections or to exercise any other rights of Lessor
hereunder and further provided that except in the case of emergency, any entry by Lessor shall
not unreasonably interfere with Lessee’s use of the Premises; and (b) Lessor shall with
reasonable notice to Lessee, retain the right to enter upon and occupy certain portions of the
Premises in order to install and maintain conduits for utility services (including but not limited to
gas, water, sewer, electricity and telecommunications services) through and under the Premises,
provided that no such access, use or occupancy shall materially interfere with or materially
impair the Lessee’s operation of the Premises.

Basic Rent: The lease will be Triple Net (NNN). Lessee covenants to pay Lessor basic rent that
will include, but not be limited to, the amount of Ten Dollars ($10.00) for the first year, and the
fixed amount of Ten Dollars ($10.00) for every year after (“Basic Rent”) during the Lease Term.

Additional Rent: Lessee covenants to pay and discharge when the same shall become due or
payable, as additional rent hereunder, each and every cost, tax, assessment and other expense on
or with respect to the Premises or any part thereof.

Property Taxes: At Lessee’s request, Lessor will apply for real estate tax exemptions for those
portions of the Premises which are exempt from such taxes and will charge the expenses of
obtaining the exemption to the Lessee. Lessee shall cooperate with Lessor in filing or causing to
be filed any documentation required to retain the Premises’ status as exempt from real estate
taxes and shall pay prior to delinquency, as additional rent for the Premises, its share (based on a
reasonable allocation thereof determined by Lessor and acceptable to Lessee as between the
Premises and any other property on which such taxes or impositions were levied, assessed, or
charged, but if the parties cannot agree, the amount allocated to Lessee shall be based on
Lessee’s proportionate share of the square footage of the premises covered by such taxes or
Impositions) of any and all taxes and assessments (general and special), and water rates and other
Impositions (ordinary and extraordinary), of every kind and nature whatsoever, which are levied,
assessed, charged or imposed upon or with respect to the Premises, or any part thereof, or which
become payable during the Lease Term, or any ad valorem taxes assessed thereon or on or in
connection with any personal property used in connection therewith which Lessor shall be
required to pay, becoming due and payable during or with respect to the term of this Lease.

Maintenance of Insurance: The parties shall procure, and maintain in effect at all times,
insurance policies or self-insurance covering the Premises, and the operations conducted thereon,
against casualties, contingencies and risks (including but not limited to public liability and
employee dishonesty) in amounts not less than customary in the case of corporations engaged in
the same or similar activities and similarly situated and adequate to protect the Premises and
operations.

Indemnity: Lessee will protect, indemnify and save harmless Lessor and Lessor’s agents from
and against all liabilities, obligations, claims, damages, penalties, causes of action, judgments,
costs and expenses (including without limitation, attorneys’ fees and expenses) imposed upon or
incurred by or asserted against Lessor by reason of: (a) any failure on the part of the Lessee to

ATTACHMENT 2
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perform or comply with any of the terms or provisions of this Lease to be performed by Lessee;
or (b) performance of any labor or services or the furnishing of any materials or other property at
the request of and on behalf of Lessee or any other person (except only Lessor) in respect of the
Premises or any part thereof.

Construction on_Premises: Lessor and Lessee understand that Lessee shall commence and
complete the construction of a mixed-use medical project for the delivery of cancer care upon the
Premises that is anticipated approximately five-hundred forty-four thousand (544,000) gross
square feet but not more than one million three hundred thousand (1,300,000) gross square
footage and a minimum building height of eighty feet and no more than 200 feet (the “Project™).

feet but not more than one million three hundred thousand (1.300,000) gross square footage and
a minimum building height of eighty feet and no more than 200 feet (the “Project™).

Non-Binding: This LOI does not include material and substantive business terms that still must
be negotiated between both parties and therefore is not intended to be, nor would it be
considered, a binding agreement. The terms and conditions set forth herein are subject to final
University of Chicago and University of Chicago Medical Center approval and further mutual
negotiation and agreement and are not binding upon any part unless, and until, they are
embodied in a final and legally binding mutually acceptable agreement signed by all parties.
After 90 days from receipt, the LOI shall be void and of no force and effect unless extended by
mutual agreement of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed and delivered this Lease as of the
day and year first above written, pursuant to proper authority duly granted.

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO THE UNIVERSITY OF cI-IICAGE) MEDICAL
] CENTER 7/
Brett Padgett Thomas Jackiewlcz
Interim Vice President and President
Chief Financial Officer The University of Chicago Medical Center
Associate Vice President for Finance
ATTACHMENT 2
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CANCER CENTER LEASE LETTER OF INTENT
EXHIBIT A-1
THE PREMISES
[Legal Description]

PARCEL A

LOTS 12 THROUGH 25 AND LOTS 26 THROUGH 39, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 6 IN
McKICHAN AND MASON’S SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

CONTAINING 79,795 SQUARE FEET OR 1.831 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

ATTACHMENT 2
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CANCER CENTER LEASE LETTER OF INTENT
EXHIBIT A-2
THE PREMISES
[Parcel Map]|
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Section I, Operating Identity/Licensee
Attachment 3

The University of Chicago Medical Center is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and will be the
operating entity and licensee.

ATTACHMENT 3
35

VA2 ITHE G



#22-004

Section I, Organizational Relationships

Attachment 4

A copy of The University of Chicago Medical Center organizational chart is attached.

ATTACHMENT 4
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AT THE FOREFRONT

UChicago
Medicine

B

System Structure

University of
Chicago Medical
Center
UCM Care Community Health
Network, LLC and Hospital
Division
UCM Care UCM Care UCMCN New Systems Ingalls Other Ingalls

Network Network ACO, LLC Memorial Entities
Medical Affiliated Hospital

Group Physicians

ATTACHMENT 4
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Section I, Flood Plain Requirement

Attachment 8

Evidence that the site of the Project is not located in a flood plain and that the Project complies
with the Flood Plain Rules under Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 is attached.

ATTACHMENT 5
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SECTION X -BPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 840-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In gcoprdance with Executive Order 2008-8 (EQ 5). Lhe Health Faclities 8 Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
degrming £ the stin of the CRITICAL FACILITY, a5 defined in EO 5 is locstad in & mapped toadplain {Speca! Fiood
Harzard Area} oo 3 500-year foodpisin. A siate ggancies are requred W oroure that before a permil, grant o a

developmen! s plarewd of promated the prapased projoct maets tha ragus of the € Order, rehuding
compl ants wih the Natianal Fiood imurance Program {NF IP) and state floodplain reguiation.
1. Applicant: Univerlly of Clvcaso badicel Conler, 5841 85 yand Avenin
MNome) (Addres)
—Chigage I8 00637
Cryl {Staadm} (ZIP Code) (Teiaphore Numbar)
2. Propact Loczton. 5654 South Drexel Avd i
{Acxress) {Oty) (State)
i (County) (Towarzhio) (Section) -

1. Youcan cresle a$mat map of your site ahowing the FEMA foodpialn meogig using the FEMA Map Service
Contar wobsea {Tips o ke gowporiph hiame b by enisteg the sddress ky ¥y property in 1o Seerch ber, I
& map, lton that chawn on page 2 s shown, selecl the Go To NFHL Viewsr teb shove the mep You can prind @
copy of the oodplats map by sslectng the BRES ioon In T b camar of tha page Beroct the prn tol icon L8
ol place 2 pin on your she. Prm a FIRMETTE swro rmaga.

If treve is no ciglial ocdplan map availobie select the ViewPrint HRM con above the aeris} pho. You will
then neod 10 use tha 200m oy provided bo tocae (ha property on the teap sned use Lhe Make o FIRMeotts too!
o eresn a pdf of the floodplsr map.

13 THE PROJECY SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes____No X

13 THE PROJECT SITE LOCAYED N THE 300-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN? No

H you ore unable 1a dedammine F the sits is i1 e mapped loodplain or 500-yoar foadplain, contact the county of Ihe
keal communily bulding or planning deparimont for asexbanbe.
 the detartrirction is being mude by 2 tbocal offcisl, pleass complale tha foTowng

FIRM Panel Numbgr: Effectve Duje:
Nama of Offica: Titie!
Busingss/Agoncy Addrexs:
(Ciey} (5tnio) (ZIP Code) (Telehone Number)
Sigratere. — Date

m‘l’haﬁadrgolwmamﬂhal";lmwhqnoumhummnBSpu:hIFhudilmukuwamM
foodein 88 desgnaled an the map noled abave. k doos not coreaine a gaarertiee that the property wil or wil nol be
foodad of be subjec o loc drzinzge problems

¥ you need adelitionsl help. contact the Binoks Statewids Fioodplain Progrem ot 217/T82-4428

el
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Section I, Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
Attachment 6

Attached is a letter to the Illinois Department of Natural Resources requesting confirmation that
no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exists within the Project area.
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Jow Ousth
SAUL EWING e 311871218

& LEHR™

January 28, 2022

Via Overnight Mail

Robert F. Appleman

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
linvis Department of Naturat Resources
One Nationa) Resources Way

Springfield, 1llinois 627011512

RE:  Review to Determine Impact Upon Historic Resources
5654 South Drexel Avenue, Chicago Ninois 60637
Cenificate of Need Application

Dcar Mr. Appleman

This letter requests your comments as to whether a proposed project has historical,
architectural or archeological impact. This request 15 made in connection with a Certificate of Need
application to be filed in soon with the Illinois Heatth Facilitics and Services Review Board,

The proposed project is for construction of & new dedicated Cancer Hospitak on the campus
of The University of Chicage Medical Center located at 5654 South Drexel Avenue, Chicago Hlinois
60637. Enclosed please find a map shiowing the property together with a street view and zasellite
view. The site is curmently being used for surface parking

We would appreciate & letter in response that we can include as part of the CON application.
1f you have guestions or comments, or need additional information, please contact me at (312) 876-
7815, | appreciale your assistance.

,\Smccmly,

ﬁ@w\/&\

JROVb2
Enclosures

Lo b

161 Nonh Clark » Buita 1280 » ThHAge. 1L 4040
Phone (313067180 & Fan (3112) 87601814

BELAWARE FLORIDA ILLINOIE MARYLAKD MASKEACRUSETTS MIHNESOTA NEW IERSEY NEW YURK PENNEVLYANIA WASHINOTON, B

& B AREED LIVIRH L AR L AT ATR BRI
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Section I, Project Costs and Source of Funds

Attachment 7

Section 1120.110, Project Costs and Sources of Funds

#22-004

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS REVIEWABLE | NONREVIEWABLE TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $2,400,000 $2,400,000
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $215,000 $215,000
Site Preparation $500,000 $£500,000
Off Site Work $10,500,000 | $10,500,000
New Construction Contracts
Modemization Contracts
Contingencies $1,800,000 $1,800,000
Architectural/Engineering Fees $7,300,000 $7,200,000 | $14,500,000
Consulting and Other Fees $2,800,000 $1,870,000 $4,670,000
Movable and Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) $1,800,000 $1,800,000
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to be Capitalized $2,450,000 $534,000 | $2,984,000
Acquisition of Building or Other property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $12,550,000 $26,819,000 | $37,569,000

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $12,550,000 $26,819,000 | $37.569,000
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issue (project related)
Mortgages
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOUCES OF FUNDS $12,550,000 $26,819,000 | $37.569,000
NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT
ATTACHMENT-?, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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Cost Detail
Total linical Non-Clinical Subtotal
Preplanning 2,400,000
Campus Master Planning Efforts - $1,450,000 $1,450,000
Urban Design Planning - 150,000 150,000
Campus Utility Planning - 500,000 500,000
Site Evaluation - 200,000 200,000
Evaluation of Sustainability and Resiliency - 100,000 100,000
Site Survey and Soil Investigation 215,000
Survey of Site - 20,000 20,000
Environmental Testing and Abatement - 50,000 50,000
Seismic Testing - 30,000 30,000
Soil Investigation - 115,000 115,000
Site Preparation 500,000
Demolition of Existing Buildings 450,000 450,000
Termination and Rerouting of Existing Utilities - 50,000 50,000
Off Site Work 10,500,000
Demolition of Excavation of Existing Roadway - 350,000 350,000
Instalkation of Service and Utility Tunnels - 2,700,000 2,700,000
Installation of Storm Water Retention Cisterns - 3,450,000 3,450,000
Alley and Street Vacation by City of Chicago - 500,000 500,000
Electrical Service Extensions - 2,750,000 2,750,000
Increased Utility Services - 750,000 750,000
Mew Construction -
Modemization Contracts .
Contingencies 1,800,000
- 1,800,000 1,800,000
Architecture/Engineering Fees 14,500,000
7,300,000 7,200,000 14,500,000
Consulting and Other Fees 4,670,000
Petmits and Fees - 350,000 350,000
Investigation, Prototyping and Code Analyses - 950,000 950,000
Consulting - 3,370,000 3,370,000
Movable and Other Equipment - = . s
Other Costs to be Capitalized 2,984,000
Contracted Manager and Program Directors - 2,159,000 2,159,000
insurances - 450,000 450,000
Project Office and Software - 375.000 375,000
§37,569,000 $37,569,000

$7,300,000 $30,269,000
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Section I, Cost Space Requirements
Attachment 9
Cost Space Requirements

This project is for a Master Design Permit and Cost Space Information will be submitted as a

part of the specific Project Application.
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Section III, Background of Applicant

Attachment 11

Section 1110.230, Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

1.

W 2ITEN G

A listing of all health care facilities owned by the applicant, including licensing, and
certification if applicable.

UCMC’s full general hospital license #0003897, effective July 1, 2021, issued by the
Hlinois Department of Public Health (“IDPH”), is attached. UCMC’s most recent
accreditation letter from the Joint Commission, dated May 12, 2016, is attached.

UCMC also owns Ingalls Memorial Hospital (“Ingalls Hospital”) and Ingalls Same Day
Surgery Center, an ambulatory surgery treatment center (“Ingalls ASTC”).

Ingalls Hospital’s full general hospital license is #0001099, effective January 1, 2022.

Ingalls ASTC’s ambulatory surgery treatment center license #7001043, effective
June 18, 2021.

A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or
operated by applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

By signature of this application, UCMC certifies that there has been no adverse actions
taken against UCMC within the prior three years.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to documents necessary to verify
the information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or
other State agencies; the licensing or certification records of other States; when
applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

By its signature to this application, UCMC grants the Review Board and the IDPH access
to information to verify information in the application.
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University of Chicago Medical Center
Chicago, IL

has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission
Which bes sirveyud this agantuation ared found it 10 meet the roguiramonts for the
Hospital Accreditation Program

March 12, 2016
Accraditasion i costamarily valid for up 40 D6 oo,
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Section III, Purpose of Project

Attachment 12

Executive Summary

e A dedicated cancer hospital will enhance access to the full continuum of cancer care on
the South Side of Chicago where the incidence and mortality from cancer is
disproportionately high and the available resources are disproportionately low.

A half-century ago, a cancer diagnosis still seemed unbeatable. Despite remarkable advances in
detection and treatment during this time, the benefits have not been distributed equally, and the
prognosis for many cancers, and many populations with cancer, remains poor, with residents on
the South Side some of the farthest behind. People who live on the South Side of Chicago are
twice as likely to die from cancer than those who live just about anywhere else in America.

Cancer is the second leading cause of death on the South Side. The problem is expected to grow
worse in the years ahead, with the incidence of cancer projected to grow 19% in the next five
years on the South Side compared to only 9.1% in the five collar counties surrounding the City.
Currently, 67% of South Side residents leave their communities to get cancer care. Compared to
North Side residents, South Siders in some neighborhoods have a 30-year lower life expectancy.

e UCMC knows that the war on cancer is a team effort. Robust community and patient
engagement will be at the core of the design process.

With a Master Design Permit, UCMC can engage effectively with not just architects and
consultants, but also current and former patients, community hospitals and health centers, as well
as scientists and direct health care providers, as UCMC seeks to enhance not just cancer care but
the entire level of care on the South Side.

UCMC has fostered strong relationships with civic leaders, community organizations, health care
providers and residents to improve health and access to quality care on the South Side of
Chicago, culminating in its work to bring Adult Level I Trauma to the South Side four years ago.
UCMC has already actively reached out to all of the community hospitals in its Planning Area A-
03 and is pleased that this application includes several of their letters of support.

o Cancer is not a single disease, but a collection of hundreds of diseases, and no two
patients’ cancers are the same.

Traditional therapies for cancer, or “one size fits all” approach, such as surgery, chemotherapy
and radiation, underestimate the aggressiveness and heterogeneity of cancer. Precision and
personalized medicine (“PPM”) is the future of cancer therapy, which means the development of
specialized treatments for each type of cancer that can be tailored to specific tissues based on an
understanding of a patient’s genetic data. More and more, it is possible to identify the cancer
treatments that are likely to be most effective, minimizing damage to healthy tissues as well as
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harsh side effects, which may include targeted antibodies, cancer vaccines, and T-cell therapies,
for which UCMC has been a national leader.

e UCMC seeks to build a cancer hospital that has not been built before with a data-
driven design that facilitates interdisciplinary collaboration both in the lab and beside
the patient, whether in the clinic or at bedside.

One of the major challenges to hamessing the power of PPM is the interpretation of enormous
amounts of data, for which special technology, a robust computing infrastructure and data
processing algorithms play a major role. The design planning for the new cancer hospital will
contemplate an environment wired to consume and analyze rich stores of patient data to better
flex a “molecule to medicine” approach, to improve outcomes for patients and, ultimately, to
save lives.

ATTACHMENT 13
56

IR TR0



#22-004

Section III, Purpose of Project
Attachment 12

Overview

Purpose of Master Design Project. The purpose of the Master Design Project is to plan for the
design and development of a dedicated cancer hospital on the University of Chicago Medical
Center’s (“UCMC”) Hyde Park campus on the South Side of Chicago in a strategic and inclusive
manner. As a National Cancer Institute (“NCI”) designated Comprehensive Cancer Center,
UCMC knows that the war on cancer is a team effort. Cancer is not a single disease, but a
collection of hundreds of diseases, and there is no single solution to get over the finish line.

As a critical first step, UCMC now seeks approval for a Master Design Permit to expend funds in
excess of the capital threshold for activities such as architectural services and site preparation.
The primary costs are for determining and developing the vision and design of a dedicated
cancer hospital that will optimize care for the future. With a Master Design Permit, UCMC can
engage effectively with the representation of the entire team, not just architects and consultants,
but also current and former patients, community hospitals and health centers, as well as scientists
and direct health care providers, as UCMC seeks to enhance not just cancer care but the entire
level of care on the South Side necessary to keep patients healthy and to save lives.

Purpose of Dedicated Cancer Hospital. The purpose of a dedicated cancer hospital is to
enhance access to the full continuum of cancer care to the South Side of Chicago in communities
where the incidence and mortality from cancer is disproportionately high and the available
resources are disproportionately law. With almost 50 years as an NCl-designated cancer center,
UCMC seeks to further its mission by building a world-class cancer hospital to continue to
address the disparate distribution of high-quality health care resources in the communities that
UCMC serves.

For decades, the 900,000 residents of the South Side of Chicago have experienced health
disparities ranging from materially higher disease incidence and comorbidities to significantly
lower life expectancy. These health disparities reflect a history of racial inequities and
underinvestment — both of which have contributed to a fragmented healthcare delivery landscape
with limited resources. Today, over 50% of all adult South Side residents leave the South Side to
receive their care and almost two-thirds of all adult South Side residents specifically leave for
cancer care.

These trends have been both caused and been compounded by insufficient, inadequate and
declining medical services in both primary and specialty care: there is a stark shortage of primary
care and OB providers; the CMS star rating for most hospitals on the South Side falls below the
national average; and there has been over a dozen inpatient service or hospital closures in the
past ten years — all contributing to the large number of South Side residents leaving their
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community for care. Paradoxically, this dearth of care has partly contributed to overutilization as
high as 60% in expensive emergency and inpatient settings, including at UCMC, even as local
hospitals continue to see occupancy of less than 60% due to outmigration. The end result of these
care delivery challenges is a staggering disparity in health outcomes: compared to North Side
residents, South Siders in some neighborhoods have a 30 year lower life expectancy, the problem
is expected to grow worse in the years ahead, with the incidence of cancer projected to grow
19% in Planning Area A-03 in the next ten years compared to 9.1% in the 12 county
metropolitan area over the same time frame. These tolls have been further exacerbated by the
COVID-19 pandemic, as evidenced in the highly disparate unemployment and death rates
relative to white residents and North Side neighborhoods.

Cancer Incidence Forecast

Annual Cancer Incldence Forecast Annual Cancer Incidence Forecast
Planning Area A-03 12 County Area (IL and IN)
+19 o%

51 288 52 s

lI | I | Il

Incidence of cancer is expected to grow 9.1% in the 12 County Metro
Area, and 19.0% in the A-03 Planning Area over 10 years

Source: Advisory Board Cancer Incidence Extimator: based on incidance ratas from
@ AT THE FPOREFRONT NCISEERM

UChicagoMedicine

The Federal Government declared a war on cancer 50 years ago with the passage of the National
Cancer Act (the “Act”) and created the National Cancer Institute to promote and to coordinate
the significant nexus of cancer research, treatment and community engagement. The NCI was
charged with establishing cancer centers throughout the United States and to bringing treatment
closer to a patient’s home. This milestone recognizes years of growth in cancer prevention,
diagnostics and treatment and reinvigorates the need for specialized cancer centers to coordinate
the full spectrum of cancer research, from the most basic to the most applied, to improve the
implementation of therapies, and to help patients live longer and healthier lives.

Although the 50" Anniversary of the Act recognizes the progress that has been made during this
time, there is a long way to go to reduce the burden of cancer for everyone. The understanding
of cancer is dramatically different than it was a few decades ago. At a fundamental level, it starts
with the understanding of genes; some of this information has been translated into improving
lives, and the outcome is far better than before. It is clear that no two patients’ cancers are the
same, and the standard of care therapies, or “one size fits all” approach, such as surgery,
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chemotherapy and radiation underestimate the aggressiveness and heterogeneity of cancer.’
Precision and personalized medicine (“PPM”) is the future of cancer care, which means the
development of specialized treatments for each type of cancer that can be tailored to specific
tissues based on an understanding of a patient’s genetic data.

One of the major challenges to harnessing the power of PPM is in the interpretation of these
enormous data sets, for which special technology, a robust computing infrastructure and data
processing algorithms play a major role. More and more, it is possible to identify the cancer
treatments that are likely to be most effective, minimizing damage to healthy tissues as well as
harsh side effects, which may include targeted antibodies, cancer vaccines, and T-cell therapies,
for which UCMC has been a national leader.

UCMC believes it is the responsibility of an NCl-designated comprehensive cancer center to
continue to push the envelope in the delivery of cancer care, a move taken by many of UCMC’s
peer institutions in the U.S. that built cancer centers within the past ten years. But UCMC is not
seeking to build a facility comparable to its peers, it seeks to build a facility that has not been
built before — one that recognizes the revolution underway in cancer therapies because of the
understanding of cancer at the molecular level, that is ready to grow with the future of cancer
research, and that can optimize the delivery of cutting-edge treatment.

A cancer diagnosis is complicated, and patients are understandably anxious and looking for
solutions. The science behind cancer is also complicated, and a lot more is learned about cancer
each year. While many facets of a cancer diagnosis are complex, UCMC wants to design a
facility that makes navigating the continuum of cancer care cancer as simple, welcoming and
efficient as possible. The proposed cancer hospital would put patients and their families first and
strive to provide a full-service, personalized experience — from the environment of care to the
cancer therapy itself.

1. Document that the Project will provide health care services that improve the health
care or well-being of the market area population to be served.

UCMC has been serving the City of Chicago since 1927 and is one of the nation’s leading
academic medical institutions. Its mission is to provide superior health care in a compassionate
manner, ever mindful of each patient’s dignity and individuality. To accomplish this mission,
UCMC relies upon the skills and expertise of all who work together to advance medical
innovation, serve the health needs of the community and further the knowledge of those
dedicated to caring for patients,

UCMC is a nationally recognized leader in patient care, research and medical education and is
the primary teaching hospital for the University of Chicago, Pritzker School of Medicine. UCMC

! The growing role of precision and personalized medicine for cancer treatment Paulina Krzyszczyk, Alison
Acevedo, Erika J. Davidoff, Lauren M. Timmins, lleana Marrero-Berrios, Misaal Patel, Corina White, Christopher
Lowe, Joseph 1. Sherba, Clara Hartmanshen, Kate M. Q'Neill, Max L. Balter, Zachary R. Fritz, foannis P. Androulakis,
Rene 3. Schloss & Martin L. Yarmush; Technology 2018:06:79-100.
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is the sole academic medical center on the South Side of Chicago. It is the closes support for the
surrounding community hospitals, offering a full array of tertiary and quaternary patient services
otherwise not available in the planning area. Renowned for treating some of the most complex
medical cases, UCMC brings the very latest medical treatments to patients in Chicago and
continues to invest in the capital resources necessary to maintain this effort. Moreover, UCMC
routinely ranks among the top providers of Medicaid services in lllinois. Through the Project,
UCMC seeks to facilitate access to integrated, interdisciplinary ambulatory and inpatient care, to
reduce wait times to treatment initiation and for ongoing appointments, and to minimize travel
distances for existing patients who currently leave the planning area for care.

The mission of the Comprehensive Cancer Center is three-fold: to discover what leads to cancer,
train the next generation of cancer researchers and bring advances in cancer to the surrounding
community. The Medical Center and its more than 200 cancer researchers and physicians are
committed to developing innovative ways to prevent and reduce cancer’s devastating effects,
Over the past three years, UCMC participated in 321 clinical trials for cancer treatment and
accrued over 4,000 patients to those trials, including 1,341 minority patients. Additionally,
during this same time period, UCMC faculty published more than 1300 peer-reviewed, journal
articles with their research findings. In 2021, even in midst of the public health emergency,
faculty published 441 scholarly articles, and a representative list of these publications has been
included at the end of this section.

Renowned for treating some of the most complex medical cases, UCMC brings the very latest
medical treatments to patients in Chicago and continues to invest in the capital resources
necessary to maintain this effort. Chimeric antigen receptor T-cell therapy (CAR-T Therapy) is
one prime example of UCMC'’s pioneering efforts and is one of the biggest advances in cancer
treatment in recent years. It is an approach to cellular therapy where cells are collected from a
patient, modified in a lab so that they can find and destroy cancer cells, and returned to the
patient’s body to do this important work.

UCMC was the first hospital in Illinois and one of the first few in the country to offer CAR-T
Therapy. UCMC started to offer CAR-T in 2016 in clinical trials. Since then, UCMC has done
over 250 adult cell therapy infusions of commercial products and clinical trials. UCMC was the
first center in the country to offer Novartis’s Kymriah® for all three of its indications and the
second center to offer Kite’s Yescarta®., UCMC also has one of the largest cell therapy clinical
trial portfolios in the US with trials in leukemia, lymphoma, multiple myeloma, and several solid
tumors (breast, cervical, melanoma, NSCLC, GI malignancies, and H&N cancers).

UCMC has also built a state- of-the-art cell therapy lab to be able to offer CAR-T and other
cellular therapies. UCMC has demonstrated both the ability to take care of cancer patients and
the ability to work with pharmaceutical partners with product development as part of the clinical
trial process for CAR-T therapy — highlighting its basic and translational research. UCMC
continues to offer twice as many clinical trials for CAR-T therapies than any other hospital in .
illinois, and has the most doctors recognized for their research in cellular therapy. UCMC is
currently offering therapies not available elsewhere in Illinois, and that are only available at five
(5) to six (6) medical centers across the US.
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CAR-T therapy is used for patients with relapsed and refractory cancers, where conventional
cancer treatments have not been effective. Multiple Myelomas are one of the focus areas for
CAR-T therapy, which is a disease that disproportionately affects African American populations.
CAR-T therapies are currently being developed for other tumor areas, particularly for solid organ
tumors, and will require utilization of inpatient beds for treatment, which the new cancer hospital
would offer. In addition to inpatient care, cellular therapies will also be partially offered using
“day hospital” ambulatory care, which will also be included in the new cancer hospital. New
therapies will require inpatient beds, cellular therapy lab space, day hospital treatment space, and
resources to be able to perform cellular manipulation in the clinical care areas. UCMC
anticipates significant growth in the number of people with relapsed or refractory conditions that
will be eligible for CAR-T therapy through 2030.

Patients Eligible for CAR-T Therapy

Patients from the 12 County Metro Area with relapsed or refractory conditions
that may be eligible for CAR-T Therapy under therapies currently approved or
in clinical trials (Phase 1-3) will grow from 3,200 to 4,400 patients a year today
to 3,500 to 4,800 in 2030

* Includes CAR-T therapies for:
»  BALL {age 0-19 and 20+)
DLCBL (age 20+, and all agas)
= MCL (age 20+)
® MM (age 20+)
] FL (nge 20+_al ages)
ALL (age 0-18)
AML (age 0-69)
Melasiatic Pancraatic Cancer (CEA+) (age 20+)
Hodgkin Lymphoma (Age 5+)
Eplthelial Ovarian Cancer (MESO+) (Age 20-60)
Advanced Stagas and Recisrent Sarcoma {Age 0-T4)
Advanced Esophageal Cancer (MUC1+) (Age 20-79)
Gastric Adenocarcinoma (CDLN1B 2) (Age 20-74)
patic Cholangh {(MUC1+) (Age 20-64)
= Prostate Cancer (castation-reststant) (Age 20+)
5 Neuroblastoma (Age 0-84)
& Glioblastoma (Age 20-74)
Advenced State and Recurrent Breast Cancer (Age 20-74)

Sourte! Advisory Board CAR T-Cefl Tharapy Demand Estimaltor

@ AT THE 'D.".en‘mmm

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

As a major national academic medical center, UCMC essentially has two market areas.
First, it serves much of the South Side of the City of Chicago, as well as South Suburbs. UCMC
is targeting a service area spanning 15 zip codes and approximately 900,000 residents on
Chicago’s South Side, The A-03 planning area was approximated using the 15 zip codes.

60605
60615

60616
60653
60609
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60632
60638
60629
60636
60621
- 60637
60649
60619
60617
60628

In addition, for its highly specialized tertiary and quaternary services, and other services
necessary for the coordinated delivery of specialty medicine, UCMC serves much of the Chicago
metropolitan area, the state and the Midwest, and even includes international patients. UCMC
seeks to provide greater access and an enhanced patient experience on UCMC's main campus in
Hyde Park by bringing these services closer to the patient.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and
appropriate for the project.

A. People who live on the South Side of Chicago are twice as likely to die from cancer
than those who live just about anywhere else in America. In fact, cancer is the second
leading cause of death on the South Side.

¢ Inequities in the burden of cancer are largely driven by the social determinants
of health, including access to cancer prevention, screening and care.

o The problem is expected to grow worse in the years ahead, with the incidence
of cancer projected to grow 19% in Planning Area A-03 in the next ten years
compared to 9.1% in the 12 county metropolitan area over the same time
frame.

o The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) predicts overall
cancer rates will increase by 49% from 2015 to 2050

B. Over Half of Adult Scuth Side Patients Today Leave the Area for Care They Need.

» The South Side of Chicago has insufficient, inadequate and declining medical
resources. There has been over a dozen inpatient service or hospital closures in
the past ten years on the South Side residents.

¢ Over Two-Thirds (67%) of Adult South Side cancer inpatients were treated
outside of A-03 in 2020, up from 62% in 2019 (pre-Covid), with a significant
amount of medical care provided to residents of the South Side of Chicago
delivered in other regions of the city and in the suburbs.
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o Five (5) hospitals treated 50% of the outflowing adult cancer patients from the A-
03 planning area in 2019 and 2020 (Advocate Christ, Northwestern, Rush, UIC
and Stroger).

. UCMC is almost always full and operates at capacity 90% of the time

Too frequently, UCMC operates under “surge” conditions because of a full hospital
coupled with backup of critically ill patients waiting for admission in its emergency
departments. In fact, UCMC called “surge” more than 50% of the time over the past
few months.

UCMC’s patients are 45% sicker than patients that occupy the same beds in other
hospitals in the planning area. When UCMC is operating at capacity, it limits the
ability for safety net hospitals to transfer patients who need UCMC’s specialized
services and a higher level of care.

. Community hospitals lack the investments and resources they need to meet the needs

of local patients.

Residents on the South Side are a medically-underserved population with a limited
medical infrastructure. As a result, patients elect to go elsewhere.

Over the past 25 years, Planning Area A-03 has seen seven of 16 hospitals close and
inpatient capacity decrease by more than 54%.

Of the remaining safety net hospitals, the average daily census in Planning Area A-03
decreased from 2015-2019 by 7% to as much as 48% except for UCMC and
Provident (which was closed for a period of time).

. Cancer Care is dispersed throughout several buildings on UCMC’s Campus

Inpatient oncology patients are currently admitted to the Bernard Mitchell Hospital
{BMH) located at 5815 South Maryland Avenue and the Center for Care and
Discovery (CCD) building located at 5700 South Maryland Ave in Chicago.

Most if not all outpatient clinical and diagnostic services, such as imaging, lab,
rehabilitative therapy services, and interventional radiology are in the DCAM located
at 5758 South Maryland or the BMH.

Clinical trials research and care administration at 860 East 59™ Street in Chicago.

. Rapid advances in cancer care have far outpaced the facilities available to deliver

them to patients.

Huge amounts of data are consistently being generated in health care and existing
medical buildings may not have been constructed to process the data effectively. It is
tedious and cost-prohibitive to retrofit existing buildings with an adequate technology
infrastructure.

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation

IFAZIT56.8
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UCMC undertakes ongoing internal utilization studies and the source of this information
includes those reports and other information reported to EMS, IDFPR and IDPH. UCMC also
relied upon data its own records, UCMC 2016 and 2019 CHNA, 2020 Annual Report of its NCI-
CCC, PubMed Open Source publications.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues or

problems.

A. A dedicated cancer hospital will increase access and help to address healthecare disparities

With 67% of South Side residents leaving their communities to get cancer care,
adding a comprehensive cancer center on the South Side will dramatically increase
access and reduce time traveled. Research has established that patients living farther
from healthcare facilities have worse health outcomes, longer lengths of hospital stay,
non-attendance at follow-up visits, higher rates of chronic disease-related deaths,
lower five-year cancer survival rates, and increased overall disease burden.

A dedicated cancer hospital will allow UCMC to effectively and efficiently
provide increased access to world-class cancer care. As a Comprehensive
Cancer Center, UCMC see a higher volume of patients with rare cancer
diagnoses. For example, UCMC’s Radiation Oncology program conducted a
study evaluating the outcomes of patients diagnosed with a rare brain cancer —
glioblastoma and found that patients who received care at high volume Cancer
Center — such as UCMC — were found to have more favorable outcomes than
a patient who went to a low volume institution.?

A dedicated cancer center is critical to rectifying the demand in screening and
treatment that has gone unmet as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the
most dramatic reduction in screening occurring in medically underserved
communities. This has led to decreases in diagnosis and treatment and is
expected to resuit in thousands of preventable deaths. According to the CDC,
the screening rates for breast and cervical cancers fell by more than 80%, with
the most severe declines occurring in populations of low-income women of
color.

The threat of worsening cancer outcomes has been recognized by the
international cancer research community as a leading priority. Early
projections showed that if these trends continue, mortality for these cancer
types is expected to increase by nearly 10,000 in the next 10 years in the U.S.
alone as a result of missed cancer screenings and treatment.

B. Enhanced Access to High Quality Cancer Care on the South Side will provide greater
choice to patients and the option to receive care closer to home .

2 Association between hospital volume and receipt of treatment and survival in patients with glioblastoma
Matthew Koshy!d David J Sher? Michael Spiotto22 Zain Husain§ Herb Engelhard !, Konstantin Slavin i, Martin K Nicholas® Ralph R
Weichselbaum *&, Chad Rusthoven? ) Neurooncology 2017 Dec;135(3):529-534. DOI: 10.1007 /51 1060-017-2598-2
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» Adding a dedicated cancer hospital to UCMC’s Hyde Park campus will further
strengthen UCMC’s work in improving these disparities for the Southside
communities. UCMC'’s cancer faculty have conducted research on the impact of
healthcare disparities and access to quality cancer care and have found that if a patient
has to travel a long distance for cancer care - it will often lead to poor outcomes for
that patient. UCMC’s commitment to investing in the Southside of Chicago will help
reduce travel time for the communities it serves and increase access to world class
cancer care.’

C. A dedicated cancer hospital will increase capacity for the entire spectrum of cancer
services

o The cancer hospital will provide 10% more capacity for inpatient operations and 40%
more capacity for ambulatory operations at UCMC. This increased access will allow
UCMC’s complex patient population to begin their personalized treatment plans
faster.

e With the additional bed capacity, the proposed cancer hospital has the potential to
reduce disparities in access to essential medical services and to transform the way
life-saving medical care is providing in the community

» The new cancer hospital will enhance access to care for the South Side’s most
vulnerable residents and help to break down barriers including transportation and

supply gaps.

D. The commitment to building a cancer center is an investment in the resources of the
entire healthcare community of the South Side of Chicago.

. In an unprecedented initiative, UCMC has joined 12 other South Side providers to
develop a South Side Healthy Community model to serve over 900,000 residents with
better, more seamless and more accessible care. This collaborative will be better able
to serve the community with additional primary care and OB providers and dedicated
access to nearly 50 priority specialists, 250 community healthcare workers and
coordinators, and a connected and integrated care technology platform.

. The scope and scale of the SSHCO is both comprehensive and transformative,
and the effort in parallel with a dedicated cancer hospital will constitute a major step
in reversing the longstanding health and economic disparities of Chicago’s South
Side.

¢ The availability of care is generally enhanced when different elements of the
healthcare delivery system work together. Patients deserve access to both community
hospitals and complex care Community hospitals play a critical role in providing
convenient and affordable access to care to vulnerable and low-income populations
for primary and secondary care. UCMC also plays a critical role in caring for the
sickest and most complex patients. The healthcare missions of UCMC and

* hitps://pubmed.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/29932220/ Racial and Ethnic Disparities in Travel for Head and Neck Cancer Treatment and the Impact of
Travel Distance on Survival Evan M Graboyes12 hMark A Ellis 1, Hong Li John M_Kacimard, Anand K Sharmas, Eric J Lentschl, Terry A
Day1, Chanita Hughes Halbert
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community hospitals are aligned: Provide patients access to the care they need when
and where they need it.
E. The new facility will put the entire care continuum under one roof

¢ A key objective of a dedicated cancer hospital is to reduce fragmentation and improve
coordination of care and services. ot only is this a dissatisfier for patients, it leads to a
disjointed delivery of care. This fragmentation today drives high wait times, results in
avoidable utilization of higher-acuity settings, and contributes to the outmigration for
care. The new facility will put the entire care continuum under one roof, unlike any
other center in Illinois, creating synergies that will improve patient’s outcomes and
experience,

¢ The proposed new cancer hospital will allow all providers to work under “one roof”
and provide patients with a single destination to receive care from multiple
disciplines. UCMC’s Cellular Therapy provide a multi-disciplinary clinic (“MDC”)
care model for their geriatric Stem Cell Transplant population, which has led to
improved outcomes. Expanding this MDC care model beyond the geriatric patient
population is a priority, and a proposed new cancer center will allow for all cancer
disease groups to maximize the effectiveness of an MDC care model. *

* Another example of the success of MDC is a collaboration between UCMC’s Medical
Oncologists and Radiation Oncologists to determine whether patients with
Head/Neck cancer that stem from HPV are better served by congruent radiation and
chemo therapy regimen. As a result of the collaboration, they have been able to
reduce the amount of radiation the patient is exposed to, reduce the chemo toxicities
that often have a significant impact on the quality of life for patients, and to provide
the best patient outcomes in the nation for this specific type of head/neck cancer.’

F. UCMC will bring a coordinated, state-of-the-art, technologically advanced building for
the future of cancer services for patients and their families to the South Side of Chicago.

e UCMC seeks to build a cancer hospital that has not been built before with a data-
driven design that facilitates interdisciplinary collaboration both in the lab and beside
the patient, whether in the clinic or at bedside. The design planning for the new
cancer hospital will contemplate an environment wired to consume and analyze rich

& Benjamin A. Derman, Keriann Kordas, Emily Molloy, Selina Chow, William Dale, Andrzej ). lakubowiak, lagoda Jasielec, Justin P. Kline, Satyajit
Kosuri, Sang Mee Lee, Hongtao Liu, Peter A. Riedell, Sonali M. Smith, Michael R, Bishop, Andrew S. Artz,
Recommendations and outcomes from a geriatric assessment guided multidisciplinary clinic prior to autologous stem cell transplant in older patients,
Journal of Geriatric Oncology,Volume 12, Issue 4, 2021,Pages 585-591
https:/freader.elsevier.comyreader/sd/pi/S1879406820304914 Mtoken=163ECEFS83BCDO1ESES1789C4022BBC85273AB4E3DEST7E2C1BCE7EAT662E
626289239981C919E35467A90E01 E6634 D& originRegicn=us-east-1&originCreation=20211202223054

5 Oral Oncol. 2021 Nov;122:105566.

doi: 10.1016fj.oraloncology.2021.105566. Epub 2021 Oct 18.Risk and response adapted de-intensified treatment for HPV-associated
oropharyngeal cancer: Optima paradigm expanded experience

Ari ) Rosenberg! Nishanl Agrawal? Alexander Pearson?, Zhen Gooi?, Elizabeth Blaird, John Cursiod, Aditya Juloori®, Daniel Ginat® Adam
Howard 2, leffrey Chin % Sara Kochanny? Corey Foster?, Nicole Cipriani?, Mark Lingen®, Evgeny lzumchenko? Tanguy Y Seiwert®, Daniel
Haraf %, Everett E Vokes ?

https:// pubmed nebi.ndm.nih, gov/ 34662771/

ATTACHMENT 13
66

AB521756.6



MRIITIeN

#22-004

stores of patient data to better flex a “molecule to medicine” approach and to improve
outcomes for patients.

e UCMC anticipates a profound shift in its health care delivery model that is more data-
centric than function-centric and that fuses the most advanced technology, medical
research, and clinical care through real-time collaboration for the benefit of all cancer
patients. The new cancer center will be built around a “smart” core allowing
researchers and clinicians to leverage big data, powerful computing and artificial
intelligence (“AI”). UCMC cares for some of the most complex and rare cancer
diagnosis and having a facility that leverages big data/Al will allow for more precise
and personalized treatment plans.

¢ The new cancer center will include a Translational Research Laboratory (TRL) will
provide real-time analysis of detailed molecular/immunological/metabolic attributes
of a patient’s tumor.

Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes

that relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

UCMC’s prevailing objective is to increase access to comprehensive cancer care,
throughout the life cycle of cancer. By building a dedicated cancer hospital on its Hyde
Park Campus, UCMC seeks to increasing the availability of the full range of cancer from
screening through remission in closer proximity to current and future patients and to help
to mitigate persistent health care disparities.

¢ Stimulate and support collaborative, interdisciplinary basic and clinical cancer
research, and bring the benefits of our breakthroughs to patients to provide them
with superior, state-of-the-art care

Pioneer preventative strategies based on cutting-edge research
Develop and provide imaging techniques and technologies to enhance diagnostics, detect
malignancies early in their development, and improve the accuracy of radiographs

Improve quality of life for patients and provide convenient access to useful resources to
support their physical, social and emotional needs

Use clinical trials to test investigational drugs and identify effective new cancer therapies

Apply the latest advances in imaging, molecular biology, information technology,
genetics, genomics, systems biology and other disciplines to the study of human cancer

Provide education, training and career development for students, basic scientists,
translational/clinical investigators, and healthcare professionals at all levels (from high
school students to senior faculty)

Ensure clinical trial access to community oncologists and minority populations directly
and through enhanced relationships with a network of affiliated hospitals and health
centers and bring science and research into FQHCs and community hospital
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» Develop and implement outreach programs that educate local health professionals about
current approaches and new advances in cancer prevention, early detection, and treatment

These goals are ongoing and material progress can be achieved within the timeframe for
Project completion.
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Section 111, Alternatives
Attachment 13

Alternatives

Through many years of planning, UCMC rigorously evaluated several alternatives to expand
capacity and to provide reliable access to high-quality cancer care for its underserved patient
population. The various alternatives that have been considered are listed below:

1. Doing Nothing.

For decades, the 900,000 residents of the South Side of Chicago have experienced health
disparities ranging from materially higher disease incidence and comorbidities to significantly
lower life expectancy. These health disparities reflect a history of racial inequities and
underinvestment — both of which have contributed to a fragmented healthcare delivery landscape
with limited resources. Today, over 50% of all adult South Side residents leave the South Side to
receive their care and almost two-thirds of all adult South Side residents specifically leave for
cancer care. People who live on the South Side of Chicago are twice as likely to die from cancer
than those who live just about anywhere else in America. In fact, cancer is the second leading
cause of death on the South Side.

From 2014-2018, the residents on the South Side of Chicago were 28.6% more likely to receive a
cancer diagnosis than residents in other parts of the City and 25.2% more likely than others in the
state. Similarly, for similar periods of time, 14.9 deaths per 100,000 residents from breast cancer
(2013-2017) compared to 12 in Illinois and 19.9 colorectal cancer deaths compared to 13 for
Illinois.

UCM has been unable to consistently meet community demand because of capacity challenges
on an inpatient and outpatient level. This shortfall is visible in ongoing denials for inpatient
transfers due to a lack of available inpatient beds and long waiting times for outpatient clinics.
Currently, the delivery of cancer care on UCMC’s campus is fragmented, with key portions of
routine cancer care spread among several buildings on campus and multiple points of entry.

Maintaining the status quo would not require a capital expenditure, but it would not address the
significant and ongoing access and service limitations confronted by the South Side of Chicago.
It also would not alleviate the extremely high rate of outmigration experienced in the planning
area or the travel burden imposed upon cancer patients and their families, both of which have the
potential to delay care and to diminish quality of life.

As an academic medical center, and designated NCI comprehensive cancer center, doing nothing
is not a viable choice. UCMC views a dedicated facility for the delivery of advanced cancer care
as an imperative and understands its obligation to act to improve inequalities that have persisted
in its service area.
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2. Project of Greater Scope and Cost

A. Construction of a dedicated cancer hospital remote from UCMC and its
Hyde Park medical campus

As part of UCMC’s systematic review of its options to expand access to high-quality cancer care,
UCMC considered the construction of a free-standing cancer hospital built off of UCMC’s
campus on a suburban, Chicagoland location. From a cost perspective, suburban construction
may be less expensive, but the construction on a remote site would require UCMC to duplicate
all ancillary services needed to run a hospital. Specifically, the new facility would have to be
separately licensed as a hospital and meet all of the requirements under the Illinois Hospital
Licensing Act, including having its own CLIA-certified clinical laboratory and an emergency
department,

This option also would require the purchase of land (approximately 75 acres) and the
construction of a 1,000 car parking deck. The list of central services that would need to be built
include the following;

Kitchen Services

Central Sterile processing

Full Pharmacy Services

Full Imaging Services

Surgical Services
Administrative and Faculty services
Roadway improvements
Heating Plant

Parking lots and parking decks.
Faculty offices

. Research Facilities

In addition to clinical services, the hospital would need an administrative infrastructure,
including a governing body and executives needed to manage the medical staff, medical record,
and nursing services. A new hospital would also need to independently enroll as 2 Medicare and
Medicaid provider and to obtain a CIN.

UCMC estimates that this would require an additional 300,000 sq. ft. of physical space to
replicate the centralized services already available on its Hyde Park campus. This would require
additional, initial capital outlays and as well as material ongoing operational costs.

A new hospital in a suburban, Chicagoland location would allow for the construction of modern
facilities to meet patient and provider needs and to deliver technologically advanced medical
care. However, the site would not be in the heart of the South Side of Chicago where patients in
the Hyde Park area are struggling with some of the highest rates of cancer. The site would also
not be able to advantage of the rich academic environment of the University of Chicago Hyde
Park campus.
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Given that the intent and scope of the project is to increase access to cancer services in the
community, UCMC rejected this option outright. Most importantly, it would not alleviate the
maldistribution of resources within the City of Chicago and the healthcare disparities on the
South Side. Additionally, it would require the duplication of services available on UCMC’s
Hyde Park campus for which there is not an independent or unmet need resulting in unnecessary
expenses.

The total cost estimate for the 844,000 sq.ft. hospital, land and parking structure is $1.080
billion.

B. Comprehensive Renovation Mitchell Hospital with an addition

UCMC also considered a more comprehensive renovation of Mitchell Hospital than previously
proposed previously along with the construction of an annex building.® The current renovation
of Mitchell Hospital involves 113,452 sf of the building’s total 450,000 sf. The potential use of
the Mitchell Hospital would require renovation of the remaining 336,548 sf, additional upgrades
to the 113,452 sf, the demolition of an adjacent building and the construction of 188,000 sf of
adjacent pace to support modem clinical needs and to replace the faculty office and research
space lost to the demolition.

This approach would allow the proposed cancer hospital to continue to benefit from the available
central support and ancillary services on UCMC’s Hyde Park campus. It would also be available
to serve the residents on the Southside of Chicago and to benefit from collaboration available on
the University of Chicago academic campus. However, the disadvantages of utilizing the dated,
double-loaded corridor inpatient areas would not allow UCMC to provide a modern efficient
experience for UCMC patients and staff. This would provide a suboptimal experience for
UCMC patients and require excessive operating costs to properly staff the patient care units. The
construction would also entail about 10 years to complete due to the amount of phasing required
to work on an occupied inpatient facility and would be more expensive than the alternative
chosen,

The total involved space for this project would be 638,000 sf and cost about $840.8 M.

¢ ucMc already constdered a project of lesser scope in Mitchell in 2016 when it originally proposed a

comprehensive renovation of Mitchell to repurpose it as a hospital primarily dedicated to a broad spectrum of
clinical cancer care. During the public health emergency, UCMC learned that optimizing care for its
immunocompromised cancer population couldn’t be accomplished in Mitchell. One notable area highlighted by
COVID-19 is air handling systems and UCMC’s ability to make substantial infrastructure changes to an existing
building in a cost-effective manner.

Among the other problems encountered were: insufficient space to efficiently design ICU rooms and meet
infection control requirements, 12 foot floor-to-floor heights prevented rerouting of HVAC ductwork needed to
change layout on the current nursing units, negative impact on clinical labs and radiology due to need for new
elevators, necessary replacement of the entire Mitchell Exterior Curtain Wall that could not be selectively modified;
the need to modify IT infrastructure in Mitchell to accommodate a proliferation of IT systems could only be
achieved at an extraordinary cost.
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C. Joint Venture with Other Providers

UCMC already has entered into joint ventures with other providers in cancer care to bring
advanced and investigational therapies to the community-hospital setting. The University of
Chicago Cancer Center at Silver Cross Hospital opened in 2012 to operate an outpatient cancer
treatment center in New Lenox, IL with two main services lines: An infusion/chemotherapy and
oncology clinic and a radiation oncology clinic. It gives access to a leading academic medical
center and research hospital for cancer treatment resulting in premier, community-based resource
for cancer treatments, research and education and to bring world-class treatment to the suburban
health care market and to treat patients closer to home.

More recently, AMITA Health and UCMC joined forces to jointly bring the South Side
academic health system's specialized cancer expertise, access to advanced therapies and
innovative clinical trials, and greater cancer care options to a smaller, community hospital on
Chicago's North Side. The new partnership is based at AMITA Health Saint Joseph Hospital
Chicago, and includes radiation and medical oncology, as well as surgical oncology and research
services. Patients can now be seen by UCMC oncology physicians at the AMITA Saint Joseph
Chicago campus.

A joint venture often is the only mechanism to bring comprehensive cancer care to a community
that lacks ready access to academic medical centers and research institutions. Because cancer
patients frequently require prolonged treatment over a number of weeks, having state-of-the-art
treatment facilities closer to the patients’ homes and patients’ family members is optimal. Joint
ventures may also provide a meaningful opportunity for a community to receive “cutting edge”
care based on a relationship with academic medical centers or cancer centers and the latest
research,

However, in this case, UCMC is, itself, a world-renowned academic medical center with a
premier cancer program and seeks to improve the delivery of cancer care within the communities
it already serves. UCMC rejected this option because a joint venture on UCMC’s Hyde Park
Campus is not necessary to achieve its goals.

D. Utilize Other Available Health Resources

UCMC considered whether it would be possible to simultaneously make improvements to its
existing facilities to meet the demand for increased services in combination with a reliance on
the resources and affiliations with neighboring hospitals. This option was rejected for several
reasons. In particular, UCCM is the only academic medical center on the South Side of Chicago,
where demand for cancer care is increasing and its population remains underserved. While the
tertiary quaternary care provided by UCMC and the primary and secondary care provided by
community hospitals in the region are complementary, UCMC has no peer hospitals in the area.
Instead, UCMC receives frequent requests for transfers from most of the other hospitals in its
service areas.

Similarly, UCMC rejected an affiliation with a hospital outside of the service area because it
would not address the current unmet demand in Planning Area A-03.
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E. Proposed Alternative

The purpose of a dedicated cancer hospital is to enhance access to the full continuum of cancer
care to the South Side of Chicago in communities where the incidence and mortality from cancer
is disproportionally high and the available resources are disproportionately law.

With this alternative, UCMC will bring a coordinated, state-of-the-art, technologically advanced
building for the future of cancer services for patients and their families to the South Side of
Chicago. UCMC already has a team of exceptionally trained specialists whose practices are
grounded in the latest research with one goal in mind — to help UCMC’s patients achieve the best
possible outcomes - and to augment the community’s access to the finest cancer care by
enhancing local capabilities.

UCMC further seeks to build a cancer hospital that has not been built before with an innovative
layout and a data-driven design that facilitates interdisciplinary collaboration both in the lab and
beside the patient, whether in the clinic or at bedside.

Huge amounts of data are consistently being generated in health care and existing medical
buildings may not be have been constructed to process the data effectively. It is tedious and
cost-prohibitive to retrofit existing buildings with an adequate technology infrastructure, so the
space planning for the proposed cancer hospital will account for this need up front. The design
planning for the new cancer hospital will contemplate an environment wired to consume and
analyze rich stores of patient data to better flex a “molecule to medicine” approach and to
improve outcomes for patients.

UCMC anticipates a profound new health care delivery model that is more data-centric rather
than function-centric and that fuses the most advanced technology, medical research, and clinical
care through real-time collaboration for the benefit of all cancer patients.

With UCMC’s ongoing commitment to bring an even greater benefit to the communities it
serves, including underserved and vulnerable populations, the alternative chose is the only
option.

Alternative Cost Pros Cons
Project of Greater Scope: $1.08B |e Would provide modemn e More expensive than
facilities and an alternative selected
New Hospital Apart from environment for ¢ Would duplicate
UCMC’s main campus technologically advanced services for which there
care is no demand

¢  Would not address
primary reason for
project — to infuse
underserved and at-risk
population with high

quality health care
resources
Project of Greater Scope: $840.8 M | e Location on main medical |e More expensive than
campus would bring alternative selected
Renovation of additional resources to the | ¢  Constrained by dated
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Mitchell/Construction of
Annex

South Side of Chicago
No need to duplicate
ancillary services

hospital floorplan and
layout of nursing units
Construction would take
up to 10 years because of
phasing required to work
on occupied patient units

Joint Venture

N/A

No material advantages

Would unnecessarily
complicate the delivery
of health care in one of
UCMC’s premier service
lines in its own
community

Utilize Existing Facilities

N/A

Potentially lower cost

UCMC fills a unique
role in its planning area
and there is no reliable
acute care capacity for
specialized cancer care
that can be filled by
existing hospitals.

Proposed Project

$633 M

Enhanced access to full
continuum of cancer care
for medically underserved
and at-risk population and
improved outcomes at each
stage of illness

Creation of technologically
advanced and data-centric
delivery model to facilitate
multi-disciplinary
collaboration of care
providers

More expensive than
doing nothing

Material expenditure for
technologically advanced
infrastructure

Requires significant site
preparation and
underground utility work
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Section IV, Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Sheil Space
Attachment 14

Project Scope, Utilization and Unfinished/Shell Space

The total GSF of the proposed inpatient and outpatient building will be approximately 544,000
GSF and the cost will be approximately $633,300,000. It is estimated the building will be (six) 6
floors in height with one lower level floor. Planning and design efforts will review various
options for connections between the new building and the CCD inpatient hospital building and
Parking Deck B. The design cost (A&E and related expenses), prototype development along with
site preparation and off-site utility work is estimated to be $62,484,000 which exceeds the
current capital expenditure threshold.
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FIGURE 1: Site Plan

In addition to architectural fees, this application is requesting permission to complete demolition
of existing structures and underground utility system improvements needed to ensure that the
UCM Adult Level 1 trauma and Emergency Department can operate without interruption. A
separate permit application for approval of the project construction and any other related work
will be filed subsequent to the approval of the Master Design permit application.

There is extensive underground utility work that is required to be installed under South Maryland
Ave between East 56" and East 57" streets before any work for the Cancer Center can begin.
This section of S. Maryland Ave. is the primary walk-in (Ambulatory) entrance to the UChicago
Adult Emergency Department Level 1 Trauma Center. The new site will be needed to allow
access to the ED while the underground utility work is completed. It would not be possible to
keep the ED entrance open once the planned new facility work begins and complete the
underground utility work. The underground work includes the rerouting of major city water,
electrical, data, sanitary and storm sewer piping systems. Additionally, a tunnel and two storm
water retention cisterns will need to be installed under S. Maryland Ave. The tunnel, which will
be located directly under the ambulatory entrance to the ED, will connect the new facility
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directly to Parking Deck B building loading dock. The storm water retention system consists of
two underground cisterns designed to meet the 100-year storm requirements with a total storage
capacity of over 470,000 gallons. Accommodations for Adult ED traffic during underground
work

FIGURE 2: Excavation Site

We are also planning to develop large scale prototypes of the designs for the project. Our goal
here is to test new technologies and how the design of the building will need to incorporate them.
Likewise, we will want to incorporate the latest learnings from our experience with COVID in
order to ensure that we can safety take care of patients through any similar events. We will be
using a large offsite warehouse facility to construct the mockups to complete the design
investigations.  This includes designing state of the art inpatient, exam, consultation,
telemedicine and other support care spaces for the patient and staff. These facilities are also part
of our lean operations design process to ensure that the facility will be as safe and efficient as
possible.

FIGURE 3:
Underground Utility
Work
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Section IV, Project Services Utilization
Attachment 15

Appendix B, Project Services Utilization

1110.120 c) Project Size Utilization — For areas for which there are utilization standards as
shown in Appendix B

Utilization discussion is addressed in Attachment 18 (Master Design Permit). Specific detailed
utilization will be addressed in the Construction CON application.
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Section IV, ADDITIONAL GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA FOR MASTER DESIGN
AND RELATED PROJECTS ONLY

Criterion 111.130 — Additional General Review Criteria for Master Design and Related
Projects only

Criterion 1110.130 (a) SYSTEM IMPACT OF MASTER PLAN

This is a Master Design Project for design services related to building a dedicated cancer hospital
on the Hyde Park campus of the University of Chicago Medical Center (“UCMC”) and
consolidating most, if not all, of the delivery of inpatient and outpatient cancer services in one
location. The project will help UCMC meet current demand for cancer care in both the inpatient
and ambulatory care arenas as described more fully in the following sections.

Only a few decades ago, prognosis after a cancer diagnosis was bleak, and survival rates were
low. But cancer care is transforming thanks to rapid advances in cellular biology, cancer
diagnostics, precision medicine, immunotherapy and the discovery of new drugs. The proposed
construction of a dedicated cancer hospital on UCMC’s main campus will strengthen the
delivery of transformational cancer care by improving access to critical clinical services,
participation in research, and supportive services for the whole patient. It proposes to be the first
freestanding, full-service cancer hospital in the City of Chicago. With a singular focus on cancer,
UCMC knows that dedicated cancer centers, with their state- of-the-art therapies and research
activities, often offer the greatest possibility of successful cancer treatment, Like these
institutions, UCMC already provides multi-disciplinary cancer care, including diagnostic,
surgical, medical, chemotherapy and radiation treatment, but it seeks to do so within a dedicated
facility to further improve both outcomes and patient experience.

Availability of alternative health care facilities with the planning area and the impact of the
applicant’s proposed future projects will have on the utilization of those facilities.

The proposed Master Design project seeks approval to spend funds to plan for the construction
of a new cancer hospital on the UCMC’s main campus. As an enhancement of UCMC's existing
facilities and mission to treat tertiary and quaternary care patients, the proposed project should
not have an adverse impact on the provision of care within UCMC’s planning area. In fact,
UCMC expects it to augment and complement the entire ecosystem of care on the South Side,
which is home to numerous community hospitals and FQHCs providing primary and secondary
care of its residents,

Since the founding of the Medical Center, history has been there made time and time again.
Cancer research has also grown for immeasurably inside UCMC’s walls; hormone treatments,
chemotherapy, genetic links to cancers, the foundation of modern cancer immunotherapies and
benefits of targeted therapy have all been discovered or advanced by groundbreaking research
there.
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Founded in 1973, the University of Chicago Medicine Comprehensive Cancer Center
(“UCCCC”) received its designation as an NCI-Designated Cancer Center that same year and
was designated as an NCI comprehensive cancer center in 2008.

The UCCCC’s mission is to better understand cancer’s causes, to develop treatments for cancer,
and to prevent cancer through research, clinical care, education, and community engagement.
This is accomplished through innovative clinical and research programs that emphasize
collaboration among a diverse and dedicated team of outstanding basic, translational, clinical,
and population researchers and trainees.

The center serves more than 8.5 million residents in a diverse five-county area in northeast
Illinois and northwest Indiana. More than 7,500 patients a year are diagnosed with or treated for
cancer at the South Side Chicago-based academic health system.

The UCCCC has long been recognized for its strength in basic and clinical research, particularly
its major contributions to drug development and early-phase clinical trials, Other areas of
expertise include the genetic classification of hematological malignancies and pioneering of risk-
adapted therapies, the development of new treatment paradigms in head and neck cancer, the
advancement of cancer immunology, pharmacogenomics, cancer genetics, molecular
epidemiology, and population-based cohort studies. The UCCCC also actively develops and
supports the training and career development of the next generation of cancer researchers,
espectally those from underrepresented populations.

The UCCCC’s interdisciplinary research programs include Molecular Mechanisms of Cancer,
Immunology and Cancer, Clinical and Experimental Therapeutics, and Cancer Prevention and
Control.

In addition, several large research initiatives focus on:

developing technologies and chemistry methods to detect different epigenetic markers to
understand how they affect gene and cellular function

. pioneering new imaging techniques that are helping specialists diagnose cancer earlier

. maximizing the impact of immunotherapy by identifying the determinants of antitumor
immunity, host factors that contribute to response, and potent combination therapies to
improve efficacy and durability of treatment

. leading national efforts in cancer bioinformatics and cloud computing to get an in-depth
view of cancer genomics, and gene expression

. unraveling the molecular and genetic basis of cancer metastasis in order to develop
successful treatments that will prevent cancer from spreading

. understanding the underlying causes of cancer health disparities and designing
interventions to promote cancer health equity

A central tenet of UCCCC’s mission is to promote cancer health equity among all populations
and communities, especially among groups where there are known cancer disparities based on
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race, ethnicity, language and geographic location. The team of experts specializes in cancer
control, prevention and population research while implementing new approaches to screening
and prevention. But because of COVID-19, now more than ever, it is critical to encourage local
residents to adopt a healthy lifestyle that includes cancer screenings.

Through the Office of Community Engagement and Cancer Health Equity (OCECHE), the
UCCCC has ramped up its activities that inform and empower community members to take
charge of evidence-based cancer prevention strategies. The group meets monthly with its
Community Advisory Board (CAB) to address concerns and actively partner on issues of
importance to the community.

UCMC is proud to be in the top half of the 50 best cancer hospitals recognized by the U.S. News
& World Report, one of two National Cancer Institute (“NCI”) designated cancer centers in
Iliinois, and have the most Top Doctors in Illinois noted by Chicago Magazine for cancer.
UCMC is one of 30 U.S. institutions selected as Lead Academic Participation Sites for the NCI’s
National Clinical Trials Network, with more than 300 open therapeutic trials and more than
1,000 patients enrolled per year. The Medical Center is also the first site in the USA to be
certified to administer FDA- approved Car-T cell therapies for specific blood cancers in both
adult and pediatric patients. UCMC?’s clinical teams are recognized leaders in delivering complex
cancer care; a market leader in clinical trials and delivery of novel therapies; and a proven
destination for cancer patients. The development of a new cancer hospital will have a very strong
focus, both in design and processes, on the patient and family experience, and will aim to
improve health equity in frontline care and the future of healthcare research. The clinical
approach will be multi-disciplinary and technologically advanced, with access to the newest
therapies and treatment innovations which seamlessly integrates clinical research.

With respect to alternatives, there is no other institution with equivalent breadth and depth of
expertise in the area or with comparable commitments to cancer research, emerging treatments,
community service and training the next generation of providers. Currently, UCMC is
pioneering treatment for colorectal, ovarian, stomach and neuroendocrine cancers, offering state-
of-the art therapies that include:

e HIPEC Therapy. Hyperthermic Intraperitoneal Chemotherapy (“HIPEC”) is a targeted
therapy that treats cancers existing in the abdominal cavity (e.g. colorectal, ovarian,
stomach). HIPEC is done when a patient is in surgery and after the cancer has been
removed; chemotherapy is then heated to 108 degrees and infused into the abdominal
cavity to provide targeted and concentrated treatment. This therapy provides a one-two
punch by having the tumor/cancer removed and immediately having the chemotherapy
infused. It also minimizes the side effects of chemotherapy by allowing a patient to return
to their normal lives faster. UCMC is one of three centers in the U.S, that offers this
innovative therapy. Every patient who undergoes HIPEC is assigned to a multi-
disciplinary team to ensure all his or her needs are met.
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¢ Neuroendocrine tumor (NETS) program. UCMC has the only program in the market
leader for NE tumors in the Midwest. UCMC treats neuroendocrine tumors of the GI
tract, pancreas, lung and thymus and medullary thyroid cancer with a fully dedicated
team consisting of Surgery, Oncology, Nuclear Medicine, Nursing, Pathology, Radiology
and IR. Additionally, UCMC is the only center in the Midwest to use 3D-guided
microwave ablation and the only center to that hosts a patient conference for those living
and surviving with NE cancers.

How the services proposed in the applicant’s future projects will improve access to area
residents

As an NCl-designated Comprehensive Cancer Center, UCMC recognizes its ongoing
responsibility to strive to overcome the existing barriers to high quality care and push the
boundaries of what is possible for its community. Patients who are treated at comprehensive
cancer centers experience superior survival rates compared to patients treated at facilities that
have not received this designation.! While outcomes at NCI cancer centers are already strong,
the rates of “textbook outcome” are even higher at dedicated cancer hospitals. The likelihood of
a patient surviving their cancer after 5 years at a dedicated cancer center is 17 percent higher
than at other hospitals. That is true across many types of cancer, including the most common —
breast, colorectal, lung and prostate.2

l See also Impact of care af comprehensive cancer cenlers on ouicome: Results from a populafion-based study

Julie A. Wolfson MD, MSHS Can-lan Sun PhD_Laura P. Wyalt BA Arti Humia MD__28 July 2015
https:/idol.org10.1002/cncr.20576; Among individuals aged 22 to 65 years residing in Los Angeles County with newly diagnosed
adult-onset cancer, those who were treated at NCICCCs experienced superior survival compared with those trealed at non-NCICCC
facilities. Barriers to care at NCICCCs included racefethnicity, insurance, sociosconomic status, and distance to an
NCICCC) Cancer 2015;121:3885-3893. © 2015 American Cancer Society.
https:ffacsjournals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/dei/10.1002/cncr.29576

See also Second Opinions from Comprehensive Cancer Coenters Changed Treaiment Plans for African American Patients,
American Association for Cancer Research, https:/iwww.aacr.org/about-the-aacr/inewsroominews-releases/second-opinions-from-
comprehensive-cancer-centers—changed-treatment-plans-for—african-american—patientsl. African American breast cancer patients
who received second opinions from an NCl-designated Comprehensive Cancer Center (CCC) experienced changes to their
treatment plans, according to results of a developmental study presented at the 12th AACR Conference on The Science of Cancer
Health Disparities in Racial/Ethnic Mincrities and the Medically Underserved, held here Sept. 20-23.

2 Source: Medicare Data 2006-2011, CRG adjusted, Refined Provider Algorithm; available
at http:/iwww.adcc.orgfsites/default/files/ADCC_Facts_On_Dedicated_Cancer_Centers.pdf,

See afso Dedicated Cancer Centers are More Likely to Achieve a Textbook Quicome Following Hepalopancrealic Surgery.; Mehta
R, Tsilimigras Di, Paredes AZ, Sahara K, Dillhoff M, Cloyd JM, Ejaz A, White S5, Pawlik TM. Ann Surg Oncol. 2020 Jun;27(6).1889-
1897, doi: 10.1245/510434-020-08279-y

See aiso "Whet is the Value of Undergoing Surgery for Spinal Metastases at Dedicated Cancer Centers? Azeem Tarig
Malik , Safdar N Khan, Ryan T Voskuil, John H Alexander, Joseph P Drain, Thomas J Scharschmidt. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 2021
Jun 1;479(6):1311-1319. DOI: 10.1097/CORR.0000000000001640;

ATTACHMENT 18
69

WATITE6.6



#22-004

The proposed dedicated cancer hospital will strengthen the delivery of high-quality cancer care
by improving access to critical services for its at-risk and vulnerable populations. It will bring
the cancer care home to residents on the South Side, it will increase volume of available cancer
care and clinical studies, and it will facilitate the interdisciplinary collaboration and care delivery
necessary for targeted and precision therapies.

The proposed Project will improve access to the services in the following ways:

e The proposed cancer hospital will reduce the travel burden of South Side residents

Currently 67% of residents on the South Side leave Planning Area A-03 for cancer treatment,
which means significant travel times for medical care. The burden of travel from a patient’s
residence to health care providers is an important issue that can affect the diagnosis and
treatment of cancer. Although several studies have highlighted that the travel burden can result in
delays in diagnosis and treatment of many common cancers, its role still appears to be
underestimated in the treatment of patients in clinical practice. In addition, the burden of travel
from a patient’s residence to his or her health care provider can be an important issue that can
delay and influence access to diagnosis and treatment services for cancer needs. The necessity
for repeated visits for cancer diagnosis and treatment on an outpatient or an inpatient basis makes
distance an important issue for the cancer patient to consider during the course of the disease.
One recent review suggests that the travel burden is an important factor affecting access to
appropriate and current cancer diagnosis and treatment and that 1t can worsen the achievement of
universal high-quality care for cancer patients.? It suggests that even a small increase in distance
can result in a substantial barrier for this subset of the population.

Specifically, it was noted that distance from the hospital had a negative impact on patients
affected by cancer in four primary ways: the stage at diagnosis, treatment received, prognosis,
and quality of life. In almost all the studies analyzed, patients who lived far from hospitals and
had to travel more than 50 miles had a more advanced stage at diagnosis, lower adherence to
recommended treatments, a worse prognosis, and a diminished quality of life. These four aspects
are all very important for patients and for health care policies and costs.

The National Institutes of Health also recently released a comprehensive study of the patient
economic burdens of cancer, which analyzed both patient out-of-pocket costs and time costs
associated with cancer treatment as part of its annual report to the nation on the status of cancer.
It found that, nationally, time costs represent approximately 23% ($4.9 billion/$21.1 billion) of a
patient’s economic burden.

For all cancers combined, patient out-of-pocket costs were estimated to be $16.22 billion, with
the highest costs for breast ($3.14 billion), prostate ($2.26 biilion), colorectal ($1.46 billion), and
lung ($1.35 billion) cancers, consistent with the higher incidence of these cancers. Annual time
costs in 2019 were estimated to be $4.87 billion for all cancers combined, with breast ($1.11

1. 3 Distance as a Barrier to Cancer Diagnosis and Treatment: Review of the E]terature Massimo Ambroggi,* Claudia
Biagini," Cinzia _Del % _Published online 2015 OCct

el Giovane,° Fabic Fornari,” and Luigi Cavanna
28. dol: 10.1634/theoncologist.2015-0110
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billion) and prostate ($1.04 billion) cancers accounting for almost one-half of time costs.* The
estimates of patient time were associated with round-trip travel to care, waiting for care, and
receiving care and were calculated separately for each service category using national data
sources from previously published studies and separately for metropolitan and nonmetropolitan
statistical areas.

A key aim of any cancer treatment is quality of life for cancer patients and to give patients and
their families the possibility to live their lives to the greatest extent possible. In this context,
UCMC must account for the travel burden of cancer patients, especially when so many patients
are already leaving the area, and seeks to bring more accessible cancer care to its community.

o The proposed cancer hospital will consolidate UCMC’s delivery of cancer care in one
dedicated building with expanded inpatient and ambulatory capacity

UCM has been unable to consistently meet community demand because of capacity challenges
on an inpatient and outpatient level. This shortfall is visible in ongoing denials for inpatient
transfers due to a lack of available inpatient beds and long waiting times for outpatient clinics.
Within the last five years, UCMC has expanded both its medical-surgical and ICU beds and
continues to run the beds over a 90% capacity. UCMC operates at “surge” status more than 50%
of the time, meaning that it has more than 20 patients in the emergency department waiting for
beds in an already full hospital. The proposed cancer hospital will expand existing ambulatory
capacity by 40% and inpatient capacity by 10% on the day it opens. The addition of 128 inpatient
beds, both medical-surgical and ICU, would significantly improve access and would enable
UCMC’s complex patient population to begin their personalized treatment plan faster.

Hospitals have shown to be able to increase their efficiency through enhanced communication,
improved coordination, and leveraging technology, all of which will become easier in a
dedicated facility. Propelled by a patient-centric philosophy, clinicians at Cleveland Clinic
Cancer Center launched a multidisciplinary effort in 2014 to reduce the amount of time it takes
for a patient with cancer to receive their first cancer therapy after being diagnosed, commonly
referred to as time-to-treatment initiation (“TTI”). TTI had been trending upwards to six weeks
at some academic medical centers, with such delays leading to heightened anxiety and worry in
cancer patients waiting for treatment. Cleveland Clinic was able to drive its TTI down 33% to
25 days from diagnosis for existing patients through more purposeful collaboration and by
implementing a team approach structured around disease groups beginning in 2014°,

The proposed dedicated cancer building will consolidate the continuum of cancer care in one
facility, fostering communicating, collaboration and strategic deployment of technology.

4 Annual Report to the Nation on the Stalus of Cancer, Part 2: Patient Economic Burden Associated with Cancer Care K Robin
Yabroff, PhD, Angela Mariotto, PhD, Florence Tangka, PhD, Jingxuan Zhao, MPH, Farhad (slami, MD, PhD, Hyuna Sung,
PhD, Recinda L Sherman, PhD, S Jane Henley, MSPH, Ahmedin Jemal, DVM, PhD, Elizabeth M Ward, Phonics: Journal of the
National Cancer Institute, Volume 113, Issue 12, December 2021, Pages 1670-1682, https://doi.org/10.1093/jncildjab192;
https:/iseer.cancer.gov/report_to_nation/?cid=pr_cgov_en_sharedlink_arn_Ip

2. 5 Reducing Time-to-Treatment for Newly Diagnosed Cancer Patients

How Cleveland Clinic intiated a multidisciplinary program to reduce time-to-treatment and accomplish a 33% reduction.
Alok A. Khorana, MD and Brian J. Bolwell, MD; February 14, 2019; NEJM Catalyst
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Currently, a cancer patient has multiple points of entry to UCMC system with diffuse physical
locations. The new building will be patient-centered to allow patients to have all appointments in
one area and to improve multidisciplinary collaboration and cooperation, to timely address each
patient’s administrative and clinical needs.

This ongoing improvement of care, shaped by the fusion of clinical research and clinical
practice, is at the core of UCMC’s founding mission and for its future role and contribution to
the health care system. At the center of cancer care is the patient, and the proposed master
design project will allow UCMC to continue its tradition in transformational medicine.

o The consolidation of the entire spectrum of cancer care in the proposed cancer hospital
will facilitate the interdisciplinary collaboration and care delivery necessary for targeted

and precision therapies that place the patient at the center of treatment

Fifty years ago, President Nixon signed The National Cancer Act of 1971, which established the
National Cancer Institute and signified what he first described as the nation’s “war on cancer.”
After five decades of progress, cancer researchers are at an inflection point about how they think
about cancer. They now know that cancer is not monolithic. Previously, when women were
diagnosed with ovarian cancer, everybody got the same treatment, with the treatment working
better for some than others. Then researchers began finding genetic differences in people and
their cancers. These differences explained a great deal about why cancers responded differently
to the same treatment. Cancer researchers have been able to see that, at a molecular level,
tumors are different in different tissues even in the same body, that even cancers from the same
original site, like breast cancer, can be radically different because of their molecular profiles, and
that the tumors change over time. Cancer researchers also know that cancer evolves and
reoccurs, so a patient’s treatment over time will likely change as his or her response to the
treatment changes.

Despite recent advances in the treatment of cancer, the disease remains a leading cause of death
by disease worldwide and even more so in UCMC’s own backyard. The CDC anticipates that
one in two people will be diagnosed with cancer in their lifetime, which means there is a pressing
need to ease the burden of disease, especially on those hit hardest.

Traditional therapies for cancer, or “one size fits all” approach, such as surgery, chemotherapy
and radiation, underestimate the aggressiveness and heterogeneity of cancer. Precision and
personalized medicine (“PPM?”) is the future of cancer therapy, which means the development of
specialized treatments for each type of cancer that can be tailored to specific tissues based on an
understanding of a patient’s genetic data. More and more, it is possible to identify the cancer
treatments that are likely to be most effective, minimizing damage to healthy tissues as well as
harsh side effects, which may include targeted antibodies, cancer vaccines, and T-cell therapies,
for which UCMC has been a national leader.

This ability to understand the genetic makeup of tumors can make a dramatic difference in
cancer care and can maximize the benefit of treatment based upon a person’s genes. In a
retrospective medical record review of non-small cell lung cancer patients treated at community
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hospitals patients for patients who did not undergo molecular testing and did not receive a
targeted cancer therapy and instead received chemotherapy, of the 482 patients who received
chemotherapy, the median overall survival was 12.7 months and for the 131 patients who
received a targeted therapy at some time during their treatment, the median overall survival was
31.8 months.®

Precancer care can now also mean mitigating genetic risk factors and reducing the chances of
developing an actual cancer. This can be especially important with women found to have the
BRCAI and BRCA2 genes making them more susceptible to ovarian and breast cancers. It also
means more aggressive cancer screening. Evidence is growing that wellness and lifestyle
changes, including changes in exercise, nutrition, and overall well-being, and other key social
determinants of health, support survival and recovery, and also reduce recurrences.

To this end, UCMC is a participant in the Chicago Multiethnic Prevention And Surveillance
Study (COMPASS), which is a long-term research program that looks at the impact of factors
such as lifestyle, healthcare access, the environment, and genetics on the health of Chicagoans.
This longitudinal cohort study currently has over 8,000 participants throughout the city, with a
long-term goal of 100,000 participants.

In particular, it is known that certain racial or population sub-groups have higher rates of
occurrence or severity of cancer and chronic diseases, such as diabetes, cardiovascular, and
respiratory illnesses. In Chicago, this disparity is often worse than in other parts of the United
States. COMPASS seeks to understand why this is the case, and how the health of Chicagoans is
shaped by where they live. With respect to cancer, Compass has already begun to focus on the
genetics and environment on PSA and the barriers and facilitators to further community
participation in research.

UCMC is also home to The Institute for Population and Precision Health, which was founded in
response to the US Precision Medicine Initiative in 2015 and brings together researchers from
multiple academic units across the University, and provides them with population-based
resources to tackle the most challenging problems in preventive and population medicine. One of
its most significant initiatives is participation in the NIH Connect for Cancer Prevention Study to
investigate the etiology of cancer and outcomes to inform prevention and detection. UCMC can
further flex its excellence in population health across disciplines in a dedicated cancer hospital
that will showcase its application and impact at the individual level.

UCMC believes it is imperative to try to reduce the cancer burden for all people, reduce
disparities in access to care and in clinical trials, and close the gap between researchers and
community. As a result, UCMC seeks to build a cancer hospital that has not been built before
with a data-driven design that facilitates interdisciplinary collaboration both in the lab and beside
the patient. One of the major challenges to harnessing the power of PPM is the interpretation of
enormous amounts of data, for which special technology, a robust computing infrastructure and
data processing algorithms play a major role. The design planning for the new cancer hospital

e Genomic Profiling of Advanced Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer in Community Settings: Gaps and Opportunities, Journal of Clinical Lung
Cancer,Vol. 18, Issue 6 {Nov. 1, 2017), Gutierrez, Choi, Lanman, Pecora, Schuitz, Gokdberg.https://doi.org/10.1016/j.¢llc.2017.04.004

ATTACHMENT 18
103

185217566



#22-004

will contemplate an environment wired to consume and analyze rich stores of patient data to
better flex a “molecule to medicine” approach, to improve outcomes for patients and, ultimately,
to save lives.

What the potential impact on area residents would be if the proposed services were not to
be replaced or developed;

UCMC is a tertiary and quaternary care center that closely collaborates with community
hospitals and other providers in its planning area, including local providers of primary and
secondary medical services.

From 2014-2018, the residents on the South Side of Chicago were 28.6% more likely to receive a
cancer diagnosis than residents in other parts of the City and 25.2% more likely than others in the
state. Similarly, for similar periods of time, 14.9 deaths per 100,000 residents from breast cancer
(2013-2017) compared to 12 in Illinois and 19.9 colorectal cancer deaths compared to 13 for
Ilinois.

Cancer Diagnoses (2014-2018) per 100,000 Residents
South Side | South Side
South Side Chicago ! lllinois vs. Chicago | vs lllinois
All Cancer 665.09 517.11 | 531.12 28.6% 25.2%
Prostate Cancer 196.74 174.97 | 174.03 12.4% 13.0%
Cervical Cancer 15.52 15.01 10.45 3.4% 48.5%
Distant/Systemic Cancer 184.55 | 136.94 | 132.1 34.8% 39.7%
Other Cancers 196.44 140.85 163.9 39.5% 19.9%
Colorectal Cancer 69.09 66.64 63.03 3.7% 9.6%

While UCMC has made significant strides in the use of screening, the average stage of cancer at

diagnosis remains higher on the South Side compared to the rest of Cook County and Illinois.
Without a significant financial investment in the medical infrastructure of the South Side,
cancer’s devastating effects will continue to be distributed unequally with South Side’s most
vulnerable residents.

The anticipated role of the facility in the delivery system, including anticipated patterns of

Cancer 5

Screening

Rates - % of

Population

South Side Chicago Cook County | Illinois
Colorectal Screening, 2018 57.12 60.1 61.9 63.23
Pap smear use,
2018 80.76 81.7 82.7 83.55
Mammography Use, 2018 80.44 75.9 75.7 73.23

patient referral and any contractual or referral agreement between the applicant and other
providers that will result in the transfer of patients to the applicant’s facility.
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UCMC seeks to enhance and optimize access to world-class cancer care and clinical research
which will be achieved by building a dedicated cancer hospital.

The proposed Master Design project will enhance access to cancer care, will provide major
improvements in the environment for patients who receive services there, and will facilitate
UCMC’s three-part mission in clinical care, teaching and research, which benefit the entire
ecosystem of care on the South Side. The project does not seek to change the role of UCMC and
its cancer capabilities from what it is today, it just seeks to make sure that the UCMC is more
widely available to those who critically need its services.

This project, along with UCMC’s work with 12 other hospitals and community health centers in
the South Side Healthy Community Organization (“SSHCO™), seeks to solidify UCMC’s role as
a tertiary and quaternary health care provider in the delivery system on the South Side of
Chicago, optimizing access to advanced cancer care, and continuing to link patients with primary
care. The SSHCO will also dedicate access specifically to FQHC referrals in order to meet the
needs of the most vulnerable patients and to enhance completion rates of referrals to specialty
care,

The new facility would continue to be located in Planning Area A-03.

Criterion 1110.130 (b) MASTER PLAN OR RELTED F UTURE PROJECTS

The anticipated completion date(s) for the future construction or modernization projects;

The master design project should be completed by December 31, 2023. At this time, it is
anticipated that construction of the cancer hospital would be December 31%, 2026. All necessary
regulatory approvals, including CON permit, will be obtained.

Evidence that the proposed number of beds and services to be developed pursuant to the
master design project must be consistent with the bed or service need determination of 77
Ill. Adm. Code. 1100; or if bed or service need determinations do not support the proposed
number of beds and services, there are existing factors that support the need for that
development at the time of project completion.

Although programming for the cancer center will be subject to change while the design phase is
in progress, the following services are the current estimates of what the net impact on services
with specific review criteria will be when the new cancer center building is complete:
* 112 additional Medical-Surgical Beds
¢ 16 additional ICU Beds
* 3 Linear Accelerators and 2 CT Simulators for Radiation Therapy - a reduction from the
current 4 Linear Accelerators and 3 CT Simulators
© A combination of relocating current equipment and purchasing new equipment to
replace current equipment is yet to be determined
¢ Shell space suitable for either an additional Linear Accelerator or equipment for a new
technology related to Radiation Therapy in the future
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* Relocation of Mammography and Breast Ultrasound equipment from the current location
in UCMC’s ambulatory center
Relocation of PET equipment from the current location in UCMC’s ambulatory center
One additional MRI unit
One additional CT Scan unit

Evidence will be summarized below for the services above that are a net increase: Medical-
Surgical Beds, ICU Beds, MRI, and CT Scan. The other services noted above will be relocated
from current locations on campus, either moving current equipment, or retiring current
equipment and replacing with new equipment. When there will be no net increase in the number
of machines, evidence for an increase in utilization will not be addressed in this application.

According to the Inventory of Health Care Facilities and Services and Need Determination
released in October 2021, Planning Area A-03 has a combined excess of 518 medical surgical
and pediatric beds. However, the medical-surgical beds across the planning area are not
interchangeable, and the raw bed numbers provide an incomplete picture of the need for inpatient
capacity in Planning Area A-03. The acuity mix of UCMC is more than 45% higher than that of
any other hospital in the Planning Area, meaning that UCMC’s medical surgical and ICU beds
are used for more acutely ill patients — see table below. UCMC also sees a higher volume of
patients. In 2019, UCMC had close to 24,000 admissions with the next highest hospital in its
planning area — Mercy — had only a fourth as many admissions. In 2021, UCMC had more than
25,000 admissions even when excluding pediatric and obstetric patients — see table below. And
these admissions do not account for the hundreds of transfer requests from nearby safety net
hospitals that UCMC must turn down because of its shortage of available beds.

Hospital Discharges of Patients Age 18 and Over, Case Mix
Excluding Obstetrics (7/1/20 to 6/30/21) Index
University of Chicago Medical Center 25,446 2.444
Advocate Trinity 5,975 1.671
Insight Hospital and Medical Center 2,339 1.530
Holy Cross Hospital 3,969 1.461
South Shore Hospital 744 1.433
St. Bernard Hospital 3,793 1.313
Roseland Community Hospital 2,466 1.304
Jackson Park Hospital 2,187 1.237
Provident Hospital 366 1.196

Source: ITHA COMPData

As part of the ongoing renovation of Mitchell Hospital as part of CON Project 16-008, UCMC
has not staffed the full complement of licensed Medical-Surgical beds as units are opened and
closed for renovation work. The number of staffed beds has gone up in stages, starting in May
2018 through December 2021. During this bed expansion over time, with the exception of the
first three months at the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic in spring 2020, the staffed
Medical-Surgical beds ran above 90% utilization each month. Similarly, the full complement of
ICU beds has not yet been opened during renovation, yet ICU beds ran at greater than 60%
utilization of the licensed number of beds from 2017 to present, even during 2020 when the onset
of COVID-19 caused the cancellation of elective procedures and inpatient stays. In the summer
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and fall of 2021, ICU occupancy often exceeded 90% utilization, Bed utilization data is
presented in detail in the next section of this application. Planning Area A-03 is still an
underserved area, especially when compared to the outmigration in its area.

The rate of cancer is increasing overall, with the incidence higher in the South Side communities
than elsewhere in the city and state, but the demand for cancer treatment is not felt equally
among providers. The increased demand for cancer care may soon outpace capacity of hospitals
and inhibit their ability to provide timely treatment. Both the high acuity that UCMC treats and
the incidence of cancer on the South Side, contribute to the pressing need for additional beds. A
recently retrospective, hospital-level study using data from the National Cancer Database from
January 1, 2007, to December 31, 2016, found that patient volume increased more rapidly at
NCl-designated and academic centers than at community hospitals, with particularly high growth
at referral centers at NCl-designated facilities. Specifically, in this study sample that included
more than four million patients treated at 1351 hospitals, patient volume increased 40% at NCI
centers, 25% at academic centers, and 8% at community hospitals. The mean annual patient
volume growth rate was 45.2 patients at NCI hospitals and 13.9 patients at academic hospitals
compared with 2.0 patients at community hospitals

The study also found that, for most of the cancers studied, TTI increased regardless of hospital
type. This trend may partially reflect the increasing complexity of treatment decisions and a
desire to consider the results of molecular testing when making frontline treatment decisions.
Because of the potential association of such delays with emotional distress and survival,
continued efforts to ensure timely cancer treatment are warranted.

The health care needs of the population in Planning Area A-03 are also unique, with some of the
highest rates of disease and mortality, which has only been compounded by the COVID-19
public health emergency. This incidence of disease isn’t accounted for the bed utilization
predicted for the future and only amplifies the critical need for additional resources.

It has been over a year since the COVID-19 pandemic created an unprecedented public health
crisis throughout the world. Although the threat of COVID-19 has decreased due to vaccination
efforts, its devastating effects will be felt for years to come. Especially concerning is the drop in
cancer screening rates, with the most dramatic reduction in screening occurring in medically
underserved communities. This has led to decreases in diagnosis and treatment and is expected to
result in thousands of preventable deaths.

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the screening rates for breast and
cervical cancers fell by more than 80%, with the most severe declines occurring in populations of
low-income women of color.

The threat of worsening cancer outcomes has been recognized by the international cancer
research community as a leading priority. In a June 2020 editorial, the director of the National
Cancer Institute, expressed concerns about the mortality related to breast and colorectal cancer in

? Frosch ZAK, lllenberger N, Mitra N, et al. Trends in Patient Volume by Hospital Type and the Association of These Trends With Time to Cancer
Treatment Initiation. JAMA Netw Open. 2021:4{7}:e2115675, dou:10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2021.15675
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particular. Early projections showed that if these trends continue, mortality for these cancer types
is expected to increase by nearly 10,000 in the next 10 years in the U.S. alone as a result of
missed cancer screenings and treatment, assuming a disruption of 6 months. However, the
pandemic has lasted far longer than anyone anticipated, so the effects could be greater. It is not
surprising that the underserved communities comprising Black and Hispanic people are
disproportionately affected.

Both due to the high acuity that UCMC treats and the incidence of disease, including cancer on
the South Side, contribute to the pressing need for additional beds to ensure timely access to
care.

The addition of beds will not cause any duplication of services because of the different roles
served by UCMC as an academic medical center providing tertiary and quaternary care and the
community hospitals with a primary and secondary care focus.

Evidence that the utilization of the proposed beds and services will meet or exceed the
utilization targets established in 77 Ill. Adm Code 1100 within 2 years after completion of
the future construction or modification projects. Documentation shall include:

a. Historical service/bed wutilization levels;

b. Projected trends in utilization, including the rationale and projection assumptions
used in those projections;

c. Anticipated market factors such as referral patterns or changes in population
characteristics (age, density, wellness) that would support utilization projections;
and

d. Anticipated changes in the delivery of the service due to changes in technology,
are delivery techniques or physician availability that would support the projected
utilization levels.

Medical-Surgical Beds

UCMC is currently renovating beds in Mitchell Hospital as part of CON Project 16-008, which
was altered in September 2021, and is now licensed for 481 Medical-Surgical beds. UCMC
opened the Center for Care and Discovery in 2013, which was licensed for 300 Medical-Surgical
beds at that time. Thirty-eight (38) additional Medical-Surgical bed licenses were then added as
part of CON Project 13-025 in October 2013, which reactivated beds in Mitchell Hospital. CON
Project 16-008 was then approved in May 2016, and an alteration was approved in September
2021.

UCMC anticipates that 116 additional Medical-Surgical bed licenses will be requested in the
CON application subsequent to this Master Design Project, which would bring the total Medical-
Surgical beds licenses up to 597.

The Medical-Surgical bed units are being renovated in stages, and UCMC has not yet opened its
full complement of 481 licensed Medical-Surgical beds, which prevents it from demonstrating
that it exceeds 90% utilization for two consecutive years. However, with the exception of the
initial COVID-19 surge in spring of 2020 when elective patient activity was significantly
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downscaled, UCMC has consistently run the Medical-Surgical beds that were available for
staffing at the time at greater than 90% utilization.

The growth in utilization from 2013 to 2021, projected forward to 2029, which will be the 2™
year of operation of the new beds, justifies up to 718 Medical-Surgical beds at 90% utilization,
as shown in the tables below. This exceeds the 597 Medical-Surgical beds anticipated. Note that
the years shown below are based on UCMC fiscal years ending June 30" of each year.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

Med/Surg 90%

Beds Utilization
2013 300 90,841 83% NO
2014 338 104,256 85% NO
2015 338 115,122 93% YES
2018 506 118,273 64% NO
2017 506 122,036 66% NC
2018 506 133,479 72% NO
2019 506 141,480 77% NO
2020 506 130,579 71% NO
2021 506 146,401 79% NO
2022 481" 157,594 90%
2023 597 168,786 T7%
2024 597 179,979 83%
2025 597 191,172 88%
2026 597 202,364 93%
2027 597 213,557 98%
2028 597 224,750 >100%
2029 597 235943 >100% YES

* Licensed Medical-Surgical beds changed in September 2021 as part of alteration of CON
Project 16-008

Justification for added beds:

Calculation of Beds Justified Two Years After Project Completion

Year | Med/Surg Days | Comments
Historical, vear ending 6/30:

2013 90,841
2014 104,256
2015 115,122
2016 118,273
2017 122,036
2018 133,479
2019 141,480
2020 130,579
2021 146,401

Average annual growth rate = 7.65% (61.16% total growth from 2013 10 2021)

Projected: At 7.65% per year
2022 157,594
2023 168,786
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2024 179,979

2025 191,172

2026 202,364

2027 213,557 Occupy new beds

2028 224,750

2029 235,943 2 years after operations begin

o Beds justified at 90% occupancy = 235,943/365/0.90 = 718
e Beds requested = 597 Medical-Surgical beds (481 current Medical-Surgical beds + 116
new Medical-Surgical beds)

Notes: This table includes observation patients treated in licensed Medical-Surgical beds;
UCMC has operated dedicated observation beds starting in FY 14 and continuing to present; at
present UCMC has 30 dedicated observation beds set up and staffed; days in dedicated
observation beds are not included

Data Source: EPIC ADT System —~ Midnight Census
ICU Beds

UCMC is currently renovating beds in Mitchell Hospital as part of CON Project 16-008, which
was altered in September 2021, and is now licensed for 142 ICU beds. UCMC opened the
Center for Care and Discovery in 2013, which was licensed for 114 ICU beds at that time.
Twelve (“12”} additional ICU bed licenses were then added as part of CON Project 14-013 in
August 2014, which was a project to build out the shelled space on the 3™ and 4" floors of the
Center for Care and Discovery, relocate beds to those floors, and add ICU beds. CON Project
16-008 was then approved in May 2016, and an alteration was approved in September 2021.

UCMC has exceeded 60% utilization for ICU beds each year since 2017, based on a license for
146 ICU beds, which has since been reduced to 142, The 37,663 patient days seen in
FY21would justify 172 ICU beds at 60% utilization.

UCMC anticipates that 12 additional ICU bed licenses will be requested in the CON application
subsequent to this Master Design Project, which would bring the total ICU bed licenses up to
154. The requested number is lower than the 172 justified above.

In addition, if the same method of growth used previously to evaluate need for Medical-Surgical
beds is applied to ICU beds, volumes justify up to 244 ICU beds at 60% utilization in 2029,
which would be the 2™ year of operation of the new building, as shown in the tables below.
Note that the years shown below are based on UCMC fiscal years ending June 30" of each year.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
ICU Beds 60%
Utilization
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2013 114 26,544 64% YES
2014 114 28,898 69% YES
2015 126 31,290 68% YES
2016 146 31,114 58% NO
2017 146 32,629 61% YES
2018 146 35,254 66% YES
2019 146 36,348 68% YES
2020 146 35,000 65% YES
2021 146 37,663 71% YES
2022 142* 39,635 76%
2023 158 41,607 72%
2024 158 43,579 76%
2025 158 45,551 79%
2026 158 47,523 82%
2027 158 49,495 86%
2028 158 51,468 89%
2029 158 53,440 93% YES

Justification for added beds:

Calculation of Beds Justified Two Years After Project Completion

Year | ICU Days | Comments

Historical, year ending 6/30:

2013 26,544

2014 28,898

2015 31,290

2016 31,114

2017 32,629

2018 35,254

2019 36,348

2020 35,000

2021 37,663

Average annual growth rate = 5.24% (41.89% total growth from 2013 to 2021)

Projected: At 5.24% per year

2022 39,635

2023 41,607

2024 43,579

2025 45,551

2026 47,523

2027 49,495 | Occupy new beds

2028 51,468

2029 53,440 | 2 years after operations begin

Beds justified at 60% occupancy = 53,440/365/0.60 = 244
Beds requested = 154 ICU beds (142 current ICU beds + 12 new ICU beds)

Source: EPIC ADT System — Midnight Census

CT Scan

In CY20, UCMC’s CT Scan utilization justified 11 units, and in CY21 justified 13 units, based
on the state standard, and the rounding up methodology. UCMC anticipates requesting one
additional CT Scan unit as part of the cancer center project, bringing the total from 8 units to 9
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units, which is still below the number justified by the state standard. In addition, an increase of
utilization proportional to the increase in staffed beds expected by CY29 (20%) would justify 15
CT Scan units, which is also more than the 9 units expected at that time.

Note that the years shown below are based on Calendar Years ending December 31% of each
year, consistent with the IDPH Annual Questionnaire.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
CT Scan 7,000 Visits
Per
Machine
Per Year
2016 7 Units 44,764 49,000 YES
2017 8 Units 50,567 56,000 YES
2018 8 Units 64,393 56,000 YES
2019 8 Units 70,063 56,000 YES
2020 8 Units 71,548 56,000 YES
2021 8 Units 84,053 56,000 YES
2022 8 Units 85,734 56,000
2023 8 Units 85,734 56,000
2024 8 Units 85,734 56,000
2025 8 Units 85,734 56,000
2026 8 Units 85,734 56,000
2027 9 Units 100,864 63,000
2028 9 Units 100,864 63,000 YES
Justification for added CT Scan:
Calculation of Beds Justified Two Years After Project Completion
Year | CT Scan Visits | Comments
Historical, year ending 12/31:
2016 44,764
2017 50,567
2018 64,393
2019 70,063
2020 71,548
2021 84,053
Projecled:
2022 85,734 | 2% Growth in Staffed Beds
2023 85,734
2024 85,734
2025 85,734
2026 85,734
2027 100,864 | 18% Growth in Staffed Beds
2028 100,864

CT Scan justified at 7,000 visits per machine = 15 {100,864 visits / 7,000 visits per machine —
rounded up)
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MRI

In CY20, UCMC’s MRI utilization justified 9 units, and in CY21 justified 11 units, based on the
state standard, and the rounding up methodology. UCMC anticipates requesting one additional
MRI unit as part of the cancer center project, bringing the total from 9 units to 10 units, which is
still below the number justified by the state standard. In addition, an increase of utilization
proportional to the increase in staffed beds expected by CY29 (20%) would justify 13 MRI units,
which is also more than the 10 units expected at that time.

Note that the years shown below are based on Calendar Years ending December 31 of each
year, consistent with the IDPH Annual Questionnaire.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MEET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
- ETC.
MRI 2,500
Procedures
Per
Machine
Per Year
2016 9 Units 20,640 22,500 YES
2017 9 Units 22,549 22,500 YES
2018 9 Units 22,659 22,500 YES
2019 9 Units 24,259 22,500 YES
2020 9 Units 21,723 22,500 YES
2021 9 Units 26,557 22,500 YES
2022 9 Units 27,088 22,500
2023 9 Units 27,088 22,500
2024 9 Units 27,088 22,500
2025 g Units 27,088 22,500
2026 g Units 27,088 22,500
2027 10 Units 31,868 25,000
2028 10 Units 31,868 25,000 YES
Justification for added MRI:
Calculation of Beds Justified Two Years After Project Completion
Year | MRI Procedures | Comments
Historical, year ending 12/31:
2016 20,640
L2017 22,549
2018 22,659
2019 24,259
2020 21,723
2021 26,557
Projected:
2022 27,088 | 2% Growth in Staffed Beds
2023 27,088
2024 27,088
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2025 27,088
2026 27,088
2027 31,868 | 18% Growth in Staffed Beds
2028 31,868

MRI justified at 2,500 visits per machine = 13 (31,868 visits / 2,500 visits per machine —
rounded up)

Criterion 1110.130 (c) RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUSLY APPROVED MASTER

DESIGN PROJECTS

Schematic architectural plans for all construction or modification approved in the master
design permit;

The estimated project cost for the proposed project and also for the total
construction/modification project approved in the master design permit;

An item by item comparison of the construction elements (i.e., site, number of buildings,
number of floors, etc.) in the proposed project to the approved master design permit; and

A comparison of proposed beds and services to those approved under the master design
permit,

This section will be addressed in the subsequent construction CON application.

9521756 4
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Section V, Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service
Attachment 30

Clinical Services Other Than Categories of Service

Discussion of these services is included in Attachment 18. Those services will be more directly
addressed in the Construction CON Application.
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Section VI, Availability of Funds
Attachment 33

Because UCMC has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch’s or Standard and Poor’s rating
agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s, this Section is not applicable. A copy of UCMC’s bond
ratings letters are included in Attachment 34.
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Attachment 34
Financial Viability Waiver

UCMC’s most recent bond ratings from Fitch Ratings (AA-), Standard & Poor’s (AA-) and
Moody’s (Al) are attached.
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b} 7 Wond Trade Center
MOODY S 250 Greenwich Street
INVESTORS SERVICE New York 10007

www. moadys com

Masch 31, 2020

Ms. Ann McColgan

Vice Preaadent, Chiel Trensury Qfficer
The Ussiversity of Chicaga Medrcal Cenier
150 Harvester Druve, Suite 300

Busr Ridge, IL 60527

Dear Ms. McColgan:

We wish to inform you that on December 3, 2019, Moody's Tnvestons Scrvice downgraded UCMC's long term
mting to Al from A3 Al the same time, Moody's upgraded Ingalls Health System's (1) rating, to Al from
Bang The outlook for both UCMC and Ingalls Health Sysiem has boen revised to stable From negative.

Credn mnings issued by Moody's Investors Service, Inc, and its affiliates (“Moody's"™) ane Moody's current
upinions of the reletive future credit risk of entities, credit commitments, or debit or deba-Jike securitics and are not
statements &f current or histoeical fact. Moady's crodil ratings address credit risk only and do not address my
othet risk, including but not limited to: liquidity nsk, marker value risk, o peice volatility.

This Ictter uses capitalized torms and rating symbaols that are defined or referenced cither in Moody 's Definitions
and Symbols Guide or MIS Code of Professional Conduet as of the date of this letter, both published on

wn ooy s com- The Credit Ratings will be publicly disseminated by Moody's through normal print and
electronic media 23 well a8 in responise o verbal requests to Moody's Rating Desk. Moody's related resenrch and
analyses will elso be published on worw moodis com and tay be further digtributed as otherwise agreed in
wriling with us,

Moodys Credit Ratings or smy vornsponding outlook, if assigned, will be subject to revision, suspanion or
wiihdmwal, or may be placed on review, by Moody's ot any time. without notice, in the sole < ion of
Moody's. For the most curreni Credit Rating, please visit www o o SO

Moody’s has not consented and will not consent 1o being named s an expert under applicable seeuritiea laws,
such a3 section 7 of the Socurities Act of 1933, The assignment of a rating does not create o fiduciary relaionship
between Moody's and you or between Moody's and other recipients of o Oredit Rating. Moody's Credit Ratings
are nol and do not provide investment advice or recortmmendations to purchase, sell or bold particalar securitics
Maoody’s issues Credit Ralings with the expectotion and understanding that each investor will make its own
evaluation of each socurily that is undes considerution for purchase, sale of holding.

Moody’s adopts all neceasary inensures so that the infornatun o uses in ussigning & Credit Rating is of sufficient
quality and from sources Moody's cubsiders to be refiable inclding, when appropriate, independen thind-party
sources. However, Mouody®s 15 not an suditor and cannot in every instance independently validate or verify
information received in the reting process. Moody's cxpects and is relying spon you possessing all lega) rights
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Mereh 11, 2020 Ms. Ann MeColgan
Vice Prendent, Chief Treasury Officer
The University of Chicago Medicul Center
150 Hervester Drive, Suite 300
Burr Rdgpe, IL 60527

and requined consents to disclose the information to Moody's, and that such information is not subject to any
rextrictions Lhal would prevent use by Moody's for its ratings process. [n wsnigning the Credit Ratings, Moody's
hes relied upon the truth, y, and compl of the informatien supplicd by you or an yous behalf 1o
Moady's. Meody's expocis that you will, and is relying upon you to, 00 an ongoing basiy, promgly provide
Moody"s with all information neccssary in order for Moady's 1o accurately and inimely momitor the Credit Ratings,
including current financial end siatistical information.

Under no circumstances shall Moody's heve any liability {whether in contract, toft or ctherwise) to noy person or
entily for any loss, injury or damage or cost caused by, resulting fvom, vs relating 10, in whole or in part, direcdy
or indirceily, any action of crror (aneglipeat or otherwise) on the pant of, or ather circumsiance or contingency
within or cutside the cantre! of, Moody"s or any of its or its effiliztes’ directors, officers, cmployees or agents in
connectiom with the Credit Rutings. ALL INFORMATION, INCLUDING THE CREIMT RATING, ANY
FEEDBACK OR OTHER COMMUNICATION RELATING THERETC IS PROVIDED "AS IS”
WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. MOODY'S MAKES NO
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY,
TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR
PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH INFORMATION.

Any non-public information discussed with os revealed 1o you must be kepn confidential and only disclosed either
(i) to your tegal counsel scting in their capacaty as such; (ii) to your other authorized agents acving In therr
capacity ax such with a nced to know that have catered into son-disclosure agroements with Moody's in the form
provided by Moody’s and (i1i) a3 required by applicable law or regulation. You agree to cousc your employoes,
affilimes, sgents and advises 1o keep non-public information confidential

1T there i3 a conflict betorcen the terms of this rating letter and aay rekated Muoody's rating epplication, the tenms of
the exceutod rating applicetion will govern and supercede this raling deticr.

Should you have eny questions regarding the above, plesse do not hesitate to contact the analy3t assigned o dhis
transaction, 1iana Lee ot 212-553.4747

Sincerely,

Woody s Tusestinns Sansive Tox.
Moodys Investors Service inc.
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o Fiich Affrms Unoversty of Chicago Medical Center's {IL} IDH o1 'AA-; Curtoak SLablo

FitchRatings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms University of Chicago
Medical Center's (IL) IDR at 'AA-";
Outlook Stable

Thu 18 Mar, 2021 - 2200 PMED

Fich Ratings - Chicago- 16 Mar 2021 Fitch Ratmgs has atfirmed Uneversity of Chicago Mesical Center's (MCMC) ‘AA-
lssuer Defauit Rating {IDR) and the ‘AA- rating on approxdmately $584 million of revenue bonds issued by the Hinos
Finance Authority on behait of the UCMC obligated group

The Rating Outlook remamns Stable.

SECURITY

Debt payrments are securedby a pledge of unrestricted receivables of the UCMC abligated group. The obfigated group
includes the majority of UCMC activitics. The obligated group was amended in June 2019 to include the majority of
Ingadis Health System operations (inchuding ingatls Memorial Hospitall ingalia is now the core of UCMC's Community
Health and Haspital Divisson {C HHD). The University of Chicago {UChicago, IDR: AA+) & not ohiigated on UCMC
bonds,

{Unless otherwise noted, *UCMC refers collectively to the flagship academic medical center (AMC) medicat center
€ampus located on the UChicago carrgnus and CHHD)

Feedback

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

The ‘AA rating is driven by UCMC's strong financlal profile assessment inthe context of the system's midrange
reverne detensibllity and strong operating risk profile s, UCMC's operating margins continue to be
affected by the coronavirus pandemic, Fitch befieves that the system’s operating platform remains fundamentally
strong, in part because of the very tight atignment with UChicago and UCMCs broad reach of high-aculty services,
Fitch expects UCMCs capital-related ratios toremain strong in its forward-looking scenario analysis. These
characteristics are balanced by 3 high degree of competition in the Chicagn area and contined challenges 3t CHHD.

ATTACHMENT 3V
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182021 Fch Afiora Universlty of Chicaga Medical Coror's (1L} DR a2 'Af'; Outiock Siable

The outhreak of coronavirus created an unceriain and ganerally challenging erwironment for the erdire healthcare
Industry, While Fitch cxpects the not-for-profit healthcare sector to continue to face uncertainty and corsiderable
preasure In the coming months, with the rellaut of coronavirus vaccines, the bang-term outloak fior the tector should
stabilize.

UCMC's Outlook remanns Stable, although capital-retated ratlos ave an the kuwer end of the 'AA' hnancisl prohie when
subjected Lo a stress event in its forward-ooking scenarin analysis. |f the coronavirus or any other operating
disruption affects WCMC disproportionally a downgrade could be warrented over the longer term,

KEY RATING DRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility: ‘bbb

Broad Reach for High-Aculty Services ina Competitive Market

UCMC faces significant competition inthe Chicago area, Inclisding fram ather prominent AMCs. The systern has
conslderable reach for high-acuity acadermic services. Moreaver. LICMC ks a component untt of the UChicago. The
service sres quality of the broad Chiesgo areais generally stabje despite the angolng pressures from the coronavirys
andrelated economic chadlenges,

Operating Risk: ‘o'

Operating Margins Prossured by Coronavirus, Long-Term Rebound Expected

UCMC s operating risk profile b considered reasnnabily strong, despite the pressures from the coronavins pandemilc,
Over the konger term, Fitch expects the systerm's operating EBITDA margin to remainbroadly consistent witha strong
profile, Capital spendng plans are manageablc and remain Rexible.

Feedback

Financial Profile: 'aa’

Strong Capital-Related Ratios inthe Forward Look Despite the Pandemic

WCMC's hnancial profile remains strong, despite pressures from the coronavirus pandemic.

ASYMMETRIC ADDITIONAL RISK CONSIDERATIONS ATTACHMEN‘[‘ 3 L
There are no asyinmetric risk fact ors associated with LCMC's rating,
Itipsih @ TG pubiEo- Snance/oh- BT wilty.of chicago-rmadieal. comier-ILidr. o1-90.-outlock g Le g 18-403-2021 2410
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NHE Fich Afies Universty o Chcago Medcn Canter's 1LY IDR a1 AA.: QuSook Statee

RATING SENSITIVITIES
Fartars that could, indrvidually or collectively, Jead to positive rating action‘upgrade:

--Maintenance of adjusted operating EBITDA margin consistently above 99%;

-Considerable rebound Inunrestricted liquidity lovels icadmg to much stronger capital-retatod ratios, such =4 a cash-
to-adjusted deb ratio inexcess of 200%,

Factars that could, individuatly or collectively, bead to negative rating action/downgrade:

--Greater and longer than expected compression in operating margina beyond what Fitch currently expects,
particularly if che operating EBITDA marginis capected to remain notably belaw 7% for 2n extended period, which
would lead to an operating risk profile moro consistent with 8 midrange assessment;

-“Weaker balance sheet metricd - either inoreased tabllities (e.g., defined benefit pension obligations] or lower
unrestricted liquidity « beading to thinmer capital-relsted ratios inthe long term more consistent with an '
assessment

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

ntemationa] scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and infrastrurture isuers have a best-case rating
upgrade scenario [defined as the 99th percentile of rating transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three
notohes over a three-ypear rating horiron; and aworsl-case rating downgrode scenarlo idefined as the 99th percentile
of rating transitions, measured in 3 negative direction) of throe notches over throe years. The complete span of best
endworst-case soenario credit ratings for all ratng categories ranges from AAA to ‘D' Best- and worstcase scenara
credit ratings are baved onhistorical pesfarmance, For more Information aboud the methodology used Lo determine
sector-specific best- and worst-care soenario credit ratings, visit [l pa/Avweefitchralings. comsitesre/ 101 1157§).

CREDIT PROFILE

UCMC i 5 magor AMC system, whose lagihip location is on the campus of UChicago. in 2014, Ingalls jained UCMC,

and now constituies the majority of UCMC's CHHD. While UChicago is not obligated on UCMC's bonds, UCMC is a
component unit of the university and there ks very tight alignment between the two organizations {UChitago would be 3
required to assume UCMC's debd only if the university terminated its affiliation agreement or iease with the medical

center). UCMC's tolal operating reveniue messured more than $2.5 billion in audited fncad 2020 {June 3 year-end}

which includes CHHD.

REVENUE DEFENSIBILITY

UCMC's payor mix Is modest. Cambined Medicald and setf-pay accounted for roughly 28% of gross revenue in fiscal
2020, As an AMC with trauma services and 3 sireable children’s hospital {Comer Children's Hospltal], high expasure to
Medicald ks expected and s not refloctive of the overall fingncial health of UCM. Bath finals and Indiana expanded
Medicaid under the Affordable Care Act (ACA)
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] g Fiteh Afinrs Unisaraly of Ciichgs Wedical Conler's {IL} IDR o 'AA- Cutioor Siatle

Despitc facing considerable competition In the senvice ares, Fitch considers UKCMC's marked pasition to be comistent
withamidrange assessment. The primary service area (PSA} includes the south Chicago matro area and extends well
into Northwest Indiana. The total service area (FSA) cxtends throughout the entirety of the Chicaga metro area.

The TSA is very competitive, with no individual hospital capturing more than 4.8% market share {Northwestern
Memorial Hospital, flagship of AAs rated Northwestern Memorial HealthCare}. UCMC is the third largast hospital in
the TSA by market share, capturing 3.4% TSA sharcin fiscal 2020 (up steadlly from 2. 1% in calendar 2012, due to
growth strategles inrecent years),

UCMC achioves the midrange market position due to the system corsiderahie reach for very high-acuity services
aided by the very tight relationslip with UChicago, UCMC isamong the industry natlonal leaders for reseerch-
ofiented acadernic clinical services, including oncolugy. The university is the sole corporate member of UCMC and
appaints the entirety of the board. To illustrate the level of Integration, the UChicaga's Binlngleal Sciences Division
{BSD), of which UCHMC Is & fundamentat part, comprises roughly half of the university's budgcet. In addition to
governance averlap, there it corsiderable management integration between UCMC and the university: for example,
Dr. Kenneth Polonsky, the Exccutive Vice President of the BSD s atso the President of the UlChicagn Medcine Health
Systam {of which UCMC s the majotity cosnpanent).

The sevvice area economy is broadly stable, although llikke the metne region continues to be affected by the current
etonomic environment, Novertheless, 352 major metro area, Chicago benefits from a diversihed economy. Population
trends in Cook County are stagnant to dedlining. Will County, imerediately south of Cocdk, has experienced modest
populatian growth,. The rrediah household income level in Conk County is just above the national average, and well
above average in Will County. The unemployment rate In the Chicago-Napetvilie-Elgin MSA a3 of the December 2020
preliminary data was the nations! average {per the U8, Bureaw of Labor Statistics)

OPERATING RISK

Fitch expects UCMUC's operating EBITDA margin in the long-term to remain consistent with & maderately strong
profile assessment, although recopnizes that the coronavirus pandenvic and related economic pressures will continue
to present headwinds to aperating resufts. Prior to the outbreak, managoment was slready engaped In.a material
experse savings initiative and Fitch belicves that UCMC's operating platiorm is fundamentatly sound, and ng-term
the adjusted opersting EBITEA margia should remalnin the 8% range.

Feedback

Prior to the coronavirus, UCMC's adjusted operating EBITDA margin mweraged neacy 8% betwoen fiscal 2015 and
fiscal 2019 (Fitch treats equity transfers Lo the university a an operating xpense: while Fitch considers the roughly
$72 milllon transfer as an operating capenso, this expense represents investmvents in UCMC's operating platform
supporting arcas such as dinical research and physician integration.) UCMC's operating EBITDA margin compressed
o 5.9% in hacal 2018, due in part to continued integration of the CHHD Inta tho system. The marginrebounded to
adjusted 74% in fiscaf 2019,

Infiscal 2020, UCMC's ad]usted operating margin mepsured -0.8% and operating EBITDA margin 6.0%. Like virtually
allhealth systerms in the US., UCMC faced considerable operating gressure from the coronavirs, Expenses increased
above budget as the system secured PPE, ventilatars, and ather needed cquipment aswell a5 Incurring kabor premium
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inresparae to the pendemic. Top-line revenue vizs affected considerably by the restrictions on elective prooctures
that wera put In place in fate March end not lifted until sxrty May.

Operating results Infiscal 2020 were batanced in part by the Coronavirus Ald, Relicf and Economic Security (CARES)
Act and related stirmdus funds. VCMC recegnized $149 million n fscal 2020, While the stivushss Funds bolstered
margins considerably, they did not balance completely UCMC's revenue loss or added expenses,

The operating results in fiscal 2020 are notable given that prior ta the pandemic UCMC fated a nurse labor stoppage
in September 2019 and the threat of a second stappage In November, the combination of which cast the system
approximately $25 million.

Management implemetted anumber of actlons in response to the coronavirus, including scyuiring PPE [at a
premium). developing in-house Lesting, cutling capital spending, and securing a $300 million ine of credit as additional
Bquidity support. Also, management has a $360 milllon improvement plan {expense savings and revense
enhancements) much of which was launched price to the pandemic. The improvement plan includes one-time
temporary expense cuts retated te the coronavirus (such as senjor management wage freezes and suspension of
defined contribution pension matches), 25 well 25 more fundamental Iong-term Improvements such as contingied
growth in cancer services, reduced lease expensas as more employess inove ko a work-from-heme environment and 8
varlety of targets st CHHD fe g revenue cycle, impeaved labor productivity, end furfough of non-clinical staff). Also, ss
part of UCMC's pandemic action plan, management notes that essentialty all UCMC employees have boen vaccinated.

Moving forwand, over the long term, Fitch cxpocts UCMC togenerate an adjusted operating EBITDA margin inthe 8%
range, Becausa of the recelpt of CARES Act and retated stimulus funds as well 3s manzgement's ongoing expense
savings plans fwhith were nitiatad prior bs the pandemic), UCMC's pporsting manging should be strong in fiscal 2021,
Threwgh the frst six-months of fiscal 2021, WCMC recorded an operating margin and operating EBITDA margin of
A% and 2.7%, respectively {treating the transfers to UChicaga as an operating expense}. The Interim results include
approximately $27 million of CARES Act funds, reughly $18 milfion of which wasused to fund employes campensation
to recognaze the challenging work environment during the pandemic,

Mirst kery volumes have rebounded to levels roughly 95% of trend prioe to the pandemic, and management nates that
cancer ang heart/vasaudar transplant volumes are ahead of pace. Like most haatth systems, ED volumes continue to
log. Results In fiscal 2022 should temper as the top-line revenue boost from the stimubus funds fade, bul Fiteh expects
UCMC's operating EBITDA margn tobe in the 8% rango In the long term.

UCMC's capital expenditure requirements ane manageable. The system has iwested in property and plant in recent
years, as the cap'tal spending ratio sveraged sppraximatety 1.3x aver the last five yoars through fiscal 2020 This has
translated to atavorably low sverage age of plantot 9.0 years at FYE 2026 (AA median is 10.5 years), The legacy
UCMC deployed the Eplc electronic medical record (EMR) system In 201¢: Ingalls Hospital asrrently Is on the Cemer
EMR, but management s converting the CHHD ta Eple Moving forward, management expects 1o Irvestin capital at &
pace consistent with cash Now generstion.

UCMC does nst have riew money debt plans in the near torm, It s Fitch's opinlon that the Chicago miarket s on a poth
tofurther consokdation, cven with the coronavinus pandernic, This may presant UCMC with strategic doclsions to
males in the future.
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FINANCIAL PROFILE

UCMC's financial prafile remains strong, despite pressures from the coronavirus pandemic, Forward-looking capital-
refated ratios ano consistent with 334’ financial profile even in 3 stress acenario, given UCMC's midrange revenue
defensibllity and strong operating risk assessments.

ALFYE 2020 [June 30 year-end}, UCMC had just over $1 billion of tots] direct debt ounstanding (inclusive of opersting
keases, which arc now captured on the balance sheet) and unrestricted cach and investmenls measured hetter than
$1.5 billlon {excluding Medicare advance payment funds).

UCMC's debt equivalents are manageable The rystem participates in UChicago's defined benefit (DB) pension plan.
The UChicago OB pension sits on the university’s sudit and ultimatety is the responsibliity of UChicago; per UChicagn
and UCMC management, UCMC accounts for apprasdmately 40% of the DB plan’s contributions and expenses, and
therefore Fitch includes 40% of the plans projected bengfit obligation (PBO) and 40% of the falr value of plan astets
when caleulsting UCMC's DB pension debt equivalont, Along with a small plan held directly by UCMC, the combined
D8 pension plans were 74% funded at FYE 2020 compared to 8 PBD of just under $480 million.

Fitch only includes the portion of DB persions funded belaw BO% in the calkutation of adjusted debt: consequently,
the debt equivatent of UCMC's D8 penions was fess than $20 milion at FYE 2020, As 2 result, UCMC's adjusted debt
(direct debt plus underfunded DB perslon plan below BOM funded) is only merglinally more than direct debe. Net
adjusted debt (agusted debt minus unrestricted cash and irvastments) was faverably negative at FYE 2020, totally
approximately -$470 million.

UCMC's capitab-related tatios should remafn consistont with the lower-end of the ‘AA! rating category in Fiteh's
Forward-looking scenario analysis, Including in a stress case, Based on fscal 2020 results, net adjusted debl-to-
adjusted EBITDA was favorably negative, measuring -2.3x while cash-to-adjusted debt totaled approxdmately 145%.
In the scenario anslysis, net adusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA remains favarably negative in each vear of the
forward-tack, including in the stress case, Cash-to-ad|usted debt exceerts 120% Inevery year of the bata case (and
spproaches 160% by year five), snd It exceeds 120% bry yesr three of the stress case,

ASYMMETRIC ADDITIONAL RISK CONSIDERATIONS
There are no asymmetric risk factors associated with UCMC's rating.
UCMC's former Prasident, Sharon O'Koefe, retired in 2020 Thornars Jacksewicr was appaimed President of UCMC

and COO of the UChicage Medicine Health System in May 2020 Mr. Jaxckdewicz previousty served as the CEQ of Keck
Medicine at the Unitversity of Satthern Califoraéa,

Feadback

With mare than $1.5 billlanin unrestricted cach and investments at FYE 2020, UCMC's cash on hand meaured neardy
230 days (oxcluding Medicare advances). Liguidity does not pose an ssymmetric risk.

Debt Structure

UCMC's maximum annuet debt service {MADS) is $59 million, inclusive of Ingalks debt. MADS coverage was 3.4x
based on facal 2020 results and does nol pose an asymmetric risk. Just over 50% of debt Is varisble rate, s portion of
whith is demand debt in the form of CP and variablc rate demand bonds (VRDB) The VRDEBS are supportedby LOCs
with five banks: JPMorgan Chase, PNC, Wells Fargo, Bank of America, and Sumitomo Bank. The LOCs have staggorod
termination dates, ranging between May 2021 and June 2022, UCMC has thees fived payor interestrate swaps. witha
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totad notlonal arunt outstanding of approximately $363 million st FYE 2020. The combined net termination valua of
the swaps was a fability to UCMC of nearly $194 million ot FYE 2020,

In addition to the sources of Information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specibed below, this action was
Informed by information trom Lumesis,

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF RATING
The principal sources of information usedin the analysts are described in Lhve Applicable Criteria

E£SG CONSIDERATIONS

Unlets olherwise disclosad in this section, the highest level of ESG credit nelevance is a score of '3 This means E5G
Ismres are credit-neutral or have only a minimal cred|t Impact on the entity, elther due to their nature or the way in
which they are being managed by the entity. For more inforration on Fitet's ESG Relevance Scores, visit
www.fitchratings comsesg

RATING ACTIONS

INTITV/DEDT  RATIMG PRIOR

Uriiversity of T A Rating Qutlook Stable  Affirmed AA- Rating
Chicsge DR Qutlonk
Madical Stable
Center{iL}

o University jig AA- Rating Outlook Stabde  AMyrmed AA-Rytirg
of Chicago Qutkok
Medical Stable
Canter (IL}
1General
Reverwes's
T

Fredback

VW ADENTIONAL RATING DITALS

FTCH RATINGS ANALYSTS

Mark Pascarts

Director

Primary Rating Analyst

+131236B 3135

Fitch Ratings, bac.

Ore North Wacker Drive: Chicage, IL 40608
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Emily Wadivwani

Director

Secondary Rating Analyst

+1 3123683347

Kevin Holloran

Senior Director
Committee Chairperson
+15128135700D

MEDIA CONTACTS

Sandro Scenga

New York

+1212908 0278
18ndro.scenga@ihettchgroup com

Additional information is available pn wen fiic ratings com

APPLICABLE CRITERIA

US. Not-For-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criveria fpub 18 Nov 2020 (including ratiing sssuimption
senaitrvity)

Public Sector, Reveniue-Supported Cntities Rating Criteria (pub. 23 Feb 2021 (inchuding rating assumption sensithvity)

APPLICABLE MODELS

Numbers inparerheses accompanying applicable model(s) contaln yperlinks to criteria providing description of
modeiis).

Portfolio Analysis Mool (PAMY, v1.32 (1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Dodd-Frank Rating | ndor mation Disclosure Forn
Solicitation Status

Endorsement Paticy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS g
Hisols Finaree Asthority TELY T Erndorsed, UK Endorsed

ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS. PLEASE READ THESE
LIMITATEONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY FOLLOWING THES LINK:

HVTPS/WWW EITCHRATINGS COMAINDERSTANDINGCREDI I RATINGS. iN ADDITION, THE FOLLOWING
HFTPS//WWWFITCHRATING S COM/RATING-DEFINITIONS DOCUMENT DETAILS FITCH'S RATING
DEFINITIONS FOR CACH RATING SCALE AND RATING CATEGORIES, INCLUDING DEFINITIONS RELATING TO
DEFAULT. PUBLISHED RATINGS, CRITERIA AND¥METHODGLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT ALL
TIMES. FITCH'S CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL,

Desvrinfo % s pubihc affirma-univerdiy-of-chicago-nradical-conter-$-idr-at-as-ovikco
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COMPUANCE, AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE CODE
OF CONDUCT SECTION OF THISSITE. DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELEVANT INTERESTS ARE
AVAILABLE AT HTTPS//AWWW FITEC HRATINGSCOM/SITE/REGULATORY, FITCH MAY HAVE PROVIDED
ANCTHER PERMISSIBLE SERVICE TO THE RATED ENTITY OR ITS RELATED THIRD PARTIES, DETAILS OF THIS
SERVICE FOR WHICH THE LEAD ANALYST IS BASED (N AN ESMA- OR FCA-REGISTERED FITCH RATINGS
COMPANY [OR BRANCH OF SUCH A COMPANY) CAN BE FOUND ON THE ENTITY SUMMARY PAGE FOR THIS
ISSUER ON THE FITCH RATINGS WERBSITE.

READ LN

COPYRIGHT

Copyright € 2021 by Filch Ratings, inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidlaries. 33 Whitehall Street, NY. NY 10004,
Telephone: 1-800-753-4824, (212) %08-0500. Fax: [212) 480-4435. Reproduction or retransmitzion in whole or in
partts prohibited except by permission, All rights reserved. In issuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other
reports {inchuling forecast informationl, Fitch refacs an Factual informatlon it recolves from Issuers ard underwriters
and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible Flich conducts a nessonable investigation of the factuat
irdormation redled upon by it in accordance with [t ratings methodology, and obtaim reasonable verification of that
information fromindependent sources, to the extent such sources arc available for a given securlty of Ina given
jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual Investigation and the scope of the third-party verilcation it abtains will vary
depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer, the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which
the rated securily is offered and sold andfor the issuer is located, the availabllity and nature of relevant public
information, access to the management of the sswer end its advisers, the availabillty of pre-existing third-party
verifications such as sudit reports, agread-upon procedures letters, appraisals, actuarial reports, engineering reports,
legal opinions and other reports pravided by thind partics, the availability of independent and competent thisd- party
verification sources with respoct to tha particular security or inthe particular furisdiction of Lhe issuer, and a variety of
othar factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports shawdd understand that refther an enhanced factual investigation
nor any third-parly verification can ensure that all of the information Fitch refies onin conpectiinwith o ung or &
repart wilibe accurste and complete. Ultimately, the issuer and its advisers are responsible for the sccuracy of the
Information they provide to Fltch and 1o the market in offesing documents and ather reports. In Issuing its ratings and
1ts reports, Fiteh must rely on the work of experts, including independent auditars with respect to financisl statements
and attomeys with respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financlal and other inlormation
are inherently forward-looking and embady assumptions and predictions sbout future events that by their nature
cannot be verified as facts. As a resuft, despite sny verification of current Facts, ratings and forecests can be affected
by fulure events or conditions that were not antropated at they temt a rating or forecast was lssued or atfirmed.

The informationin this report is provided as I5* without any represeniation or warranty of any kind, and Fitch does
NnOT represent or warrant that the report o any of its conlents will meet any of the requirements of 2 rocipient of the
repott. A Fiteh rating it an opinion as to the craditworthiness of a socurlty. This opinlon and reports made by Fitch are
based on established criteria and methodologles that Fltch Is continuously evatuating and updating. Therefore, ratings
and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, ar group of individuats, is solcly responsible for
arating or areport. The rating does nol address the rivk of lots due to riskcs other than credit risk, unbess suchrisk s
specifically mentioned, Fitch is not engagedin the offor or sale of anv security. All Flteh regorts have shared
authorship, Individuals identified In a Fitch report weere involved in, but ane nat 2olely responsible for, the oginions
stated therein, The individuals sre named lor contact purposes only. A roport providing a Fitch rating is nelther a
prospectus nar a substitute for the Information assembled, verified and presented to ivestors by the issuer and ity
agents In connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed ar withdrawn at any time for any reason
inthe sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice of any sort. Ratings are not a recommendation
to buy, sell, or hold any securily. Rotings do nat commaent on the adoquacy of market price, the suitability of any
security for a particular irvestor, or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of paynrents made inrespect {0 any security
Fitch reccives fees from issuers, Insurers, guaramtors, other obgors, snd underwriters for rating securities. Such fees
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generally vary from US$ 1,000 to US$750.000 [or the applicable currency equivatent) per isswe. In certain cases, Fitch
wiil rate all or a number of Issues issued by 8 particular issuer, o iured or guaranteed by a particular insurer or
guatarnitor, for axingle annual fee. Such fees are expected 1o vary from US$10.000 to US$ 1,500,000 (or the spplicable
currency oquivalent), The assignment, publication, or dissemination of a rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent
by Fltchtouse its name a3 an expest In connection with atry registration slatement filed under the United States
securilies laws, the Finandal Services and Markets Act of 2000 of tha United Kingdom, or the securities laws of any
particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficlency of electronde publishing ard distribution, Fitch research may be
available 1o eloctronde subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers,

For Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and South Korca only: Fitch Austealia Pty Ltd holds an Austrafian Anancial services
Heense (AFS license no. 337123) which authorizes it to provide credil ratings to whalasale clients only, Credit ratings
Information publhed by Fitch isnot infended to be used by persans whae are retail clients within the meaning of the
Corporations Act 2001

Fitch Ratings, Inc. Is registered with the U.S, Securities and Exchange Corsmission as 2 Mationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization {the "NRSRO"]. While cerlain of the NRSRO's credit rating subsldiarles are listed on
Item 3 of Form NRSRO and as such are authorized to iswie credit ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see

httpsy/fwww fitchrasngs.com/zfter egulatory ), otber credit rating subsidisries are not Eated on Farm NRSRO Hhe
*non-NRSKO:") and theretore credit ratings itsued by these subsidiaries are not issued on behal of the NRSRO.
Howewer, non-NRSRD personnel may participatc in determining credit ratings Issued by or onbehall of the NRSRO.

SOLICITATION STATUS

The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained at the request of the rated entlty/lssuer or a refated third
party. Any oxcoptions foow below,

ENDORSEMENT POLICY

Filch's international credit ratings produccd outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be, sre endorsed for use by
regudated entities within the EU or the UK, respectively, for regulatory purpases, pursuant to the lerms of the EUCRA
Regudation or the UK Credit Rating Agencles (Amendment etc) [EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be, Fitch's
approach ta endorsement in the EU and the UK can be found on Fitch's Regulatory Affairs page on Fltchs website. The
endorpement siatus of International credit ratings Is provided within the eatity sumwnsry page fer each rated entity
and In the transaction detell pages for structured financet tions on Lhe Fitch website. Thesa disclosures ane
updaled on adady basis.

US Public Fingnee Heathcare and Pharma NorthAmerka  Urlted Ststes

hitps M Sihv o8 e LOMestarchru-public-i nanostich offrm-univens ty-of-dhicago-medical camard-idr-sl-a8-0i

129

195217566

#22-004

Feedback

ATTACHMENT 3 1&

ATTACHMENT 335



#22-004

S&P Global e
Ratings L S

October 21, 2021

The University vl Chicuge Medical Center
150 Harvester Drive, Suite 300

Bum Ridgs, (L 60527

Ancntion: Ms, Ann M. McColpzn, Tressurer

Re: Illinpls Finance Antherity, (University of Chicage Medical Center), Iilinols

Dcor Ms. McColgen
S&P Glohal Ratings herchy affirms its rating of "AA-" for the underlying rating (SPUR) on the above-listed
oblige: and changed she aurinak to stahle fram neganve. A copy of the rarionale sapporting the rating and
outloak 15 cockssed
Thes Jemer comitsmies S&P Giobal Ratipgs” permistson for you to disseminate the abave-assigned ratings to
exterd pattics in d with applicable baws and regulshons. Tlowever, permussion for sach
disseminstivo {other than to professional advisors bound by wpproprinte confidendiality prmngements or to allow
the Jesner to comply with its regulstory obhgations) wil! become effective noly sfier we have releascd the
ratiags on standardkndpoots coin. Any dsssentinstion on any Website by you of yout apenis shall mulade the full
analysis fur the ratmy, incliadmy sy updates, where applicable. Any stch disemination shal] oo be dnoe in &
manner that would serve as a substitule for any prodocts and sevvices containing S&P Global Ratings'
intelbectual property for which a fee is charped

To maintain the rating, S&P Global Ratings mus receive all relevant fiaancial und other information, including
potice of materwal chunges to finencisl snd other information provided to us wxd i redevant docnments, a3 soon
o3 such information 1s available, Relevant financia] and other information includes, but 19 pot Jimed Lo,
furcmtion sbout direct bank Joans and debt and debi-like instruments ssued 10, or entered into with, finencisl
ponics and’or other eatities, whether or not discl af such @i ton wonld be
required wnder § F.C. Rule 15c2-12. Yom onderstand that S&P Global Ratings relies cn you and yoor sgonts
and advsors for the socurmcy, el mess and completeness of the information subitted in connection with i
rating und the continuod Now of msteeis] infurmation & patt of the survuitlano: proorik. Phiate send all

formation via ¢} delivery w jitdm_ststelocaleoytifepglobslooys. IF SEC mule 1 7g-5 is applicable, you
ruay post sich mi iou an the sppropriate website. For any information not available in clectronic format or
posicd oo the applicable website,

Ploas sond bard cupaes to:
S&P (Hohal Ratings
Publi¢ Finance Department
35 Water Strevt
New Yok, NY (0(k§ 0003

The rating is subject 10 the Terms and Conditinns, if any, snached to the Engagement Leticr apphicabia w the
sating. 1o the sbsence of such Lingagenteat Leder and Tenus and Conditions, the tating is subjoct to the attached
Terms and Condilions. The applicable Terms md Conditions are incueporaled herein by reference

S&P Global Ratings is pleasad 1o have tx apportunity 10 provide its tuting opinion. For more information
please visit ous website at sismdardendnonrpcom. 1f you bave any questions, please coatsct i, Thank you
for choosing S&P Global Ratings.

Smcerely yours,

S&P Global Ratings

& diviston of Standand & Poor's Pmancial Services LLC
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S&P Global
Ratings
S&P Global Ratings
Teeme and Conditions Applicable ‘I'o Publle Finance Credit Rutings

General, The credit ratings and other views of S&P Global Resings are statements of upimon uad col statements
of fact Credit ratings and other views of S&P Gloha) Ratings ste nod secommencutions to purchase, hodd, or sall
any securities and do not comment on marke! price, marketability, invessw preference or suuabiiy of any
sceunty While S&P Global Ratinps bases 118 credit itings and vther veews oo information provided by issoers
and their agents and advisors, and sther mfurmalivn from sources # belicves o be relishle, S&P Glohat Ratings
ducs not perform an asdi, and undertakes oo duty of due diligenee or independend venfication, of any
information it receives. Such informenion and S&P Globel Ratings' opintons should not de rehied upoe 1o
making any investment docision. S&P Global Ratings docs oot sct us a "lidusiary® ot st mvestment advisor
S&P Gilobal Ratlngs nelther recommends o will recommiend how: an swsuer can or shondd achieve a purticutss
credit rabing outcome mor provides of wall provide conmlting, advisory, financial o7 structonng edvice Unless
otherwne mdicsted, the term “isser® means both tha issuer uid the obligor if the ohligor is not the mwaucr

Al Lol Kating Actioms m &P Globzl Batags! Sule Discwesion, S&P Glohal Ratings may assign, raise,
lower, suspend, place on CreditWatch, or withdraw a crodit tating, and asssn of revise an Qutlook, st any time,
in S&P Global Ratings' sole discretton S&F Global Ratings may take may of the foregoing actions
notwilhslendmg any request for a confidentinl or private crvdit tming or a withdmwal of o credit rating, o
terminaian of 3 credit rating engagement S&P Global Reiings will not conven o public credit rating 1o 3
confilengial or private credit rating, or @ private credit rating to a confideatial credn eating

Publicution, S&P (ilsbal Ratings reserves the vight to use, publish, disteminate, of license others 1o use, publish
ot disteounawe & credil rating and any retaied analytical reports, inchuding the mtiensle for the credit raing,
unless tho isiuer specifically reg m hon with the imitiz) eredil rating that the credit rating be assigned
und enniniained on n confidential or private basis. If, however, n confidential or private credu rating or Lhe
existence of o confidential or private eredit reting subscquently becomes pubic through dusclosure oilier than by
a0 act of S&P Global Ratings ot as affiliaes, S&P Global Ratings reserves the right io treat the credit rating axa
public credit rating, wcleding, without Limitstive, publishmg the credit rating and any related analytical reports.
Any analybical reporis pablished by S&P Globa) Ratings are nat isseed by or an behalf of the issver or w1 the
imier's request, S&P Global Retings reserves the right to use, publish, digseminate or licemse others ta use,
publish or desemingte anxdyticel reports with respect to pubbic credil istings that have beea withdrawn,
regrdiess of the ceasom for zuch withdrawal S&P Okobal Ratings may publish explanations of S&P Global
Ratings’ ersdit ratings crvenia from time (o fime and S&P Global Ratings may modify or refine its eredst ratings
criterta at any time #5 S&P Globa) Ratings deems approprinte.

Relingew ¢n Informetion, S&P Global Ratings relics oo oswers and their ogents and advitnrs for the aocuracy
st completeness of ihe inforvwiion subminicd iy connection with credit ratings and the surveiblance of eredit
rattngs including, withoot lumtation, wfomsiton on iaf changes to inf previously provided by
usuers, thel ageais or adveoes. Credit ratings, and the maintenance of credit ratings, muy be affected by S&P
Glohal Ratings’ apinson of the information received from isuaces, their sgents ar edvisors.

Confilenua) Infurmsign, SEP Global Ratings bet esablished policies and procedures to maintain the
confulencislity of comain poa-public information reccived from izsuers, thelr agents ot advisom. For these
purposts, "Confhdential Information” alafl mean verbal or writien informstsan that the sssucr of its agents or
advisors have pravided o S&P Gilchal Ratings and, in a specific and panicularized manner, have marked ar
olkorwise mdicaed in writing (esther priar w ar prompily following such desclosure) chat such informatics is
"Confidentinl *

S&P Globul Ratings Nt an Expert, Underwriter or, Seller under Securitios Laws. S&P Global Ratings bas nos
consented to and will sot consent 1o being named an “expert” o any timilar desipnation under mny applicable
securitied laws er vthicr regulsiony gridance, rules of roce ] , incleding without timitaion, Section ¥
of the U.S. Securities Act of 1333, $&P Global Ratings has not performed and will not perform the fole or tasks
associaed with an “underwTiter™ or “seller” under the United States foderal scauttics laws w other repalatary
guidanoe, rules of recommendations |0 conaootion with & credn riting engapemond,

Disclyimer of Lishiliy. S&P CHobal Ratings does nat sod cannot guarantee the accuracy, completcnesa, or
timehnesa of the informatian relred on in canneetion with a credit rating or the results obtained from the use of
such infonnson. S&PF GLOBAL RATINGS GIVES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
IRCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITTID TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCIHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
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FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE. S&F Global Raings, its afiilisics or third party providers, or sy
of their afficers, directors. sharelioldees, employses ot agents shall nat be Hable to any person for any
Snaccuracies, efrors, of omissians, in each case regardinss of cante, actions, damages (consequential, spocial,
indirect, incidental, mmitive, compengatary, excmplary or atherwise), ckaim, lishilitics, costs, expenser, Tegad
feea ot loases (Incladiag. without limitatzon, bost income of lost profits dad oppormuiity costs) in any way arishog
vt of ee relatiog o a credl mlng or e relatod malylic servioes even of advived of s possibility of such
damarges or ather ompants.

No Third Papv Beneficasries, Nething in ooy credit rating eogugement, or a credst rating when isoed, is
wtended or should be comtruod a3 cresting any mights on bebaifl of any thid porties. Including, wathour
limitation, any recipicod of o credit miing. No peoson is intended a8 o thind party bencficiry of sny endit rating
engrgement or of & credit raning when Soed
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Attachment 35
Audited Financial Statements

UCMC’s financial statements for the years June 30, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were included in the
application for permit for Project No. 21-033. That application was filed November 2, 2021 and
approved December 14, 2021. Those financial statements are incorporated by reference.
Financial Statements for fiscal year 2021 are attached.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP
Aon Center
Suite 5500
200 E. Rondolph Stroet
Chicago, IL 60801-6436

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
The University of Chicago Medical Center:

Opinion

We have audiled the accompanying consclidated financial statements of The University of Chicage Medical
Center, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairty, in all material respects, the
financial position of The University of Chicago Medical Center as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results of
its consolidated and changes in net assets without donor restrictions, changes in net assets, and cash flows for
the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reporl. We are required
to be independent of The University of Chicago Medical Center and fo meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidatad Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from materigl misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The University of Chicago
Madical Center's ability to continue as a going concem for one year after the date that the consolidated
financial statements are available to be issued

Auditors’ Responsibiiities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranca is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolitated financlal statements, whether
due to fraud or ermor, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidenca regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
The University of Chicago Medical Centar’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of elgnificant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgmant, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about The University of Chicago Medical Center’s ability to continue as a going concam
for a reascnable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain intemal contro! related matters
that we identified during the audits.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The 2021 supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presanted for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and retates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected o the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consclidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or fo the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

KPMe P

Chicago, lllinois
October 29, 20214
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2021 and 2020

(in thousands)
Assets 2021 2020
Curmrent assets
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 184,639 538,725
Patient accounts receivable 437 141 333,676
Current portion of investments limited to use 247,395 68,500
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance recevable 16,809 14,508
Current portion of pledges receivable 2,289 1,177
Prepaids, inventory, and other current assets 195,384 176,998
Total current assets 1,083,667 1,123,584
Investments limited to use, less current portion 1,722,327 1,227,624
Property, plant, and equipment, net 1,508,150 1,668,348
Pledges receivable, less current portion 5,708 1.621
Malpractice self-insurance recefvable, less current portion 90,598 81,091
Other assets, net . _‘|_2g_86_l L _1&8_6_64 .
Total assets $ 4,534,317 4,100,832
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses § 282,219 256,369
Current portion of long-term debt 22 875 20,430
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 4775 11,766
Estimated third-party payor setiements and Medicare Advance 454 530 536,847
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 16,808 24 441
Due to University of Chicago 29,808 37,649
Total current liabilities 811,017 887,502
Other liabilities:
Workers' compensation self-insurance liabilities, less current portion 8,604 8,441
Malpractice self-insurance liebility, less current portion 166,640 135,029
Long-term debt, less cuirent portion 937,757 966,406
Interest rate swap liability 147,362 193,907
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion : 145633 | 112,769
Total liabilities 2,219,013 2,305,054
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 2,169,780 1,684,003
With donor restrictions 145,524 111,685
Total net assets . 2,315,304 1,795,778
Total liabilities and net assets $ 4,534 317 4,100,832
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions
Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

(In thousands)

2021 2020
Operating revenues:
Patient service revenue $ 2,331,509 2,049,957
Other operating revenues and net assets released from
restrictions used for operating purposes 457,645 497,747
Total operating revenues .2.789,154 2.547.704
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages, and benefils 1,134,205 1,064,665
Supplies and other 944,587 860,110
Physician services 303,435 301,453
Insurance 39,603 30,055
Interest 39,743 42,257
Medicaid provider tax 75,683 66,640
Depreciation and amortization 132,707 131,609
Total operating expenses 2,669,963 2,496,789
Operating revenue in excess of expenses 118,191 50,915
Nenoperating gains and losses:
Investmant retumn, net 387,316 31,033
Change in fair value of nonhedged dervative instruments 2637 (2.318)
Derivative ineffectiveness on hedged derivative instruments 695 (395)
Other, net (251) (3,877}
Revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses 509,588 75,558
Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions:
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago (71,750) (71,750)
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs 2,781 {2,823)
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives 44,867 (53.260)
Net assets released from restriction for capital purposes 125 5
Distributions and other, net (24) (11)

Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions $ 485,687 !52.289g
f————————]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

(In thousands)
2021 2020
Net assets without donor restrictions:
Revenue and guins in excess of uxpenses and lusses $ 500,588 75,558
Nel assel transfers to University of Chicago, net {(7T1,750) {71,750)
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic
benefit cost 2,781 (2,823)
Effective portion of change in valuation of derivatives 44 967 (53,268)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes 125 5
Distributions and other, net (24) {11)
Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions 485,687 (52,289)
Net assels with donor restrictions:
Contributions 12,513 5,671
Net assets released from restrictions used for operating purposes {8,358) (8.549)
Investment return, net 29,809 1477
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes (125) (5)
Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 33,839 {1,408)
Change in net assets 519,526 (53,605)
Net assets at beginning of year 1,795,778 1,849,473
Net assets at end of year $ 2,315,304 1,795,778
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Consolidated Staternents of Cash Fiows
Years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

{In thousands)
2021 2020
Cash flows from operating actwvities:
Change in net assets $ 519,528 (53,695)
Adjuatments fo reconcile change In net easets to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Net change in unealized gains and losses on investments (312,323) 19,802
Net asset transfers to Universily of Chicago 71,750 71,750
Restricted contributions and investment retum (42,322) (7.148)
Realized gains on inveotmento (83,880) (38,606)
Net change in valuation of derivatives (46,545) 57,721
Change in accrued pension benefits other than net period benefit cost and other (2.781) 2,823
Loss on refinancing of long-term debt (832) 2,347
Loss on dispesal of assets 235 4135
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 8,358 8,549
Payment of iease obligations (10,814) (8,383)
Depraciation and amortization 132,707 131,600
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable (103,465) 65,454
Other assets, net {38,892) (8,719)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 21,828 12,013
Due to University of Chicage (7.840) 6,880
Estimated settlements with third-party payors and Medicare Advance (82.317) 273,588
Self-insurance liabilities 25,142 18,767
Cther liabilities 36,767 27,642
Net cash provided by operating activities i 104,293 586,750
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant, and aquipment (83,744) {117,654)
Change in construction payables 4,022 (3,108}
Purchases of investments (944,485) (614,131)
Sales of invesiments 837,080 609,830
Net cash used in investing activities (367,108) (125,063)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, including bond premium 47,270 128,360
Additional repayment of long-term debt {72.642) {120,840)
Payments of finance/long-term lease abligation (8,113} (31,653)
Net asset transfers to University of Chicago, net {71,750) (71,750)
Net assets released from restriction for operations (8,358) (8,549)
Restricted contributions and investment retum 42320 7,148
Net cash used in financing activities {71,271 {97,084)
Net (decrense) increase in cash and cash equivalents (354,0080) 364,600
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beglinning of year 538,725 174,122
End of year $ 184,639 538,725
Noncash transaciions:
Other assets included for right-of-use assets — operating leases as a result of adopting
ASU No. 842, Leases $ 60,148 §3,042
See accompanying notes to consolidated financlal statements.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

(1) Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the accounts of The University of Chicago
Medical Center and Its affillates (the System). The University of Chicago Medical Center (UCMC) Is the
parent of an integrated nonprofit healthcare organization, partnering with the University of Chicago
Biological Sciences Division, the University of Chicago Pritzker Schoot of Medicine, and the University of
Chicago Physicians Group to provide world-class medical care in an academic setting. UCMC operates the
Cenler oy Care and Disvovery, the Beinard Milchell Huspilal, the Chicago Lying-in Huspilal, the Universily
of Chicago Comer Children’s Hospital, the Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, the University of
Chicago Medicine Care Network, the UCM Community Health and Hospital Division, Inc. (CHHD), and
various other outpatient clinics and treatment areas.

UCMC's Obligated Group includes the following entities: UCMC (excluding the University of Chicago
Medicine Care Network, UCMC Title Holding Corporation, and UCMC Title Holding Corporation 1l NFP),
Ingalis Health System, Ingalls Memorial Hospital, ingalls Development Foundation, and Ingalls Home Care
as presenied in the supplemental consolidating schedules. Entities of UCMC that are included in the Non-
Obligated Group are the University of Chicago Medicine Care Network, University of Chicago Medicine
Medical Group, UCMC Title Holding Corporation, and UCMC Title Holding Corporation Il NFP. Entities of
CHHD that are inciuded in the Non-Obligated Group are Ingalls Provider Group, Ingalls Care Network,
Medcentrix, Ingalls Health Ventures, Ingalls Castalty Insurance, Trulen Insurance SPC Limited, and Ingalls
Same Day Surgery. These are presented in the supplemental schedules as “Other Non-Obligated Group
Entities” for purposes of consolidation.

The University of Chicago (the University), as the sole corporate member of UCMC, elects UCMC’s Board
of Trusteas (the Board) and approves iis bylaws. The UCMC president reports to the University's executive
vice president for Medical Affairs. The relationship between UCMC and the University is defined in the
Medical Center bylaws, an affiliation agreement, an operating agreement, and several leases. See note 4
for agreements and transactions with the University.

{2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the System have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All significant
infercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b} COVID-19 Pandemic

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated COVID-19 as a global pandemic.
Patient volumes and the related revenues for most of our services were significantly impacted in the
last two weeks of the third quarter of fiscal year 2020 and continued to be impacted in the fourth
quarter of 2020. Various policies wera implemented by federal, state, and local govermments in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic that have caused many people te remain at home and forced the
closure of or limitations on cerlain businesses, as well as suspended etective surgical procedures by
healthcare facilities. While some of these restrictions have been eased across the U.S. and most states
have lifted moratoriums on nonemergent procedures, some restrictions remain in place, and some
state and local governments are reimposing certain restrictions due to increasing rates of COVID-19
cases.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Siatements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

During fiscal year 2021 and 2020, the System received approximately $11,138 and $200,643,
respectively, in general and targeted Provider Relief Fund distributions, as provided for under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. Generally, these distributions from the
Provider Relief Fund are not subject to repayment, provided the recipient is able to attest to and comply
with the terms and conditions of the funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received
have been used for healthcare-related expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. Such
payments are accounted for as govemment grants and are recognized on a systematic and rational
basis as other income once there is reasonable assurance that the applicable terms and conditions
required to retain the funds will be met. Based on an analysis of the compliance and reporting
requirements of the Provider Relief Fund and the impact of the pandemic on operating results through
June 30, 2021, the System recognized through June 30, 2021 and 2020, $61,802 and $149,028,
respectively, related to these general distribution funds as part of ‘other operating revenue’ in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions. The
unrecognized amount of general distributions and targeted distributions are recorded as estimated
third-party payor settilements and Medicare Advance in the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2021 and 2020 of $849 and $51,615, respectively. The System will continue to monitor compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Provider Relief Fund and the impact of the pandemic on our revenues
and expenses. If the System is unable to attest to or comply with curvent or future terms and conditions,
the ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be impacted.

On June 11, 2021, the Department of Health and Human Services provided Post-Payment Notice of
Reporting Requirements for providers that received funding under the CARES Act. The provisions
within this notice provide new guidance on the reporting portal and requirements around healthcare
related expenses attributable to COVID-19 and “lost revenue.” The guidance provides for various
reporting deadlines beginning September 30, 2021 for Period 1 with a 80-day grace period for
compliance. The System anticipates meeting the requirements for reporting under the timelines
provisioned.

In addition, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020, the System received $214,500 of accelerated
Medicare payments under the Medicare Advanced Payment Program (APP). After 120 days of receipt,
claims for services provided to Medicare beneficiaries will be applied against the advance payment
balance. Any unapplied advance payment amounts must be paid in full within one year from receipt of
the advance payments for acute care hospitals. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the System has
recorded the APP payments as estimated third-party payor settlements and Medicare advance on the
consolidated balance sheets of $183,259 and $214,500. On September 30, 2020, faderal legislation
extended the terms of APP payments such that any claims for services provided to Medicare
beneficiaries will be applied against the advance payment balance beginning 365 days after receipt.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of social security
payroll tax incurred during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until
December 2021 and the remaining half until December 2022. The System has deferred payroll taxes
and recorded the deferral under the caption of accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets
at June 30, 2021 for $36,800. Additionally, the CARES Act provides for a payroll tax credit designed to
encourage retention of employees during the pandemic. The System is evaluating its eligibility and
related data for consideration of the employee retention credit.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

(c) Adoption of New Accounting Standards

in March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update

(ASU) 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facliftation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. The amendments provide optional guidance for a limited time to ease
the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The new guidance provides optional
expedients and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other
tansaclions allecled by reference ale refoim il cerlain aileria are mel. The amendments apply only o
contracts and hedging relationships that reference London Interbank Rate (LIBOR) or another
reference rate expected to be discontinued due to reference rate reform. These amendments are
sffective immediately and may be applied prospectively to contract modifications made and hedging
relationships entered into or evaluated on or before December 31, 2022. The Organization adopied this
ASU in March 2020 and the adoption did not have a significant impact on the Organization's
consolidated financial statements.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
gccounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent asseis and liablilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

{e) Community Benefits

The System's policy Is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to their
ability to pay for such services, including patients transferred from other hospitals under the provisions
of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act. UCMC also accepts patients through the
Perinatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their ability to pay for services.

The System developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the Policy) under which patients are offered
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sliding scale. The Policy is based both on income as a
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The Policy
also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic healthcare
expenses. Since the System does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not reported as
patient service revenue. The estimated cost of providing care under this Policy, along with the
unreimbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to
support education, clinical research, and other community programs for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, are reported in note 6.

() Fair Value of Financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that the System would receive upon selling &n asset or pay to settle a
iiability in an orderly transaction among market participants.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The System uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that categorizes and
prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is broken down into
three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the financial instruments
based on market data cbtained from sources independent of the System, Inputs refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset, including assumptions about risk.
Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions
market participants wou!ld use in pricing the asset devaloped based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting
entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
developed based on the best information available. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in
the three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted market pricas in active markets for identical investments

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices
that are ohservable, including model-based valuation techniques

Level 3 — Valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable because they trade
infrequently or not at all.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivaients

Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with original
maturities of three months or less, excluding investments whase use is limited. Cash equivalents held
by investment managers are freated as investing activity in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

(h) inventory
The System values inventories at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

(i) Investments

Investments are classified as trading securities. As such, investment retum (including realized or
changes in unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in excess
of revenue and gains over expenses and losses unless the incame is restricted by donor or law.

Investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at estimated fair value. If an
investment is held directly by an entity and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price
of an identical security is used as reported fair value. Reporied fair values for shares in mutual funds
are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
System's interests in altermative investment funds, such as private debt, private equity, real estate,
natural resources, and absolute retumn, are generally reported at the net asset value (NAV) reported by
the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value, unless it is
probable that ali or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV. As of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, the System had no plans to sell investments at amounts different from NAV.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

A significant portion of the System’s investments are part of the University’s Total Retum Investment
Pool (TRIP). The System accounts for its investments in TRIP on the fair value method based on its
share of the underlying securities and, accordingly, records the investment activity as if the System
owned the investments directly using the fair value option election. The University does not engage
directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of the University has authorized the
use of derivative investments o adjust market exposure within asset class ranges.

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the System’s investments as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is
included in note 7.

(i) Investments Limited as to Use

Investments limited as to use primarily include assets held by trusteas under debt and other
agreements and designated assets sst aside by the Board for future capital improvements and other
specific purposes, over which the Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for
other purposes. Investments limited as to use also include investments held under swap colisteral
posting requirements, investments under the workers' compensation self-insurance trust funds, and
investments whose use is restricted by donors. Investments limited as to use are reported as net
assets without donor restrictions. Investments whose use is restricted by donors are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions,

(k) Derivative Instruments

The System accounts for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with Accounting Standards
Caodification (ASC) Topic 815, Denvafives and Hedging, which requires that all derivative instruments
be recorded as either assets or liabiliies in the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair
values.

For hedging relationships, the System formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk
managemerit objective and strategy for understanding the hedge, the hedging instrument, the nature of
the riek being hedged, how the hedging investment's effectiveness in offsetting the hadged risk will be
assessed, and a descniption of the method for measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking
all derivatives that are presented as cash fiow hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

{) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are reported on the basis of cost, less accumutated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
which generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred during the period of
construction of capital assets are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions by donors that specify how the assets are to be used
and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted contributions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must
be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in servics,
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notas to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The System periodically assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets (including property, plant, and
equipment) when indications of potential impairment based on estimated, undiscounted future cash
flows exist. Management considers factors, such as current results, trends, and future prospects, in
addition to other economic factors, in determining whether there is an impairment of the asset. There
were no impairments of long-ived assets during 2021 or 2020,

{m) Leases

ROU assets for operating leases are recorded in other assets, net and the corresponding liability is
recorded between current portion of other long-term liabilities and other long-term liabilities, less
current portion. ROU assets for financing leases are presented as property, plant, and equipment
{net) on the consolidated balance sheets and the corresponding liability is presented between current
portion of other long-term liabilities and other long-term liabilities, net of current portion.

The System determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at contract inception.

For operating leases, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease
payments at the lease commancement date; it is subsaquently measured at the present value of tha
unpaid lease payments. For finance leases, the lease liability is initially measured in the same manner
and date as for operating leases and is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective-interest method.

Key estimates and judgments include how the System determines (1) the discount rate it uses to
discount the unpaid lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

ASC Topic 842 requires a lesses to discount its unpaid lease payments using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, its incremental borrowing rate. The System
has elected to use the risk-free rate, which is the rate of a U.S. Treasury security for a period
comparable to the lease term.

The ROU assel is initially measured at cost, which primarily comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For finance leases, the ROU asset is amortized using the straight-line method from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of its useful life or the end of the lease term unless the
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the System or the System is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset. In those cases, the ROU asset is amortized over
the useful life of the undertying asset. Amortization of the ROU asset is recognized and presented
separately from interest expense on the lease liabitity.

The System monitors for events or changes in circumstances that require a reassessment of one of its
leases.

{n) Net Assets

Net assets are classified Into two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor
restrictions. Descriptions of the two net asset categories and the types of transactions affecting each
category follows:
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Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Items that
affect this net asset category principally consist of fees for service and related expenses associated
with the core activities of the System: patient care and provision of healthcare services. In addition to
these exchange transactions, changes in this category of net assets include investment returns on
“funds functioning as endowment” funds, actuarial adjustments to self-insurance liabilities, changes in
postretirement benefit obligations, and other types of philanthropic support. The philanthropic support
includes gifts without restriction, board-designated funds functioning as endowment, and restricted gifts
whose donor-imposed restrictions were met during the fiscal year, as well as previously restricted gifts
and grants for buildings and equipment that have been placed in service.

With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be met either by
actions of the System or the passage of time. ltems that affect this net asset category are gifts for
which donor-imposed restrictions have not been met in the year of receipt, including gifts and grants for
buildings and equipment not yet placed in service; endowment, annuity, and life income gifts; pledges
and investment retumns on “true” endowment funds, and endowments where the principal may be
expended upon the passage of a stated period of time (term endowments). Expirations of restrictions
on net assets with donor restrictions, including reclassification of restricted gifts and grants for buildings
and equipment when the associated long-lived asset is placed in service, are reported as net assets
released from restrictions.

Also included in net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions
to be maintained permanently by the System, including gifts and pledges whersin donors stipulate that
the principal/corpus of the gift be held in perpetuity and that only the income be made available for
program operations. Other permanently restricted items in this net asset category include annuity and
life income gifts for which the ultimate pumpose of the proceeds is permanently restricted.

The description of amounts classified as donor restricted net assets (endowments only) as of June 30,
2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Time

restricted 2021

Perpetual by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 4,440 21,770 26,210
Restricted for adult healthcare 4,438 69,466 73,904

Restricted for educational and

sciantific programs 10,052 4,524 14,576
$ 18,830 85,760 114,690
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Time

restricted 2020

Perpotual by law Total
Restricted for pediatric healthcare $ 4,023 17,083 21,116
Restricted for adult healthcare 4,081 58,337 60,398

Restricted for educational and

scientific programs 9,156 2,589 11,785
$ 17,280 76,019 93,269

The endowment component of net assets without donor restrictions comprises of amounts designated
by the Board to function as endowment, which amounted to $1,338,160 and $911,642 included within
investments limited to use as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

In addition to endowments, the System has $30,834 and $18,386, respeclively, of other restricted net
assets at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

All activities of the System deemed by management to be ongoing, major, and central to the provision
of healthcare services are reported as operating revenue and expenses.

The censolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets without donor restrictions
includes revenue and gains in excess of expenses and losses. Changes in net assets without donor
restrictions that are excluded trom revenue and gains in excess ot expenses and losses include net
asset transfers to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions (including
assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of
System assets), net assets released from restriction for capital purchases, the effective portion of
changes in the valuation of derlvatives, change in accrued pension benefits other than net periodic
benefit costs, and other, net.

Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable, Charity Care, and Third-Party Settlements
() Patient Service Revenues

Gross charges are retall charges and generally do not reflect what the System is ultimately paid
and, therefore, are not displayed in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets without donor restrictions. The System is typically pald amounts that are negotiated with
insurance companies or are set by the government. Gross charges are used to calculate Medicare
outlier payments and to determine certain elements of payment under managed care contracts
({such as stop-loss payments). Because Medicare requires that gross charges be the same for ail
patients (regardless of payor category), gross charges are what is charged to all patients prior to
the application of discounts and allowances.

The System recognizes revenue in the period in which it satisfies the performance obligations
under contracts by transferring the services to its customers. The performance obligations for
patient contracts are generally completed when the patients are discharged, which generally

ATTACHMENT 35
133



(i

(i)

3517566

#22-004

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period. In accordance with ASC Topic 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the System does not adjust the promised amount of
consideration from patients and third-party payors for the effects of a significant financing
component due to the expectation that the period between the time the service is provided to a
patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays for that service will be one year or
less. Revenues are recognized in the amounts to which it expects to be entitled, which are the
transaction pricas allocated to the distinct services.

The System has agreements with governmental and other third-party payors that provide for
payments to the System at amounts different from established charges. Payment arrangements for
major third-party payors may be based on prospectively determined rates, reimbursed cost,
discounted charges, per diem payments, or other methods. The transaction price is determined
based on gross charges for services provided, reducad by explicit price concessions provided to
third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Financial
Assistance Program, and implicit price concessions provided primarily to uninsured patients. The
estimates of explicit price concessions and discounts are based on contractual agreements,
discount policles, and histarical experience. The estimates of implicit price concassions are based
on historical collection experience with these classes of patients using the portfolio approach.

Charity Care

The System provides charity care to patients who meet the criteria for charity care as published in
their Financial Assistance Policy. Patients who qualify are provided care without charge or ai
amounts less than established rates. System policy is not to pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they do not report these amounts in patient service
revenues. Patient advocates from the System screen patients in the hospital to determine whether
those patients meet eligibility requirements for financial assistance programs. They also expedite
the process of applying for government programs.

Third-Parly Seftlements

Revenues under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare and Medicaid programs are based
primarity on prospective payment systems. Retrospectively determined cost-based revenues under
these programs, which were more prevalent in earlier periods, and certain other payments, such as
Indirect Medical Education, Direct Graduate Medical Education, disproportionate share hospital,
and bad debt expense reimbursement, which are based on the hospitals’ cost reports, are
estimated using historical trends and current factors. Cost report settlements under these programs
are subject to audit by Medicare and Medicaid auditors and administrative and judicial review, and
it can take several years until final setlement of such matters is determined and completely
resolved. Because the laws, regulations, instructions, and rule interpretations governing Medicare
and Medicaid reimbursement are complex and change frequently, the estimates recorded could
change by material amounts,

The System has an estimation process for recording Medicare patient service revenue and
estimated cost report settiements. As a result, the System records accruals to reflect the expected
final settlements on our cost reports. For filed cost reports, the System records the accrual based
on those cost reports and subsequent activity and records a valuation allowance against those cost
reporis based on historical settiement trends. The accrual for periods for which a cost report is yet
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to be filed is recorded based on estimates of what are expected to report on the filed cost reports,
and a comesponding valuation allowance is recorded as previously described. Cost reports
generally must be filed within five months after the end of the annual cost reporting period. After the
cost report is filed, the accrual and corresponding valuation allowance may need to be adjusted.

Seftlements with third-party payors for retroactive revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews, or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely outcome method. These
settements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor,
correspondence from the payor and historical settiement activity, including an assessment to
ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently
resolved. Estimated setiements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known (that
is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such
audits, reviews, and investigations. Adjustments from the finalization of prior years' cost reports
and other third-party settiement estimates resulted in an increase in patient service revenues of
$4,035 and $9,152, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively

{q) Hospital Assessment Program/Medicaid Provider Tax

The lilincis Hospital Assessment Program and the Enhanced lilinois Hospital (collectively referred to
herein as HAP) have been approved by CMS through December 31, 2022. Under HAP, the state
receives additional federal Medicaid funds for the state's heatthcare system administered by the lllinois
Department of Healthcare and Family Services. In 2021, reimbursement under the HAP resuited in a
net increase of $83,757 in operating income, which includes $159,439 in Medicaid payments included
in patient service revenue offset by $75,682 in Medicaid provider tax expense. In 2020, reimbursement
under HAP resulted in a net increase of $72,489 in operating income, which includes $139,129 in
Medicaid payments included in patient service revenue offset by $66,640 in Medicaid provider tax
expense,

{r) Other Revenue

Other operating revenue includes revenue from nonpatient care services, clinical space rental revenue,
contributions both unrestricted in nature and those released from restriction to support operating
activities, related grant income, premium and capitation revenues, and other miscellaneous income.

Premium and capitation revenues are recelved and recognized as revenue ratably over the period for
which the enrolled member is entitled to healthcare services. The timing of the System’s performance
may differ from the timing of the payment received, which may resutt in the recognition of a contract
asset or a contract liability. The System has no material contract assets or liabilities at Juns 30, 2021
relating to premium and capitation revenue.

Revenue from grants is recognized in accordance with ASC Subtopic 958-605, Not-for-profit entities —
Revenue recognition, as other operating revenue, when the conditions of the contributions are
substantially met.

Revenue from nongrant sources is generally recognized at point of service for these transactions in
accordance with ASC Topic 608, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
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{s) income Taxes

The System applies ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized In a company's financial statements. ASC Topic 740 prescribaes a more {ikely
than not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recagnition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expacted to be taken. Under ASC Topic 740, tax positions are
evaluated for recognition, derecognition, and measurement using consistent criteria and provide more
informaltion aboul the uncerlainty in income Lax assels axd liabililies. As ol June 30, 2021 and 2020,
the System does not have an asset or liability recorded for unrecognized tax positions.

UCMC and CHHD Obligated Groups comprise subsidiaries that are not-for-profit corporations as
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code (the Code) and therefore exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. UCMC and CHHD
Non-Cbligated Groups consist of several not-for-profit and taxable entities, including University of
Chicago Medicine Care Network, LL.C; Ingalls Captive Insurance, Ltd; Trulen Insurance SPC Limited;
Medcentrix, Inc.; Ingalis Same Day Surgery; and Ingalls Provider Group {IPG), which are taxable
entities under applicable sections of the Code.

Deferred income taxes on the taxable entities of the Non-Obligated Groups are recognized for the tax
consequences of “temporary differences” by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future
years to differences betwaen the consolidated financial statement canrying amounts and the tax bases
of existing assets and liabilities. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the UCMC and CHHD Non-Obligated
groups have deferred tax assets primarily relating to net operating losses (NOL) of $17,763 and
$16,431, respectively, however, it has a full valuation allowance as management believes that it was
not more likely than not that the results of future operations would generate sufficient taxable income fo
realize the NOL.

() Subsequent Events

In conneclion with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with
ASC Topic B55, Subsequent Events, the System evaluated events and transactions through

October 29, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued, noting no subsequent
events requiring recording or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or related notes to the
consolidated financial statements other than the items noted within the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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{3) Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure,
such as operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capltal construction costs not
financed with debt, were as follows:

2021 2020
Financial assets:
Cas”’ and cash equivalents $ 425,799 538,725
Patient accounts receivable 437,141 333,676
Total financial assets awailable with:n one year 862,940 872,401
Liquidity reacurces:
Bank lines of credit 100,000 200,000
Total financial asseis and liquidity resources
awailable within ore year $ 962,940 R 1,072,401

The System's cash flows have seasonal variations during the year attributable to patient service
reimbursement from the State of Hllinois, payments from patients and insurance. As discussed in

note 10(d), to manage liquidity, the System maintains lines of credit with financial institutions to potentially
draw funds as needed during the year to manage cash flows. As of June 30, 2021, amounts outstanding
under lines of credit amounted to $0. Included in cash and cash equivalents as presented above, as of
June 30, 2021, the System hias $241,160 of cash held in current portion of investment, limited to use,
$1,338,180 in funds functioning as endowment and $248,6587 of CHHD investments, all available for
general expenditure upon Board approval, of which $880,953 is liquid within 12 months. As of June 30,
2020, the System has $811,842 in funds functioning as endowment and $208,450C of CHHD investments,
all avallable for general expenditure upon Board approval, of which $682,595 is liquid within 12 months.

(4) Agreements and Transactions with the University

The affiliation agreement with the University provides, among other things, that all members of the madical
staff will have academic appointments in the University. The affiliation agreement has an initial term of

40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutuat consent or as a result of a continuing
breach of a material obligation therein or in the operating agreement. The affiliation agreement
automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following expiration of the initial termn, unless
elther party provides the other with at least two years' prior written notice of its election not to renew.

The operalting agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University pravides UCMC
the right to use and operate certain facilities. The operating agreement is coterminous with the affiliation
agreement.

The lease agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University certain of the
healthcare facilities and land that UCMC operates and occupies. The lease agreements ara coterminous
with the affiliation agreement.
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UCMC purchases various services from the University, inciuding ceriain employee benefits, utilities,
security, telecommunications, and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting records are maintained
by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the University charged UCMC $34,857
and $32,392, respectively, for utilities, security, telecommunications, insurance, and overhead.

The University's Division of Biological Sciences provides physician services to UCMC. In 2021 and 2020,
UCMC recorded $271,561 and $271,888, respectively, in expense related to these services.

UCMC's Board adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net asset transfers o the
University for support of academic programs in biology and medicine. All commitments under this plan are
subject to the approval of UCMC's Board and do not represent legally binding commitments until that
approval. Unpaid portions of commitments approved by the UCMC Board are reflected as current liabilities.
UCMC recorded net asset transfers of $71,750 in both 2021 and 2020 for this support.

(5) Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts different
from their established rates. A summary of the reimbursement methodologies with major third-party payors
is as follows:

(a) Medicare

The System is paid for various services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to patient classification systems that are
pased on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The prospectively determined rates are not subject to
retroactive adjustment. The System's classification of patients under the prospective payment systems
and the appropriateness of the patients’ admissions are subject to validation reviews.

Other services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries are reimbursed based on a combination of
prospectively determined rates and cost reimbursement methodologies. For the cost reimbursement,
the System is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annuatl
cost reports by the System and audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. UCMC's Medicare
reimbursement reports through June 30, 2014 have been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.
CHHD's Medicare reimbursement reports through September 30, 2014 have been audited by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary.

{b) Medicaid

The System Is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries under
prospectively determined rates per discharge. For inpatient acute care services, payment rates vary
according lo a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Medicald outpatient services are reimbursed based on fee schedules. Medicald reimbursement
methodologies may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment levels
and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the State of llinois Medicaid program and any
such changes could have a significant effect on the System’s revenue.
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{c) Blue Cross

The System also participates as & provider of heaithcare services under reimbursement agreements
with Blue Cross under its iIndemnity program. The provisions of the agreements stipulate that services
will be reimbursed ai a tentative reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is
determined after the submission of an annual cost report by the System and a review by Blue Cross.
UCMC's and CHHD's Blue Cross reimbursement reports for 2019 and prior years have been reviewed
Ly Blue Ciuss.

(d) Other

MEIIE66

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under
these agreements is negotiated by the System and includes prospectively determined rates per
discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined per diem rates.

Patient service revenue recognized in the period from these major payor sources are as follows:

2021 2020
Medicare $ 875,059 810,312
Medicald 580,338 467,352
Managed care 1,088,817 962,261
Patients and other 8,597 10,032

Patient senice revenue 3 2,331,509 2,049,957

Patient service revenue recognized in the period by type of service is as follows:

2021 . 2020 .
(npatient $ 1,248,492 1,117,235
Outpatient/Ambulatory care 984,841 912,195
Physician sendces 98,176 20,527
$ 2,331,509 2,049,957

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020
Medicare 225% 23.5%
Medicaid 3.7 31.8
Managed care 44.4 42.0
Patients and other . 14 27
100.C % 100.0 %
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(6) Community Benefits

The following is a summary of the System’s unreimbursed cost of providing care, as defined under its
Financlal Assistance Policy, along with the unreimbursed cost of government-sponsored Indigent
healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to support education, dinical research, and other community
programs for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2024 2020
Uncompensated care:
Medicaid sponsored indigent healthcare $ 110,338 140,705
Madicare sponsored indigent healthcare — cost repoit 142,125 183,248
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcame — physician senices 87,584 43,786
Medicare prior year adjustmaent . {2,465)
Total uncompensated care 337,580 347,740
Charity care 31,282 47,033
388,882 384,773
Unreimbursed education and research:
Education {unaudited) 66,774 62,066
Researcn {(unaudited) 48,000 48,000
Total unreimbursed education and research 114,774 110,086
Total community benefits 3 483,636 504,838

The System determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the applicable
direct and indirect costs, including salaries, wages and benefits, supplies, and other operating expenses, to
determine a cost-to-charge ratio. The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care gross charges to
calculate the charity care amount reported above, The System has not amended ils financial assistance
policies in 2021.
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{7) Investments Limited as to Use
The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30, 2021 and 2020:

o 201
Saparately
invesied TRIP Other Total ¥ 2020
investments carried at fair value:
Cash equivalents $ 284 26,347 242 296 268,927 197.179
Global public equities 46,316 481,928 — 538,244 368,091
Private debt - 61,5625 — 61,525 50,082
Private equity;
U.S. venture capital 161 161,524 151,685 73,708
U.S. corporate finance - 70,791 —_ 70,791 40,391
Internatioral —_ 168,427 —_ 168,427 87,384
Real agsets:
Real estate —_ 72,146 - 72,146 56,175
Natura! rosources —_ 70,408 — 70,408 51,808
Absolute return:
Equity oriented — 155,878 -— 155,678 71,163
Global macro/relative value —_ —_ _— — 31,161
Multistrategy . 86,199 86,189 80,177
Credit oriented —_ 71,734 —_ 71,734 39,622
Protection oriented = 36,193 36,193 19,072
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries, including TIPS - 78,315 —_ 76,315 57.011
Other fied income 105,846 oo 105,848 4
Other:
Beneficial interests in trust - — 10,715 10,715 9,085
Funds in trust -— — 24,891 724,891 76,013
Total investments $ 152607 1,639,213 277 502 1,969,722 1,286,124

Investments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest, donor restricted
investments in beneficial interests in trusts, workers' compensation, self-insurance, and trustee-held funds.
Investments limited as to use are classified as current assets to the extent that they are available to meet
current liabilities. Investments are presented In the consolidated financial statements as follows:

. 2021 2020 .
GCurrent portion of investments limited to use 3 247,395 58,5600
investments limited to use, [ess cLment portion 1,722,327 1,227,624
Total investments limited to use $ 1,868,722 1,286,124
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A summary of invesiments limited as to use for the years ended June 30 Is as follows:

2021
UCMC R CHHD Total . 2020
Investments limiled as to use:
By the Board for capital
improvemonts/restrictions
by dorors 3 135,558 28,800 164,458 165,163
Funds held by custodianftrustiee
under indenture agresments 115 - 115 145
Funds held by trustee for
seltinsurance 5,685 12,671 18,656 20,769
Collateral for interest rate swap 6,120 - 8,120 55,100
Working capital account — not
limited as to use 241,160 — 241,160 —
TRIP investments 1,308,711 230,502 1,539,213 1,014,847
Total investments
limited 1o use $ 1,697,649 272,073 1,969,722 1,286,124

The composition of unrestricted investment retun, net is as follows for the years ended June 30:

. . 2021 S —
ucmc .. CHHD ) Total . 2020
Interast and dividend income, net 9,246 1,858 11,104 12,430
Reaiized gaing on sales
of securitieg, net 53,425 10,464 63,889 38,505
Changse in unrealized gains
and losses on securfies, net 255,768 56,555 312,323 {19,902)
$ 318,439 68,877 387,316 31,033

QOutside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited parinerships. As of June 30, 2021, UCMC has
commitments of $1,681 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The averall investment objective of the System is to invest its assets in a prudent manner that will achieve
a long-term rate of return sufficient to fund a portion of its annual operating activities and increase
investment value after inflation. The System diversifies its investments among various asset classes
incorporating multiple strategies and extemnal investment managers, including the University Investment
Office. Major investment decisions for investments held in TRIP and managed by the University are
authorized by the University Board of Trustee's Investment Committee, which oversees the University's
investment program in accordance with established guidelines.
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The camying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for the following approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of these instruments: cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and estimated payables under third-party
reilmbursement programs. Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and fixed-income
investments, with original maturities of three months or less, which are valued based on quoted market
prices in active markets. The majority of these investments are held in U.S. money market accounts. Global
public equity investments consist of separata accounts, commingled funds, and limited partnarships.
Securities held in separate accounts and daily traded commingled funds are generally valued based on
quoted market prices in active markets. Commingled funds with monthly liquidity are valued based on
independently determined NAV, Limited partnership interests in equity-oriented fiunds are valued based
upon NAV provided by extemnal fund managers.

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are in the form of limited
partnership interests, which typically invest in private securities for which there is no readily determinable
market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers based on a combination of
discounted cash flow analysis, industry comparables, and outside appraisals. Where private equity, real
estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded securities, these securities are generally
valued based on market prices. The value of the limited partnership interests is held at the manager’s
reported NAV, unless information becomes available indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment.
The methods used by managers to assess the NAV of these external investments vary by asset class. The
University’s Investment Office monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of managers on behalf
of the System.

The absolute retum portfolio comprises investments of limited partnership interests in hedge funds and
drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authority to invest in various asset
classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. The majority of the underlying
holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying holdings is held in marketable
securities that trade infrequently or in private investments, which are valued by the manager on the basis of
an appraised value, discounted cash flow, industry comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds
that hold illiquid investments designate them in special side pockets, which are subject to special
restrictions on rademption.

Fixed-income investments consist of directly held actively traded treasuries, separatety managed accounts,
commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority of which have maturities
greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets.

Beneficial interests in trusts represent restricted investments that are assets held by third-party trustees for
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts, comprising equities, fixed-income securities, and money market
funds.

Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds and workers’ compensation trust
funds. Funds in trust comprise 1% cash and cash equivalents and 99% fixed income investments at

June 30, 2021 and comprise 1% cash and cash equivalents, 95% fixed income investments, and 4% equity
investmenis at June 30, 2020,
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL. CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The System believes that the reported amount of its investments is a reasonable estimate of fair value as
of June 30, 2021 and 2020. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, these estimated fair values
may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market existed. Assets and
liabiliies recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Quoted Significant
prices in other Significant
active obaervabile uncbseervable 2021
markets inputs inputs Total
Asgpets {Level 1) {Level 2} {Lovel 3) fa'r value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 184,639 - - - - 184,639
Investments:
Cash equivalents 268,927 - - 268,027
Global publ'c equities 138,138 —_ —_ 138,138
Real assets:
Real estate 14,440 — - 14,440
Fixed Income:
U.S. Treasuries,
including TIPS 76,315 — — 76,315
Other fixed income 408,848 —_ — 106,846
Restricted Invastments - “n 10,715 10,715
Funds in trust 12,219 12,871 —_ 24,890
Investments measured at net
asset valua' — — — 1,330,451
Total investments
at fair value 800,524 12,671 10,715 2,154,361
Other agsets 10,177 —_ —_ 10,177
Total assets
at fair wiue $ 810,701 12,871 10,715 2,164,538
Liablfities
Interes! rate swap payabie $. a0 147,362 2 147 382
Total liahilities at
fair value $ —_ 147,362 o 147,362
ATTACHMENT 35
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments:
Cash equivalents
Global public equities
Real assets:
Real estate
Fixed income:
U.S. Treasuries,
including TIPS
Other fixed income
Restricted imestments
Funds in trust
inesiments measured at NAV

Total investments

at fair value
Other assels

Total assets
at fair value

Llabititles

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements
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Interest rate swap payabie

Total lisbilities at

fair value

Quoted Significant
pricesin other Significent
active observable unobsarvable
markets inputs inputs 2020
{Level 1} {Level 2} {Level 3) Total
538,725 — —_ 538,725
197,179 — — 187,179
67,864 — —_ 97,864
10,270 e _ 10,270
57,011 - - - 57,011
4 - —_— 4
— -— 8,085 9,085
61,411 14,803 .- 76,014
e — = 838,697
962,484 14,603 9,085 1,824,849
8,343 —_ — 8,343
870,807 14,603 5,085 1,833 162
— 193,907 o 193,807
— 193,907 — 193,907

' Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its
equivalent} practical expedient have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. The fair valua
amounts presented in this table are Intended to permit reconcliiation of the fair value hierarchy to the
amounts presented in the consolidated balance sheets.

During 2021, there were no transfers between investment between Levels 2 and

3. The interest rate swap

amangement has inputs, which can generally be corroborated by market data and is, therefore classified

within Level 2.

95217866
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June 30, 2021 and 2020

The following table presents activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 for assets measured at fair value
using uncbservable inputs classified in Level 3:

level 3
rollforward

Beginning fair value $ 9,085
Change in unrealized gains and losses, net ) 1,630

Ending fair value $ 10,715

In addition, investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk assoclated with certain investment securities, it Is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of the System's investments could oceur in the next term and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. The
methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
valve or refiective of fulure fair values. Furthermore, while the System believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate
of fair value at the reporting date.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the System’s long-lived
partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry
comparables, and outside appraisals. Significant changes In any inputs used by investment managers in
determining NAVs in isolation would result in a significant change in fair value measurement.

The System has made investments in various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered into
contractual agreements that may limit its ability to initiate redemptions due to notice periods, lockups, and
gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset dlass anc type of investment are provided below:

Remaining Redemption rasirictions
life Rademption terms and tarms
Cash NA Daily None
Gichal pubfc equities:
Commingled finds N/A Daily to triennial with notice Lock up provisions for up to 2 years;
periods of 2 to 180 days some investments have a portion
of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions permitied
Partnershlps NA Monthly to tiennial with notice  Lock up provisions for up 1o 3 yeaw;
periods of 7 to 90 days some imestments have a portion
of capital heid in side pockets
with no redemptions pemitted
Separate accounts N/A Daily with notice periods of None
1 to 80 days
ATTACHMENT 35
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2021 and 2020

Remaining Rademption restrictions
life Rademption terms and terms
Pnvete dett:
Drawdown partnerships 110 1 years Redemptions not pemiitied NA
Partnerships VA Redemptions not permitted Capital held in side pockels with no
redemnptions permitbed
Nutual bond and equity N/A Dalfy to monthly with notice None
furds periods of 1 to 30 days
Reel estsate funds N/A Quarterly with notice pertods None
of 45 to 90 days
Funds of funds N/A Monthly to quarterly with notice  None
periods of 15 to 185 days
Private equily:
Drawdown partrerships 110 21 years Redemptions nol permitted N/A
Separate accounts N/A Dally with notice perfod of 1 day ~ None
Partnerships A Semiannual with notice period A portion of capital is held in side
of 90 days pockets with no redemptions
pemmitied
Reel estate:
Drawdown partnerships 1to 16 years Redemptions not permitied NA
Separate accounts N/A, Daily with notice period of 5 days None
Naturel resounces:
Drawdown partnarships 110 17 years Redemptions nat pemitted N/A
Comminglad tinds N/A Daily with notice perdod of 1 day  None
Absoluie retum:
Commingled Kinds NA Daliy to trienn’al with notice Lock p provisions for up to thres year
periods of 1 t0 122 days some investments hawe a portion
of capital held in side pockels
with ro redemptions permitted
Drawdown parinerships 11o 4 years Redemptions not permitied NIA
Partnerships NA Quarterty to triennial with Lock up provisions for up lo fve years
notice pertods o 45 to some imestments hawe a portion
180 days of capital held in side pockets
with no redemptions permitied
Fired income:
Commingied funds A Woeekiy to monthly with notice None
perlods of 5 o 10 days
Separate accounts N/A Daily to monthly with notice None
periods of 1 to 30 days
Funds in trust N/A Dally None
ATTACHMENT 35
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

(8) Endowments

The System’s endowment consists of individual donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated
endowment funds for a variety of purposes plus the following where the assets have baen designated for
endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreements, and other net assets. The endowment includes
both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board to function as endowments.
The net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board to function as
endownients, are dassified and 1eporled based on e exislenue or absence of dunor-imposed resbiclions.

lllinois is govemed by the Uniform Prudent Managemant of tnstitutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of
UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, As a result of this
interpretation, the System classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The System has beneficial interests in trusts. The System has recorded its share of the principal of the
trusts as net assets with donor restrictions. Distributions from the trusts are recorded within net assets
without restrictions if unrestricted; otherwise, they are classified as net assets with donor restrictions until
appropriated for expenditure. In some instances, the historical costs basis of the funds is not available as
the System received the shares in 1929. The foir value of assets associated with individua! donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the amount of the original donation as a resutt of unfavorable market
conditions. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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June 30, 2021 and 2020

The System has the following donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020 delineated by net assei class:

2021
Without Donor With Donor
g . Restrictions  Restrictons Total
Changes in the fair value of endownent investments:
Investment return:
Endowment yield (interest and diidends) $ 9,248 679 9,925
Nel appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on investments 308,193 20,110 338,303
Imestmant retum, net of payout 318,439 20,780 348,228
Endowment payout (53,673) (8.416) (62,088)
Net investment refum 264,766 21,373 286,139
Other changes in endowmnent imestments:
Gifts and pledge payments received in cash 157,589 18 157,807
Other changes 5,163 — 5183
Total other changes in endowment
investments “62,752 18 162,770
Net change in endowment investments 427,518 21,391 448,900
Endowment investments at:
Beginnirg of year 911,642 93,259 1,004,941
End of year $__ 1339160 114,680 1,453,850
Investments by type of fund:
Donor-restricted “true” endowment:
Historical gitt walue $ — 18,930 18,930
Appreciation -- 85,760 95,760
Board-designated Yunds functioning as endowment” 1,339,160 — 1,336,160
Tolal — as above $_ 1339160 114,880 1,453, 850
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2020
Without Doror With Denor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Changes in the fair waiue of endowment imestments:
Investment retumn:
Endowment yield (interest and dividends) $ 10,250 676 10,628
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
on investments 13,533 802 14,335
ivestment retum, net of payout 23,783 1,478 25,261
Endowmont payout {48.014) (3,883) (51,897)
Net investment retum (24,231) (2,405) (20,636)
Other changes in endowment investments:
Gifts and pladge payments received In cash 8,302 10 8,312
Other changes . 4,000 — 4,000
Total other changas in endowment
investments 12, 302 10 12,312
Net change in endowment investments {11,928) (2,395) (14,324)
Endowment invesiments at:
Begianing of year 923,571 95,604 1,019,285
End of year $ 911,642 93,209 1,004,941
Investments by type of fund:
Donor-restricted "trug” endowment:
Historical gift value s - 17.280 17,280
Appraciation e 78,019 78,019
Board-designated “funds functioning as endowment™ 911,642 . 911,642
Total - as abowe $ 911,842 93,208 1,004,941

Investment and Spending Policies

The System has adopted endowment investment and
predictable stream of funding to programs su,
purchasing power of endowment assets. The
rate of return of approximately 7-8% annually.
relies on a total retum strategy in which inve:
{realized and unrealized gains) and current
may vary from this amount.

For endowments invested in TRIP, the Board of the
used to appropriate endowment funds for e
The University utilizes the total retumn co

193217864
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University's total return objective, between 4.5% and 5.5% of a 12-quarter moving average of the fair value
of endowment investments, lagged by one year, is available each year for expenditure in the form of
endowment payout. The exact payout percentage, which is set each year by the Roard with the objective of
a 5% average payout over time, was 5.5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, If
endowment income received is not sufficient to support the total retum objective, the balance is provided
from capital gains. If income received is in excess of the objective, the balance is reinvested in the
endowment.

For endowments invasted apart from TRIP, the System calculates a payout of 4% annuaslly on a rolling
24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected long-term
rate of retumn on its endowment.

(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment
The components of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30 are as follows:

2021 2020

Land and tand rights $ 55,610 55,810
Buildings and improvements 1,941,958 1,914,984
Equipment 779,017 753,017
Construction in progress 35,712 21,759
2,813,187 2,745,370

Less accumulated depreciation (1,304,047) (1,187,022)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net $ 1,509,150 1,558,348

The cost of buildings that are jointly used by the University and the System is allocated based on the lease
provisions. In addition, land and land rights include $15,400 and $17,200 for 2021 and 2020, respectively,
which represents the unamortized portion of initial lease payments made to the University.

Capitalized interest costs in 2021 and 2020 were approximately $751 and $500, respectively. Construction
in progress consists of various routine capital improvements and renovation projects. As of June 30, 2021,

the System had total contractual commitments associated with angoing capital projects of approximately
$5,300.

(10) Long-Term Debt

The fong-term debt of both UCMC and CHHD is issued pursuant to the second Amended and Restated
Master Trust Indenture (MT1) dated as of June 1, 2019, as subsequently amended and supplemented. The
Obligated Group Members are UCMC, CHHD, Ingalls Memoria! Hospital, Ingalls Home Care, and Ingalls
Development Foundation. Each series of bonds is collateralized by the unrestricted receivables of the
obligated Group Members and subject to certain restrictions under the MTI,
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Long-tem debt at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of the following:

Figcal yoar
maturity _intorest rate 2024 2020
University of Chicago Medical Center:
Fixed rate:
Mknois Finance Authority:
Serles 2009A (20098 bonds peid off 06-15-20) 2022 5.0% $ 12,7195 71,970
Series 2009D1 and 200802 (Synthetically fixed rate) 2044 KX 70,000 70,000
Series 2000E1 and 2009F2 (Syntheticatly fxed rate) 2044 as 70,000 70,000
Series 2010A and 20108 {Synihetically fxed rate) 2045 38 92,500 92,500
Serles 2011A and 20%1B {Synihetically fxed rute) 2045 8 82,500 92,500
Series 2015A 2028 50 21,805 21,885
Serles 2016A 2027 5.0 22,830 22,830
Series 20168 2042 5.0 184,490 164,480
Series 2020A 2026 2.5 47,270 .
Teachers Insurance and Annusty Association of
America (TIAA):
Serios 2017A 2047 44 30,000 30,000
New York Life:
Series 2019£ fixed rate taxable 2042 27 60,645 63,645
Unamortized premium . 15,276 18,073
Totai fixed rate 700,201 717,903
Varigble rate;
Series 2013A 2050 25 68,963 68.403
Wrois Educational Facilites Aulhonty (TEFA) 2038 1.1 59,028 82 590
Total variable rate 125,89! 130,993
Unamortized debt iasusnce costs {4.607) {4,891)
Lass cument portion of long-tomm doht {17.358) {16,625)
Total UCMC lorg-temm portion of debt, fass
cument portion 804,227 827,280
UCMC Title Holding Corporstion:
Fixed rate:
Browntield Revitalization 40 -- Promigsory nole A 2024 1.5% 4,850 4,850
Urban Developrment Fund XLVI - Promissory note A 2024 1.5 4,578 4,850
Urban Development Fund U!  Promissory note A 2024 18 6,500 8,500
Citi NMTC - QLICI 2022 1.2 3478 3,476
Citi NMTC - QLICI 2032 1.2 1,620 1,620
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Fiscal year
maturity = [Inferestmate  202¢ . 2020

URP QLICA - Loan A 2047 1.0% § 734 7,34
URP QLICI -~ Loan B 2047 1.0 2,666 2,668
SCORE QUICI ~loan A 2047 1.0 4,176 4,175
SCORE QLIC| - Loan B 2047 10 4,704 1,704
CNL QLICT - Loan A 2047 1.0 3,455 3.455
CNI QLA ~ Loan B 2047 10 1,645 1,545
Tolal UCMC Titie Holding Corporation dabi 41,902 42,176
Less current portion {1,882) (275)
Title holding company LT portion 40,040 41,601

Total UCMC debt, excluding cument portion $ 844,267 869,281

Community Health and Hospital Divsion:
Foted Rate: Series 2017 2034 46 $ 34,325 38,305
Fixed rate: Series 2019 2042 27 63,165 64,715
Uramortized debt issuance costs (345) (385)
Total debt and unamortized premiuma

{discour) 87,145 100,655
Less curment portion of jong-tenn debt {3,655) (3,530}
Total CHHD debt, excluding curent portion $ 93 490 87,125

Total notes and bonds payable $ 960,832 986,838
Less cument portion {22 875) (20,430}
Long-term debt, excluding cument portion $ 937,757 966,406

Scheduled annual repayments, excluding costs, premiums, or discounts, for the next five years and
thereafter are as follows at June 30:

Year ending June 30:

2022 $ 22,875
2023 23,598
2024 23,303
2025 25,579
2026 26,450
Thereafter 828,482

$ 850,307
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(a) Letters of Credit

Under its various credit agreements, UCMC is subject to certain financial covenants, including
maintaining a minimum debt service Coverage ratio; maintaining minimum levels of days’ cash on hand;
maintaining debt to capitalization at certain levels; limitations on selling, leasing, or otherwise,
disposing of UCMC property; and certain other nonfinancial covenants.

Paymont on cach of the variable ratc demand revenuc bonds s also collateralized by a lefter of crodit.
The letters of credit that support the Series 2009D and 2009E: bonds expire in June 2022 and

June 2026, respectively. The letters of credit that support the Series 2010A and 2010B bonds expire in
May 2025 and July 2024, respectively. The letters of credit that support the Series 2011A and

Series 2011B bonds expire in May 2025 and May of 2026, respectively, Payment of each of the IEFA
bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing May 2022, The letters of credit are subject to
certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The most restrictive financial ratio is to
maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1:35:1.

Included in UCMC's debt is $58,028 of commerclal paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variable rate
demand bonds. In the event that UCMC's remarketing agents are unable to remarket the bonds, the
frustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments under the
letters of credit are between one and three years, beginning after a grace period of at least one year
from the event, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the original bond issus. Any
bonds tendered are stili eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently remarketed would be subject to
the original bond repayment schedules.

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt based on the variable rate demand debt being put
back to the Systsm and a corresponding draw being made on the underlying credit facility, if available,
excluding costs, premiums, or discounts, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2022 $ 81,703
2023 153,584
2024 107,039
2025 136,856
2026 26,480
Thereafter . 444,635

$ 950,307

(b) Recent Financing Activity

In August 2020, UCMC issued fixed rate bonds in the amount of $47,270. The Series 2020A bonds
were sold to JPMorgan Chase Bank. The purpose of the Series 2020A bonds was to provide for the
redemption of UCMC's Series 20098 bonds in full on August 15, 2020.
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{c) Lines of Credjt

Al June 30, 2020, UCMC had two lines of credit totaling $200,000 from commercial banks. UCMC
allowed one of the $100,000 lines 1o expire per Its terms on Aprll 28, 2021. As of June 30, 2021, UCMC
has a $100,000 line of credit from a commercial bank. The line of credit expires March 2, 2022,

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, no amount was outstanding under the lines.

(d) Interest Payments

The System paid interest, net of capitalized interest, of approximatety $31,300 and $32,800 in 2021
and 2020, respectively.

(e) UCMC Title Holding Corporation

During fiscal years 2017 and 2018, UCMC entered into New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) financing
agreements with various entities for the purposes of financing various projects at UCMC that would
benefit the surrounding community. The NMTC program was established in 2000 by the United States
Congress and is administered by the Department of Treasury to encourage private investment in
qualifying low-income communities. Pursuant to Section 45(D) of the Internal Revenue Code, UCMC's
NMTC structure consists of an NMTC investor {Investor) who provided qualified equity investments to a
community development entity (CDE) who in tum provided debt financing to a separate not for profit tax
exempt entity, which is a qualified active low income community business (QALICB).

In August 2017, UCMC was a lender in the NMTC structure for the construction of a new emergency
department and adult trauma center. Because UCMC has the power to appoint all board members of
UCMC Title Holding Corporation Il NFP, the QALICB has been consolidated in the financial

statements. The Investor made qualifying equity investments into various CDE funds, including UCMC
Trauma Center NMTC Investment Fund, LLG (the CDE Funds), which in tum provided debt financing of
$20,880 to UCMC Title Holding Corporation to fund qualified construction costs and equipment, as
required under the terms of the agreement. Management anticipates that the NMTC structure will stay
In effect through July 2025 when the NMTC tax compitance period expires. At that time, management
believes the Investor will exercise its Put Option in the Put and Call Agreement, allowing UCMC to
acquire a 100% equity interest in the investment fund. If the Put Option is not exercised, UCMC has the
right to call for the purchase of a 100% equity interest in the investment fund at a fair market valus. In
either case, once the option is exercised, UCMC's loan to the investment fund would be extinguished,
the investment fund and the CDE Funds woutd be dissolved, and the loans from the CDE Funds to
UCMC Title Holding Corporation Il NFP would be extinguished.

Derivative Instruments

The Systam has interest rate related derivative instruments to manage its exposure on debt instruments.
By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes In interest rates, the System
exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under
the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the System. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk;
however, the System is required to post collateral to the counterparty when certain thresholds as dafined in
the derivative agreements are met. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument
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that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes is
managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may
be undertaken. System management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of their derivative
positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

The System Is required to post collateral under the specific terms and conditions for the various interest
rate swap agreements as described below. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, $8,120 and $55,100 was held as
collateral, respectively, and was recorded in current portion of investments limited to use and included in
Note 7 as funds in trust for disclosure. Collateral postings are primarily driven by the value of the swap as
measured at the reset date. Collateral requirements increase if credit ratings were to be downgraded.

The fair value of each swap is the astimated amount UCMC would receive or pay to terminate the swap
agreement at the reporting dste, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness
of the swap counterparties. The fair value is included in interest rate swap liability on the consolidated
balance sheets, while the change in fair value is recorded in other changes in net assets without donor
restrictions for the effective portion of the change and in nonoperating gains and losses for the ineffective
portion of the change.

UCMC Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In August 2008, UCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contemplated variable rate
borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against interast on the variable
rate debt. The fair value of these swap agreements is the estimated amount that UCMC would have to pay
or receive to terminate the agreements as of the consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account
current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparty. The swap values are
based on the LIBOR. The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Management has determined that the interest rate swaps are effective and have qualified for hedge
accounting. The fair value of the UCMC swap agreement liabilities was $138,563 and $182,470 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively, and has been inclyded in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The net effective portion of the change in fair value on the UCMC swap
agreements of $44,967 and $(53,268) in 2021 and 2020, respectively, has been included in the change in
net assels without donor restrictions in the accompanying 2021 and 2020 consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets without donor restriction. Management has recognized
ineffectiveness of approximately $6885 in 2021 and an ineffectiveness of $(385) in 2020 in nonoperating
gains and losses. This movement reflects the spread between tax-exempt interest rates and LIBOR during
the period. The effective portion of these swaps is included in other changes In net assets without donor
restrictions. The interest rate swaps terminate on February 1, 2044. Cash settlement payments related to
the swaps are recorded in interest expense.

On July 1, 2020 UCMC entered into a novation of the interest rate swap agreements for a five-year term,
The novation to the new parties is under like-kind terms and arrangements that do not require
dedesignation of the heading relationship and related accounting.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The following summarizes the general terms of each of UCMC’s swap agreements:

Assoclated Cuzrent
Effective date dobiseries  Orig'malterm  notionalamount UCMCpays  UCMC recelves
August 8, 2011 2008 DFE, 2010
AB, 2011 AB 325Years $ 162500000 3.89%  88%ofLIBOR
Aigusta 2011 2008 DIF_ 2010
AB,2011AB 32.5 Years 162,500,000 397%  68%of LIBOR

CHHD Swap Agreement

CHHD entered into an interest rate Swap agreement on June 28, 2004 to lock in long-term fixed rates on
the Series 2004 varlable-rate debt issuance, with a notional amount of $38,325 and a Mmaturity date of

May 15, 2034. This agreement was amended on March 1, 2013. Under the amended agreement, the
notlonal amount and maturity did not change, and CHHD receives, on a monthly basis, 87% of one-month
LIBOR plus 47 5 basis points and makes payments on a monthly basis, an annualized fixed rate of 4.61%.
The swap is not designated as a hedging instrument, and therefore, the change in fair value of the 2004
interest rate swap agreement of $2,837 and $(2,318) in 2021 and 2020, respectively, was recognized as a
component of nonoperating gains in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes
in net assets without donor restriction, The fair value of the Series 2004 interest rate swap agreement
liability of $8,799 and $11,436 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respsctively, is included as a component of
other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The differential to be paid or
received under the Series 2004 interest rate Swap agreement is recognized monthly and has been included
as a component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets without donor restriction.

A summary of outstanding positions under the interest rate swap agreements for CHHD at June 30, 2021 is
as follows;

Notlonal
Series amount Maturity date Rate recaived Rate paid
2004 Interest rate swap
Agreement: $ 40,126 May 15, 2034 % of LIBOR Fixed 4.61%
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

{12) Leases

#22-004

The components of lease cost for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 repoited as part of other
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets without donor

restrictions, were as follows:

Operating lease expense [ 4

Financae leasa expense:
Amontization of right-cfuse assets
Interest on lease Kabilities

Total finance lease expense
Total [ease expense 3

2021 2020
10.814 10,078

5,802 4,970

1,146 1,181

8,048 8,181

17,762 18,237

Amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020
Operating Leases:
Right-cf-use assets — operating lsases $ 84,323 53,043
Accumulated amortization 4175 3,038
Other assets, net 60,148 50 005
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 4,626 4,596
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 55,622 45,409
Total operating lease liabilities $ 60,148 50,005
Finance Leases:
Right-of-use assets — finance leases $ 37,818 38,347
Accumulated amortization __7.643 4,870
Other assets, net 30,175 33,377
Current portion of other (ong-ierm liabilities 3,326 7.521
Other long-term liabilities, less cument portion 28,055 29,466
Total operating lease liabilities S 31,384 36,987
ATTACHMENT 35
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Other information related to leases as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was as foliows:

Supplemental cash fiow information:

2021 2020

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:

Opcrating oash fow from operating leasce $ 10,814 8,383

FInancing cash flow from finance leases 8,113 2,466
ROU assets obtainad in exchange for lease obligations:

Operating leases 14,318 §3,043

“inance leases 2,202 27,681
Reductions to ROU assets resulting from reductions 10 lease obfigations:

Operating leases 4,175 3,038

Finance leases 8,058 4,970
Weighted average remaining lease term:

Operating leases 12.7 years 9.1 years

Finance leases 13.4 years 11.2 years
Welghted-average discount rate:

Operating leases 22% 21%

Finance leases 35 33

Amounts disclosed for ROV assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations include amounts added to
the carrying amount of ROU assets resulting from lease modifications and reassessments.

Maturities of lease liabilities under nancancelable leases as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Oporatlng Flnance

2022 $ 8,316 4,340
2023 6,233 4,061
2024 5,290 3,426
2025 3.614 2,885
20286 and thereafter 49 136 26,441
70,589 41,183

Less amount representing Interest 5,883 8,779
Present wvalue of net minimum leass payments 3 60,906 31,384

(13) Insurance
Professional and General Liability

The System maintains separate self-Insurance programs for UCMC and CHHD. UCMC is Included under
cartain of the University's insurance programs. Since 1977, UCMC, in conjunction with the University, has
maintained a self-insurance program for its medical malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $5,000 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims In excess of $5,000

similar terms in the future,

CHHD maintains a self-insurance program for professional and general liability. Coverage from commercial
insurance carriers is maintained for claims in excess of seif-insured retentions at various levels by policy
year. CHHD established a trust fund with an independent trustee for the administration of assets funded
under the malpractice and general liability self-insurance program,

A comparison of the estimated liabllity for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and assets
available for claims for the combined University and UCMC self-insurance program as of June 30, 2021
and 2020 is presented below:

2021 2020
Actuarial present value of seltinsurance liability for medical
malpractice $ 202,419 185.822
Total assets awailable for claims 344,879 258,113

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotiated pro rata share of the actuarially determined
normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over five years, with no retroactive adjustments, as
provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2021, UCMC's expense is estimated to be
approximately $11,000 related to maipractice i :

On April 30, 2019, CHHD enterad into a loss portfolio transfer for the Ingalls Memorial Hospital medical
malpractice program by obtaining an occumrence-based policy for claims through June 30, 2018 through a
payment of $47,311 to an unrelated insurance company. The loss portfolio transferred was structured
through Ingalls Casualty Insurance (the Captive) entity for purposes of additional insurance protection and
risk management. At June 30, 2021, there was no additional liabiiity calculated by the programs actuaries
that would require additional reserves by CHHD or the Captive. Accruals for CHHD professional and
general liabliities are recorded on a discounted basis consistent with the University's insurance program.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

(14} Pension Plans
Active Plans

A majority of UCMC'’s personnel participate in the University's defined-benefit and contribution pension
plans, which are considered multiemployer pension plans. Under the defined-benefit portion of this plan,
benefits are based on years of service and the employee’s compensation for the five highest paid
consecutive years within the last ten years of employment. UCMC and the University make annual
contributions to this portion of the plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding based on the guidelines
set forth by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, on an actuarially determined basis.
UCMC recognizes its share of net periodic pension cost as expense and any difference in the contribution
amount as a transfer of net assets without donor restrictions. The adjustment to net assets without donor
restrictions was $2,781 and $(2,823) for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. UCMC expects to make
contributions not to exceed $2,200 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021,

Effective January 1, 2017, the 401(a) defined-benefit pension plan was frozen for UCMC employees
participating in the plan and was replaced with an enhanced defined-contribution plan. Under the defined
contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan participants make contributions that accrue to the benefit
of the participants at retirement. UCMC's contributions, which are based on a percentage of each covered
employee’s salary, totaled approximately $11,700 and $24,900 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

UCMC's expense related the multiemployer University's defined-benefit plans included in the University's
consolidated financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Contribution of UCMC
Plan name 2021 2020
Unhersity of Chicago Retirement income
Plan for Employees 36-2177138-002 § --
University of Chicago Pension Plan for
Staff Employeas 36-2177139-003 — —

3

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status for the University’s defined-benefit plan
included in the University's consolidated financial statements as of June 30 are shown below.

2021 2020
Projected benefit obligation $ 1.006,857 1,057,892
Fair value of plan assels 871,372 788,782
Deficit of plan assets over benefit obligation $ (135485) _ (271,119)
ATTACHMENT 35
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The weighted average assumptions used in the accounting for the ptan are shown below.

2021 2020

Discount rate 3.2% 2.9 %
Expected retum on plan assets 6.0 6.3
Rate of compensation increase 35 as
The weighted average asset allocation for the plan is as follows:

2021 _2020
Domestic equities 26 % 26 %
International equity 21 24
Fixed income 53 50

100 % 100 %

Domestic and internationat equities are presented as Level 1 investments and fixed income securities are
presented as Leve! 2 investments within the fair value hierarchy.

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers anticipated payout patterns as well as
investment returns on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value the pension and
other postretirement benefit obligation is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated
payments. These inputs {o the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Expected future benefit payments exciuding plan expenses are as follows:

Fisczal year:
2022 5 75,338
2023 53,519
2024 53,414
2025 52,974
2026 54,581
2027-2031 280,844

UCMC and CHHD also maintain additional defined-contribution retirement pians for employees. The
System's pension expense under these distinct definad-contribution retirement plans for UCMC was $700
and $8,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

CHHD expense under these distinct defined-contribution retirement plans was $800 and $2,900 for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

Curtailed and Frozen Pian

In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louis A. Weiss Memorial Hospital Pension Plan
(Employer Identification Number 36-34881 83, Plan Number 003), which covers employees of a former
affiliate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen, All benefit accruals are fully vested.,

As the plan was fully terminated and annuitized in FY 2021 UCMC will not be required to make future
contributions or have benefit paymonts.

Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized in net assets without donor
restrictions include the following:

Years endod June 30

2021 2020
Net periodic pension cost:
Sendce cost $ —_ —
Net periodic pension cost $_ e =1
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized
in unrestricted net assets:
interest cost $ 683 1,730
Expected retum on plan assets (1,063) (2,598)
Amortization of unrecogrized net actuarial logs 727 1,279
Total recognized in net perodic pension cost and
net aseete without donor restricticns $ 37 411
ATTACHMENT 35
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statermnents
June 30, 2021 and 2020

The following table sets forth additional required pension disclosure information for this plan;

Years ended June 30

2021 2020
Changes in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 54,411 51,248
inferest cost 683 1,730
Net actuarial loss (2,197} 4,929
Settlements (50,994) —_
Benefits paid (1,903) {3,494)
— 54,411
Changes in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 48,464 45,121
Actual returm on pian assets 1,477 3,837
Employer contribution 2,956 3,000
Settlements (50,994}
Benefits paid {1,903) (3,484)
— 48 484
Funded status at end of year 3 —_ (5,847)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are included in other noncurrent liabilities.

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for the net
periodic pension cost were as follows:

2024 2020
Discount rate 26% 2.8 %
Expected retum on plan assets 4.3 6.0
Rate of compensation increase N/A NIA
ATTACHMENT 35
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

{16) Functional Expenses
Total operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended June 30;

2021 x
Hezlthcare
servicas Admin Fundraising Total
Salarles, wages, and benefits $ 1,017,375 115,028 1,802 1,134,205
Supplies and olher 846,656 87,180 741 944 587
Physician senices 297,180 8,245 —_ 303,435
Insurance 39,458 145 - 39,603
Interest 36,242 3,501 —_ 38,743
Medicaid provider tax 76,683 —_ _ 75,683
Deprectation and amortization 131,844 863 — 132,707
Total s 2,444 448 222 972 2,543 2,669,983
Healthcare
sorvices Admin Fundralsing Total
Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 870,553 92,033 2,078 1,084,685
Supplies and other 776,521 82,437 1,152 880,110
Physician senvices 260,998 10.454 - 301,453
Insurance 29,841 214 —_— 30,055
interest 39,480 2,767 —_ 42,257
Medicaid provider tax 66,640 — — 66,640
Depreciation and amortization 130,744 865 — 131,608
Total s 2,304 788 188,770 3,231 2,498 780

In accordance with ASU 2016-14, Tapic 958, Not-for-profit entities are required to report expenses both by
their natural classification and their functional classification. Functional classifications have been
determined based on their relationship to major program services and supporting activities. For support
functions directly related to major program services, an allocation has been appiied based on the
percentage of time and effort devoted to the program service. For overhead expenses such as utilities and
interest expense, an allocation based on square foolage has been applied. The costs related to support
functions not directly related to program activities have been fully classified as supporting activities.

ATTACHMENT 35
165

¥STNTE6.E



#22-004

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2021 and 2020

{16) Contingencies
{a) Litigation

The System is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that are incidental to its normal business
activities. In the opinion of the System, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will
not materially affect the consofidated operations or net assets of the System.

(b) Regulatory Investigation and Other

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory investigations
and compliance audits of healthcare providers. The System is subject to these regulatory efforts.
Additionally, the laws and regulations govemning the Medicare, Medicaid, and other government
healthcare programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation, making compliance an
ongoing challenge for the System and other healthcare organizations. Recently, the federal
government has increased its enforcement activity, inciuding audits and investigations related to billing
practices, clinical documentation, and related matters. The System maintains a system-wide
compliance program and conducts audits and other activities to identify potential compliance issues,
including overpayments by governmentat payors. Compliance reviews may result in liabilities to
government healthcare program, which could have an adverse impact on the System’s net patient
service revenue.

{¢c) Tax Exemption for Sales Tax and Property Tax

Effective June 14, 2012, the govemnor of lllinois signed into taw, Public Act 97-0688, which created new
standards for state sales tax and property tax exemptions in lllincis. The law establishes new standards
for the issuance of charitable exemptions, including requirements for a nonprofit hospital to certify
annually that in the prior year, it provided an amount of qualified services and activities to low-income
and underserved individuals with a value at least equal to the hospital’s estimated property tax liability.
The System certified in 2021 and 2020 and has not recorded a liability for related property taxes based
upon management’s current determination of qualified services provided.
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Economic Feasibility
Attachment 36

Economic Feasibility

F. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements.

The Project will be financed through cash on hand and securities and a lease. Letters
attesting to the reasonableness of the financing arrangements are attached.

G. Conditions of Debt Financing,

The Project is being paid for through cash and securities and therefore, these criteria do
not apply.

H, Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs.

There are no state standards for Master Design Permits and those standards will be
addressed in the Construction CON application.

I. Project Operating Costs

Because this project is for a
Master Design Permit, there
are no associated operating
costs.

J. Total Effect of Project on Capital Costs

Annual Project Depreciation © $5,262,188

Equivalent Patient Days 831,367

Capital Cost per Equiv. Pat. Day $6.33

UCMC Capital Cost FY 2021 $37,569,000
ATTACHMENT 36
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Section XI, Safety Net Impact Statement

Attachment 37

Since the proposed Project is a non-substantive project, the safety net impact statement is not
applicable. Nevertheless, for informational purposes, a copy of UCMC’s 2020 Community

Benefit Report is included in Attachment 38.

#22-004

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031

CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) FY19 FY20 FY21
Inpatient 695 940 340
Outpatient 10,535 21,192 14,870
Total 11,230 22,132 15,210
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient $12,182,929 |  $17,320,551 $3,505,779
Qutpatient $11,497,252 | $24,157,208 $16,982,180
Total $23,680,181 |  $41,477,759 $20,487,959
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) FY19 FY20 FY21
Inpatient 12,278 11,635 12,335
Qutpatient 152,071 147,940 138,695
Total 164,349 159,576 151,030
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $346,893,000 | $334,038,769 $409,276,752
Outpatient $110,369,000 |  $88,188,976 $143,646,625
Total $457,262,000 | $422,227,745 $552,923,377
ATTACHMENT 37
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Charity Care Information
Attachment 38

Shown below is the amount of charity care provided by UCMC

CHARITY CARE

FY19 FY20 FY21
Net Patient Revenue $2,121,969,000 | $1,746,725,000 | $2,000,232,997
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $138,262,328 | $181,577.629 | $115,238,011
Cost of Charity Care $23,680,181 $41,477,759 |  $20,487,959
Ratio of Charity Care Cost to Net Patient Rev. 1.12% 2.37% 1.02%
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To you, our community.

Through community benefit programs, partnerships and
other investments, the University of Chicago Medicine, with
its Urban Health Initiative and its community and healthcare
partners, seek to improve health equity for residents of
Chicago’s South Side. We want to make sure that everyone
is able to live thelr most healthful life,

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic highlighted stark health
disparitias. Qur Black and Brown communities bore tha
haaviest burden of the COVID-19 pandemic, through
lliness, loss of lite and economic hardship. These disparities
demonstrate how raclsm js a public health erisls,

Throughout the pandemic, the University of Chicago
Medicine has been focused on providing world-class care
to our patients and our community and working with our
Community Advisory Council and <community parthers to
continue to advance health equity.

We invite you to learn sbout our community investment
and how we partner with the community to respond to
crisis, deal with community health priorities and work to
bulld a healthier South Side,

Kannath Branda
5. Peloneky, MD Jackiewicz Gattie, RN, BSN, MBA

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT
Cornmunitv.UChlcquedlcl'm.omlzozo

COVER: O3CAR SANCHEE PHOTO
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Fiscal 2020 Investment In the Community:

$567.1 Million

Increase of 9.2% over fiscal 2019

This investment included supporting patients who rely on
Medicare or Medicald or who were not able to pay for care.
it also included teaching and training future healthcare
professionals, funding medlcal research and donating to
community groups for health and wellness programs.

Totat investment: Fiscal 2020

i $658,000
$748,000

$4.34

BN Uncompensated care
B £405.6M Medicald and Medicare program losses
B $66.34 Unrecaverable patient debt
£ 541.5M Medicaid program losses

Bl 450 Medical research

BN 54.2M Uncategorized community benefits

B9 858,000 Cash/in kind

BB $746,000 Medicat education

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, ¥VISIT
Communl!y.Uchlugonudlclm.orﬂlzozo
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HEALTH EQUITY

Life expectancy
It is undeniable: on Chicago's
Racism Is a public :::’:::ﬁ';;
health crisis. T
UChicago Medicine is Just 9 miles north
working within the medical in Streatervillg,
center, in the community and the average life
across the city to end health expectancy s 00,
disparities and promate
heaith equity, Including: é‘?,g,‘}';,m Dashboard

* In June 2020, UChicago
Medicine and mora than
40 healthcare organizetions took a health equity
pledge to overcome health disparities in mihority
communities. The open fetter was published in the
Chicago Sun-Times and Chicago Tribune,

+ UChicago Medicine announced a system-wide
Equity Plan to identify and address inequities in the
workforce, work ciimate, healthcane delivery and
services, and community,

+ Along with St. Bernard Hospital and Advocate Trinity
Hospital, UChicago Medicine launched the South
Side Health Transformation Project o bring together
faderally qualified health centers {FQHCx), Faith
leaders, community organizations, elected officlals
and residents to secure state funding and support for
a new South Side health transformation plan. Nearly
500 paople have joined the affort.

In fiscal 2020, the Diversity, Incluston and Equity
Office provided 7,418 hours of cultural compatence
training to staff — an increase of 121 percent over
the prior year,

5217566
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HEALTH PRIORITIES

Health priorities Identifled In
2018-2018 Community Health Needs
Assessmaent:

s Pravent and manage chronic diseases (asthma, disbates)

# Build trauma resillency (violence recovery, mental heaith)

» Reduce inequities caused by social determinants of health
(access to care, food insecurities, employment)

In 2020, UChicago Medicine provided important programs,
events® and resources to support community heatth priorities:;

ASTHMA

830 in-person and virtual visits made to 279 children

and familles by community health workers to provide
asthma education (via South Side Pediatric Asthma
Center (SSPAC))

N9 attendees for SSPAC’s virtual asthma education summit

DIABETES

+ 598 attendees for 215 fitness sesslons for South Side Fit
program

* 94 attendees for 9 workshops for Diabates Education &
Empowerment Program (DEEP™)

TRAUMA RESILIENCY

* 1500 patients and 586 families served by the Violence
Recovery Program, a part of the Block Hassenfald Casdin
(BHC) Collaborative for Family Resllience

Violence prevention summit hosted by Southland RISE
(Reslllence Initiative to Strengthen and Empower), a
collaboration with Advocate Health Care Inspired by

U.5. Senator Dick Durbin's Chlcage HEAL (Hospital
Engagement, Action and Leadership} program

$100,000 awardad to 14 grassrools organizations by
Southland RISE for summer violence prevention programs

-

-

“incluties virtual and in person events brior to pandemic

TO VIEW THE FULL REPORT, VISIT
Community.UChicagoMadIcine.org/2020
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COVID 19 RESPONSE

Meeting the community's needs
during the pandemic
Since the pandemic started, UChicago Medicine has

worked with its partners to auickly identify and respongd
to the community's needs, providing such résources as:

* PPE donations * Emergency relief funding
» Food pantry * Vaccine distribution and
« COVID-19 testing information

+ Patient contact traclng - COVID-1% educational

* Phase 3 vaccine trials rescurces

Community Health
Workers: Healthcars
ambassadors to
our South Side
neighborhoods
Community health
workers (CHWs)
play an important
role in providing
care and health-
related education to
patients, often in their
homes. In addition
to asthma education
offered through the
South Side Pediatric
Asthma Center, CHWs
also provided 124
familias with food,
transportation and
supplies in response to
the pandemic,

LRI R TN
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WORKFORCE AND COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We can reduce Inequities by
Increasing employment opportunities
for our South Side residents

$22 miillion

funds granted far

local hiring since 2019,
leading to 76 |ocal hires
(minimum 3- 1o S-year,
living wage johs)

Hiring local talent:
UChicago Medicine
hires local talent like
Dwayne Johnson to
help bulld its workforce
and strengthen
communities. A South
Shore resident. Johnson
Is a founding team
member of the Violence
Recovery Program, the
only hospitai-based
violence intervention
pregram in Chicago
serving adulls and
childran,

85% 90-day retention rate

of South Side hires

2 4% of total workforce

live in the UChicage

Medicine service area

We value locat
and diverse
pannerships

for purchasing
and construction
projects

$20.8 million

contracts awarded
and paid to certified
minority and women-
owned firms

$4.3 million

wages to minority and
famale construction
workers

$1.9 million

wages earned by 208
Chicago residents

working en UChicago
Medicine construction
projects
Community
benefit service
area by ZIP code
60609 80628
60615 60636
60617 60637
60619 60643
608620 60649
80621 60653

TO VIEW THE FULL REPQRT, VisSIT
communlty.UChlugonodl:lm.orglzozo
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